l\\\’ AGENDA

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Megg\g\l{gter BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Thursday, March 11, 2021
1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627
6:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting

Dedicated to
Satisfying our Community’s

Water Needs

IN AN EFFORT TO MITIGATE THE SPREAD OF COVID-19 (CORONAVIRUS), AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE GOVERNOR’S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, THERE WILL BE NO
PUBLIC LOCATION FOR ATTENDING THIS BOARD MEETING IN PERSON. MEMBERS OF THE
PUBLIC MAY LISTEN AND PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT BY EITHER COMPUTER OR
TELEPHONE AUDIO AS FOLLOWS:

Computer Audio: Please click the link below to join the Zoom webinar:
https://zoom.us/j/98444927777
Meeting ID: 984 4492 7777
Passcode: 271651

Telephone Audio: (669) 900 6833

CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
PUBLIC COMMENTS
Iltems Not on the Agenda: Members of the public are invited to address the Board regarding

items which are not on the agenda. Each speaker is limited to three minutes. The Board will set
aside 30 minutes for public comments.

Items on the Agenda: Members of the public may comment on agenda items before action is
taken or after the Board has discussed the item. Each speaker is limited to three minutes. The
Board will set aside 60 minutes for public comments.

ITEMS TO BE ADDED, REMOVED, OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA
At the discretion of the Board, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed
as an Action Item, may be deliberated and may be subject to action by the Board.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:
Approve all matters under the Consent Calendar by one motion unless a Board member, staff, or a
member of the public requests a separate action.

Approve minutes of reqular Board meeting of February 11, 2021.

Approve minutes of adjourned regular Board meeting of February 23, 2021.
Approve attendance considerations (additions, changes, deletions).

Board Schedule:

e Conferences, Seminars, and Meetings

e Board Calendar

hON=

Page 1 of 3


https://zoom.us/j/98444927777?pwd=TkljRVBuNE5TOVNvTVBoOWsxbEtMUT09

nv

MesaWater

DISTRICT

PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS:

5. INDEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICTS OF ORANGE COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
VACANCY:
Recommendation: Review the Independent Special Districts of Orange County
Executive Committee vacancy information and discuss potential candidacy interest.

6. FISCAL YEAR 2020 AUDIT RESULTS AND COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORT:
Recommendation: Approve Mesa Water District’s audited financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 and direct staff to finalize the Fiscal Year 2020
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

7. EMERGENCY WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ASSESSMENT PROGRAM:

Recommendation: This item is provided for discussion.
ACTION ITEMS:

8. MESA CONSOLIDATED WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION ANNUAL
MEETING:
Recommendation: Recess from regular Board meeting and hold the Mesa
Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation Annual Meeting.

9. 2021 STATE LEGISLATION PERTAINING TO OPEN MEETING AND WATER ISSUES:
Recommendation: Approve the recommended positions on the 2021 State

Legislation pertaining to Open Meetings and Water Issues.
REPORTS:

10. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER:
o February Key Indicators Report
. Other (no enclosure)

11. DIRECTORS' REPORTS AND COMMENTS

INFORMATION ITEMS:

12. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (AB 1234) PER CA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 53232.3 (D)

13. OTHER (NO ENCLOSURE)

Page 2 of 3



nv

MesaWater

DISTRICT

CLOSED SESSION:

14. CONFERENCE WITH GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION:
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)
Reporting Issue: Department of Drinking Water

In compliance with California law and the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need disability-related modifications or accommodations,
including auxiliary aids or services in order to participate in the meeting, or if you need the agenda provided in an alternative format, please
contact the District Secretary at (949) 631-1206. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable Mesa Water District (Mesa Water) to
make reasonable arrangements to accommodate your requests.

Members of the public desiring to make verbal comments utilizing a translator to present their comments into English shall be provided
reasonable time accommodations that are consistent with California law.

Agenda materials that are public records, which have been distributed to a majority of the Mesa Water Board of Directors (Board), will be available
for public inspection at the District Boardroom, 1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA and on Mesa Water's website at www.MesaWater.org.
If materials are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior or during the meeting, the materials will be available at the time of the meeting.

ADJOURN TO AN ADJOURNED REGULAR BOARD MEETING SCHEDULED FOR TUESDAY,
MARCH 23, 2021 AT 3:30 P.M.

Page 3 of 3



ﬂiﬁ’ MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MESA WATER DISTRICT
Megg\;’}i%i&r Thursday, February 11, 2021
1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627
6:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting

Dedicated to
Satisfying our Community’s
Water Needs

CALL TO ORDER The meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at
6:00 p.m. by President DePasquale.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Director Atkinson led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Directors Present Marice H. DePasquale President (teleconference)
Shawn Dewane, Vice President (teleconference)
Jim Atkinson, Director (teleconference)
Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E., Director (teleconference)
James R. Fisler, Director (teleconference)

Directors Absent None

Staff Present Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager (teleconference)
Phil Lauri, P. E., Assistant General Manager (teleconference)
Denise Garcia, Administrative Services Manager/
District Secretary

Wendy Duncan, Records Management Specialist/
Assistant District Secretary (teleconference)

Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, Chief Financial Officer/
District Treasurer

Stacie Sheek, Customer Services Manager (teleconference)

Tracy Manning, Water Operations Manager (teleconference)

Stacy Taylor, Water Policy Manager (teleconference)

Kurt Lind, Business Administrator (teleconference)

Rob Anslow, Partner, Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo
(teleconference)

Others Present Jonathan Aparicio, IT Support Engineer, T2 Technology Group
Karl W. Seckel, Director, Municipal Water District of Orange
County (MWDOC) (teleconference)
Harvey De La Torre, Assistant General Manager, MWDOC

(teleconference)

Sandra L. Kerl, General Manager, San Diego County Water
Authority (SDCWA) (teleconference)

Amy Chen, Director of the MWD Program, SDCWA

(teleconference)
Elizabeth Mendelson-Goossens, Senior Water Resources
Specialist, SDCWA (teleconference)
Kristy Khachigian, Principal, kk consulting (teleconference)
Louis C. Klein, Managing Partner, Foley and Mansfield
(teleconference)

Page 1 of 5



Mesa Water Regular Board Meeting February 11, 2021

Thomas L. Epperson, P.E., Senior Project Manager, Tetra Tech
(teleconference)

President DePasquale stated that the Board of Directors was attending the meeting via
teleconference per Governor Newsom'’s Executive Order N-29-20, which suspended certain
provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act.

President DePasquale stated that for each action, a roll call vote was taken in accordance with
California Government Code Section 54953(b)(2), which states, “all votes taken during a
teleconferenced meeting shall be by roll call.”

President DePasquale proceeded with the meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

President DePasquale asked for comments on items not on the agenda.

President DePasquale welcomed MWDOC Director Karl Seckel who offered comments.
President DePasquale thanked Mr. Seckel for his comments and proceeded with the meeting.
ITEMS TO BE ADDED, REMOVED, OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA

General Manager Shoenberger recommended reordering the agenda to take Item 13 after Item
5. There were no objections.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:
Approve all matters under the Consent Calendar by one motion unless a Board member, Staff,
or a member of the public requests a separate action.

1. Approve minutes of regular Board meeting of January 14, 2021.
2. Approve attendance considerations (additions, changes, deletions).
3 Board Schedule:
e Conferences, Seminars, and Meetings
e Board Calendar
4, Receive the Quarterly Training Report for October 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020.

President DePasquale asked for comments from the Board. There were no comments.
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments.
MOTION

Motion by Director Fisler, second by Vice President Dewane, to approve Items 1 — 4 of
the Consent Calendar. Motion passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS  Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None

Page 2 of 5



Mesa Water Regular Board Meeting February 11, 2021
PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS:
S. SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY:

General Manager Shoenberger introduced SDCWA General Manager Sandra Kerl, who

provided a presentation that highlighted the following:

. Water Authority Serves a Vibrant Region

. Few Natural Water Resources

. Becoming a Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) Member

Agency

Inception to 1980s: “Pipeline Agency”

MWD Water Supply Shortages

Today’s Life at the “End of the Pipeline”

Innovative Investments in Supply Reliability

Result: Sufficient Water During Drought

Increasing San Diego County’s Water Supply Reliability through Supply

Diversification

Investing for the Future: Water Authority’s Regional Conveyance Study

. MWD Must Grapple with Lower Demands

. Data, Analysis and Member Agency Need Must Drive MWD’s Resource
Investments

. 2020 Integrated Water Resources Plan (IRP) Update is Critical

Ms. Kerl responded to questions from the Board and they thanked her for the
presentation.

President DePasquale announced the Board was going into Closed Session at 6:41 p.m.
CLOSED SESSION:
ITEM 13 — CONFERENCE WITH SPECIAL LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION:
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1)
Case: Irvine Ranch Water District v. Orange County Water District and related cross-
actions, Los Angeles County Superior Court Case Nos. BS168278 and BS 175192
The Board returned to Open Session at 6:52 p.m.
District Secretary Garcia announced that the Board conducted one Closed Session with the
General Manager, District Secretary, and Special Legal Counsel pursuant to California
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1). The Board gave direction to staff and Special Legal
Counsel. There was no further announcement.
ACTION ITEMS:
6. CHANDLER & CRODDY WELLS AND PIPELINE PROJECT WELL EQUIPPING:

GM Shoenberger introduced Assistant General Manager Lauri who provided a brief
overview of the topic.

Page 3 of 5



Mesa Water Regular Board Meeting February 11, 2021

AGM Lauri responded to questions from the Board and they thanked him for the
information.

President DePasquale asked for comments from the Board. There were no comments.
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments.
MOTION
Motion by Director Bockmiller, second by Vice President Dewane, to award a contract to
Gateway Pacific Contractors, Inc. in the amount of $12,975,000 and a 10% contingency
of $1,297,500 for a total contract amount not to exceed $14,272,500 for the equipping of
Chandler Well, No. 12 and Croddy Well No. 14, and authorize execution of the contract.
Motion passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:
AYES: DIRECTORS  Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None
1. BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE:
President DePasquale asked for comments from the Board. There were no comments.
President DePasquale asked for comments from the public. There were no comments.
MOTION
Motion by Director Bockmiller, second by Vice President Dewane, to reschedule the
Thursday, November 11, 2021 regular Board of Directors’ meeting to Thursday,
November 4, 2021. Motion passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:
AYES: DIRECTORS  Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None
REPORTS:

8. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER:
o January Key Indicators Report
. Other (no enclosure)

9. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS
INFORMATION ITEMS:
10. GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL SERVICES

11. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (AB 1234) PER CA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 53232.3 (D)

Page 4 of 5



Mesa Water Regular Board Meeting February 11, 2021

12. OTHER (NO ENCLOSURE)
CLOSED SESSION:
13. CONFERENCE WITH SPECIAL LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION:
Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1)
Case: Irvine Ranch Water District v. Orange County Water District and related cross-
actions, Los Angeles County Superior Court Case Nos. BS168278 and BS 175192
Item taken earlier in the agenda.
President DePasquale announced the Board was going into Closed Session at 7:30 p.m.
14. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE
54957.6:
District Negotiator: General Manager
Employee Organization: District Employees
The Board returned to Open Session at 7:53 p.m.
District Secretary Garcia announced that the Board conducted one Closed Session with the
General Manager, District Secretary, and District Treasurer pursuant to California Government
Code Section 54957.6. The Board gave direction to staff and there was no further
announcement.
President DePasquale adjourned the meeting at 7:55 p.m. to an Adjourned Regular Board Meeting
scheduled for Tuesday, February 23, 2021 at 3:30 p.m.

Approved:

Marice H. DePasquale, President

Denise Garcia, District Secretary

Page 5 of 5



’E\V MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MESA WATER DISTRICT
Megg\;’}lia%t@r Tuesday, February 23, 2021
1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627
3:30 p.m. Adjourned Regular Board Meeting

Dedicated to
Satisfying our Community’s
Water Needs

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEE MEETING

CALL TO ORDER The meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at
3:31 p.m. by President DePasquale.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE Director Bockmiller led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Directors Present Marice H. DePasquale, President (teleconference)
Shawn Dewane, Vice President (teleconference)
Jim Atkinson, Director (teleconference)
Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E., Director (eleconference)
James R. Fisler, Director (teleconference)

Directors Absent None

Staff Present Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager (teleconference)
Phil Lauri, P.E., Assistant General Manager (teleconference)
Denise Garcia, Administrative Services Manager/

District Secretary
Wendy Duncan, Records Management Specialist/
Assistant District Secretary (teleconference)
Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, Chief Financial Officer/
District Treasurer
Stacie Sheek, Customer Services Manager (teleconference)
Tracy Manning, Water Operations Manager (teleconference)
Stacy Taylor, Water Policy Manager (teleconference)
Celeste Carrillo, Public Affairs Coordinator (teleconference)

Others Present Jonathan Aparicio, IT Support Engineer, T2 Technology Group

Dennis Albiani, Vice President, California Advocates, Inc.
(teleconference)

Anthony Molina, Legislative Advocate, California Advocates,
INC. (teleconference)

Chris Palmer, Senior Public Affairs Field Coordinator, California
Special Districts Association (teleconference)

Roy Herndon, Chief Hydrogeologist, Orange County Water
District (teleconference)

Mitch Barker, Executive Vice President, Public Agency
Retirement Services (teleconference)

Christiane Tsuda, Vice President, Senior Portfolio Manager,
HighMark Capital Management (teleconference)

Page 1 of 6



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting February 23, 2021

Mike Harrington, FCAS, MAAA, President and Principal,
Bickmore Actuarial (teleconference)

Richard R. Huntington, CPCU, ARM, President, The Huntington
Group, LLC (teleconference)

Lisa M. Kaderabek, Partner, McDermott Will & Emery, LLP

(teleconference)

President DePasquale stated that the Board of Directors was attending the meeting via
teleconference per Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20 which suspended certain
provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act.

President DePasquale stated that for each action, a roll call vote was taken in accordance with
California Government Code Section 54953(b)(2), which states, “all votes taken during a
teleconferenced meeting shall be by roll call.”

President DePasquale proceeded with the meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

President DePasquale asked for public comments on items not on the agenda.
President DePasquale proceeded with the meeting.

ITEMS TO BE ADDED, REMOVED, OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA

General Manager Shoenberger recommended deferring Item 15 to the March Committee
meeting. There were no objections.

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS:
Approve all matters under the Consent Calendar by one motion unless a Board member, staff,
or a member of the public requests a separate action.

Approve minutes of adjourned regular Board meeting of January 26, 2021.
Receive and file the Developer Project Status Report.

Receive and file the Mesa Water and Other Agency Projects Status Report.
Receive and file the Water Quality Call Report.

Receive and file the Water Operations Status Report.

Receive and file the Accounts Paid Listing.

Receive and file the Monthly Financial Reports.

Receive and file the Major Staff Projects.

Receive and file the State Advocacy Update.

10. Receive and file the Orange County Update.

11. Receive and file the Outreach Update.

12. Receive and file the Fiscal Year 2021 Second Quarter Financial Update.

©CoNoh,rwhE

President DePasquale asked for comments from the Board. There were no comments.
MOTION

Motion by Vice President Dewane, second by Director Atkinson, to approve ltems 1 - 12
of the Consent Calendar. Motion passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:

Page 2 of 6



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting February 23, 2021

AYES: DIRECTORS  Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None

ACTION ITEMS:

13. COSTA MESA SANITARY DISTRICT EVENT:
President DePasquale asked for comments from the Board. There were no comments.
MOTION
Motion by Director Bockmiller, second by Vice President Dewane, to approve the
contribution of 150 reusable water bottles branded with the Mesa Water District logo for
Costa Mesa Sanitary District’s Citizens Environmental Protection Academy event. Motion
passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:
AYES: DIRECTORS  Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None
14.  BILLING AND MAILING SERVICES:
President DePasquale asked for comments from the Board. There were no comments.
MOTION
Motion by Vice President Dewane, second by Director Fisler, to approve a one-year
contract, with the option for one additional three-year period renewal, with InfoSend Inc.
for an amount not to exceed $100,000 annually to provide billing and mailing services.
Motion passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:
AYES: DIRECTORS  Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None
15. WATER SUPPLY, ENERGY, AND SUPPLY CHAIN RELIABILITY ASSESSMENT:

Item deferred to the March Committee meeting.

PRESENTATION AN DISCUSSION ITEMS:

ITEM 9 — RECEIVE AND FILE THE STATE ADVOCACY UPDATE.

Water Policy Manager Taylor introduced California Advocates, Inc. Vice President Dennis
Albiani who proceeded with the State Advocacy update. Mr. Albiani introduced California
Advocates, Inc. Legislative Advocate Anthony Molina who provided a brief budget update.

Page 3 of 6



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting February 23, 2021

16.

Messrs. Albiani and Molina responded to questions from the Board and they thanked
them for the update.

CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION 2021 LEGISLATION:

Water Policy Manager Taylor introduced California Special Districts Association Senior
Public Affairs Field Coordinator Chris Palmer who provided an overview of the topic.

Mr. Palmer responded to questions from the Board and they thanked him for the
information.

President DePasquale asked for comments from the Board. There were no comments.

MOTION

17.

18.

Motion by Director Atkinson, second by Vice President Dewane, to approve the
recommended positions on the California Special Districts Association 2021 Legislation.
Motion passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS  Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None

ORANGE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT BRIEFING:

Assistant General Manager Lauri introduced Orange County Water District Chief
Hydrogeologist Roy Herndon who proceeded with a presentation that highlighted the
following:
e 2004 Inland Movement of Chlorides (Seawater Intrusion)
e 2012 Reverse the Inland Movement of Brackish Groundwater
e 2020 Controlling Seawater Intrusion by Maintaining Protective Groundwater
Elevations

e OCWD Well M26 Water Levels and Chloride Concentrations
e OCWD Well M40 Chloride Concentrations
e Groundwater Flows Toward Mesa Water District’'s Wells

Mr. Herndon responded to questions from the Board and they thanked him for the
presentation.

CHANDLER & CRODDY WELLS AND PIPELINE PROJECT — CRODDY WELL WATER
QUALITY AND YIELD:

AGM Lauri provided an overview of the topic and proceeded with a presentation that
highlighted the following:

e Background

e Croddy Well Zone Sampling

Mr. Lauri responded to question from the Board and they thanked him for the presentation.

Page 4 of 6



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting February 23, 2021

19.

20.

PENSION & OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST UPDATE:

Chief Financial Officer Khalifa introduced Public Agency Retirement Services Executive
Vice President Mitch Barker who proceeded with a presentation on the Other Post-
Employment Benefits (OPEB) Pre-Funding Trust Program & Pension Rate Stabilization
Program (PRSP) Client Review that highlighted the following:

e Summary of Agency’s OPEB Plan
OPEB Actuarial Results
Summary of Agency’s Pension Plan
Pension Funding Status
Projected Employer Contributions

Mr. Barker responded to questions from the Board and they thanked him for the
presentation.

Mr. Barker introduced HighMark Capital Management Vice President Senior Portfolio
Manager Christiane Tsuda who proceeded with a presentation on Public Agency
Retirement Services (PARS) that highlighted the following:

e Annualized Return Comparison

e Disclosures

e Discussion Highlights

e Administrative Review

Ms. Tsuda responded to questions from the Board and they thanked her for the
presentation.

CAPTIVE INSURANCE:
Chief Financial Officer Khalifa provided an overview of the topic and introduced Bickmore
Actuarial President and Principal Mike Harrington, The Huntington Group President Richard

Huntington, and McDermott Will & Emery, LLP Partner Lisa Kaderabek.

GM Shoenberger, Mr. Harrington, and Ms. Kaderabek responded to questions from the
Board.

Discussion ensued amongst the Board.

Director Bockmiller offered comments on the development of a governance structure. This
recommendation will be taken under advisement.

MOTION

Motion by Vice President Dewane, second by Director Bockmiller, to direct staff to form a
captive insurance company (captive) to include hiring consultants and to fund the captive
with an amount of $30 million from reserves and retaining $10 million in working capital.
Motion passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS  Atkinson, Bockmiller, Fisler, Dewane, DePasquale
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None
Page 5 of 6



Mesa Water Adjourned Regular Board Meeting February 23, 2021

REPORTS:

21. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER
22. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS
INFORMATION ITEMS:

23. WELL NO. 6 REHABILITATION

24. OTHER (NO ENCLOSURE)

President DePasquale adjourned the meeting at 5:51 p.m. to a Regular Board Meeting

scheduled for Thursday, March 11, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.

Approved:

Marice H. DePasquale, President

Denise Garcia, District Secretary

Page 6 of 6



I“V MEMORANDUM

Mesa\Water TO: Board of Directors
PISTRICT FROM:  Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager
Dedicated to DATE: March 11, 2021

Satisfying our Community’s  gUBJECT: Attendance at Conferences, Seminars, Meetings, and Events
Water Needs

RECOMMENDATION

In accordance with Ordinance No. 30, adopted January 14, 2021, authorize attendance at
conferences, seminars, meetings, and events.

STRATEGIC PLAN

Goal #1: Provide a safe, abundant, and reliable water supply.

Goal #2: Practice perpetual infrastructure renewal and improvement.
Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent.

Goal #4: Increase public awareness about Mesa Water and about water.
Goal #5: Attract and retain skilled employees.

Goal #6: Provide outstanding customer service.

Goal #7: Actively participate in regional and statewide water issues.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

At its June 11, 2020 meeting, the Board of Directors (Board) approved Fiscal Year 2021
attendance at Conferences, Seminars, Meetings, and Events.

DISCUSSION

During the discussion of this item, if any, the Board may choose to delete any item from the list
and/or may choose to add additional conferences, seminars, meetings, or events for approval,
subject to available budget or additional appropriation.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

None.

ATTACHMENTS

None.

Page 1 of 1



Mesa Water Board Meeting of March 11, 2021

2021 CONFERENCES, SEMINARS, AND MEETINGS:

April 1, 2021

MWDOC Elected Officials Forum

Virtual

April 6 - 8, 2021

WaterNow Alliance 6th Annual Summit

Virtual

May 12 - 13, 2021

ACWA/JPIA Spring Conference

DePasquale

Virtual

May 18 - 19, 2021

CSDA Legislative Days

Virtual

June 13 - 16, 2021

AWWA ACE21 Conference

Atkinson

San Diego, CA

Jt. CA-NV AWWA/AMTA Conference

West Palm Beach, FL

July 27 - 29, 2021

SWMOA Annual Symposium

Pico Rivera, CA

August 30 - September 2, 2021

CSDA Annual Conference

Monterey, CA

September 14 - 17, 2021

CAJPA Conference

South Lake Tahoe, CA

October 18 - 21, 2021

AWWA CA-NV Annual Fall Conference

Virtual

October 21 - 22, 2021

H20 Women Conference

DePasquale

Santa Barbara, CA

October 25 - 26, 2021

Public-Private Partnership Higher Education Summit

San Diego, CA

November 30 - December 3, 2021

ACWA/JPIA Fall Conference

Pasadena, CA

Page 1 of 1



March 2021 April 2021
March 2021 Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
Feb 28 Mar 1 2 3 4 5 6
8:30am MWDOC Planning 7:30am ISDOC Executive Director Dewane - Out of Town
& Operations Committee Committee Meeting Payday 7:30am WACO Meeting
Meeting (Virtual) 12:00pm Meeting w/ Mesa 8:30am Jt. MWDOC/MWD (Virtual)
Water Director - MD, JF Workshop (Virtual)
6:00pm Costa Mesa City 5:30pm OCWD Board
Council Meeting (Virtual) Meeting (Virtual)
7 8 9 10 11 12 13
Director Dewane - Out of Town
5:00pm IRWD Board 8:00am OCBC Infrastructure 8:00am LAFCO Meeting ACWA 2021 Legislative Pay Period Ends
Meeting (Virtual) Committee (Virtual) (Virtual) Virtual Symposium
8:30am MWDOC Admin (VIRTUAL)
and Finance Committee 6:00pm Mesa Water Board
(Virtual) Meeting
14 15 16 17 18 19 20
WateReuse Symposium (VIRTUAL)
8:30am CANCELED 7:30am WACO Planning Payday 8:30am MWDOC Executive
MWDOC Public Affairs & Committee (VIRTUAL) 8:30am MWDOC Board Committee (Virtual)
Legislation (Virtual) 9:30am CANCELLED - Meeting (VIRTUAL) 4:00pm Costa Mesa
ACC-OC EEW Committee 5:00pm AALRR Event Chamber of Commerce
6:00pm Costa Mesa City 5:30pm OCWD Board Board Meeting (Virtual)
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
WateReuse Symposium (VIRTUAL) Pay Period Ends
5:00pm IRWD Board 3:30pm Board of Directors 8:30am Jt. MWDOC/OCWD
Meeting (Virtual) Committee Meeting Meeting
(ZOOM) (MWDOC/OCWD
Boardroom)
28 29 30 31 Apr 1 2 3
Payday

Colleen Grace

3/3/2021 1:22 PM



° April 2021 May 2021
A rII 2021 Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 1
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 10 M 12 13 14 15
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
Mar 28 29 30 31 Apr 1 2 3
6:00pm MWDOC Elected 7:30am WACO Meeting
Officials Forum (Virtual) (Virtual)
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
8:30am MWDOC Planning WaterNow Alliance 6th Annual Summit (VIRTUAL) Pay Period Ends
& Operations Committee 7:30am ISDOC Executive 8:30am Jt. MWDOC/MWD 6:00pm Mesa Water Board
Meeting (Virtual) Committee Meeting Workshop (Virtual) Meeting
(Virtual) 5:30pm OCWD Board
6:00pm Costa Mesa City Meeting (Virtual)
Council Meeting (Virtual)
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
5:00pm IRWD Board 8:00am OCBC Infrastructure Payday 8:30am MWDOC Executive
Meeting (Virtual) Committee (Virtual) 8:00am LAFCO Meeting Committee (Virtual)
(Virtual)
8:30am MWDOC Admin
and Finance Committee
(Virtual)
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
California Untied Water Conference (San Diego, CA) Pay Period Ends
8:30am CANCELED 7:30am WACO Planning 8:30am MWDOC Board
MWDOC Public Affairs & Committee (VIRTUAL) Meeting (VIRTUAL)
Legislation (Virtual) 9:30am ACC-OC EEW 5:30pm OCWD Board
Committee (VIRTUAL) Meeting (Virtual)
6:00pm Costa Mesa City
25 26 27 28 29 30 May 1
5:00pm IRWD Board 3:30pm Board of Directors Payday 11:30am ISDOC Quarterly
Meeting (Virtual) Committee Meeting 8:30am Jt. MWDOC/OCWD Event (VIRTUAL)
(ZOOM) Meeting
(MWDOC/OCWD
Boardroom)

Colleen Grace

3/3/2021 1:23 PM



May 2021 June 2021
Ma 2021 Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa
1 1 2 3 4 5
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
9 10 M 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 200 21 22 23 24 25 26
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30
30 31
SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY
Apr 25 26 27 28 29 30 May 1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
8:30am MWDOC Planning 7:30am ISDOC Executive 8:30am Jt. MWDOC/MWD Pay Period Ends
& Operations Committee Committee Meeting Workshop (Virtual) 7:30am WACO Meeting
Meeting (Virtual) (Virtual) 5:30pm OCWD Board (Virtual)
6:00pm Costa Mesa City Meeting (Virtual)
Council Meeting (Virtual)
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
5:00pm IRWD Board 8:00am OCBC Infrastructure ACWA/JPIA Spring Conference - MD (VIRTUAL)
Meeting (Virtual) Committee (Virtual) Payday 6:00pm Mesa Water Board
8:00am LAFCO Meeting Meeting
(Virtual)
8:30am MWDOC Admin
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
8:30am CANCELED CSDA Leqislative Days (Virtual) 8:30am MWDOC Executive Pay Period Ends
MWDOC Public Affairs & 7:30am WACO Planning 8:30am MWDOC Board Committee (Virtual)
Legislation (Virtual) Committee (VIRTUAL) Meeting (VIRTUAL) 4:00pm Costa Mesa
6:00pm Costa Mesa City 5:30pm OCWD Board Chamber of Commerce
Council Meeting (Virtual) Meeting (Virtual) Board Meeting (Virtual)
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
5:00pm IRWD Board 3:30pm Board of Directors Payday
Meeting (Virtual) Committee Meeting 8:30am Jt. MWDOC/OCWD
(ZOOM) Meeting
(MWDOC/OCWD
Boardroom)
30 31 Jun 1 2 3 4 5
District Holiday

Colleen Grace

3/3/2021 1:24 PM



ﬂlv MEMORANDUM

MesaWater TO: Board of Directors
BiSriRiel FROM: Stacy Taylor, Water Policy Manager
Dedicated to DATE: March 11, 2021
Satisfying our Community’s  gUBJECT: Independent Special Districts of Orange County Executive
Water Needs Committee Vacancy
RECOMMENDATION

Review the Independent Special Districts of Orange County Executive Committee vacancy
information and discuss potential candidacy interest

STRATEGIC PLAN

Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent.
Goal #4: Increase public awareness about Mesa Water and about water.
Goal #7: Actively participate in regional and statewide water issues.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION

None.

DISCUSSION

On February 10, 2021, Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®) received correspondence, from the
Independent Special Districts of Orange County (ISDOC) seeking nominations in order to fill the
vacancy for the Executive Committee Second Vice President by appointment, per its bylaws.

In order to be considered, a candidate must be an elected or appointed official of a regular
member agency and be endorsed by his/her district in the form of a Board resolution. All Board
resolutions, along with a letter/email of interest, must be sent to Heather Baez at
Hbaez@mwdoc.com and be received by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, March 26, 2021. The appointment
will be made by the ISDOC Executive Committee on Tuesday, April 6, 2021.

The responsibilities of the Second Vice President position are as follows:

Second Vice President - The Second Vice President chairs the Membership Committee.
Duties include maintaining a list of current regular and associate members, follow up with
any outstanding membership dues as needed, and in the absence of the President and
First Vice President, shall perform all duties of the President.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

None; the annual membership dues to ISDOC are estimated at $50.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: ISDOC Executive Committee Second Vice President Vacancy Correspondence

Page 1 of 1


mailto:Hbaez@mwdoc.com

Independent Special Districts of Orange County

Mailing Address

P.O. Box 20885
Fountain Valley, CA 92728

Meeting Location

MWDOC/OCWD
18700 Ward Street
Fountain Valley, CA 92708

(714) 963-3058
(714) 964-5930 fax

www.mwdoc.com/isdoc

Executive Committee

President
Hon. Mark Monin
El Toro Water District

1st Vice President
Hon. Arlene Schafer
Costa Mesa Sanitary District

2nd Vice President
Vacant

3rd Vice President
Hon. Brooke Jones
Yorba Linda Water District

Secretary
Hon. Greg Mills
Serrano Water District

Treasurer
Hon. Bill Green
South Coast Water District

Immediate Past President
Hon. Saundra Jacobs
Santa Margarita Water District

Staff Administration

Heather Baez
Municipal Water District of Orange
County

Christina Hernandez
Municipal Water District of Orange
County

February 2, 2021

PLEASE DISSEMINATE TO ALL BOARD MEMBERS

Re: ISDOC Executive Committee 2nd Vice President Vacancy

This email shall serve as official notice and call for candidates to fill the vacancy for the
2nd Vice President position on of the Independent Special Districts of Orange County
(1ISDOC).The ISDOC Executive Committee will fill the vacancy by appointment.

Per the ISDOC bylaws, Article Ill Section Il Point E: “With the exception of the
immediate past president, if a vacancy occurs on the Executive Committee, the
Committee shall, within 60 days from the commencement of the vacancy, either fill
the vacancy by appointment or call a special election to fill the vacancy. A person
appointed or elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office for the unexpired term of the
former incumbent.”

Nominations will close on Friday, March 26, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. Any Board
Member/Trustee of a regular ISDOC member agency is eligible for nomination for this
open position. Individuals who wish to be considered should submit a letter of
interest, together with a resolution from their Board authorizing their candidacy.

The appointment will be made by the ISDOC Executive Committee on Tuesday, April 6,
2021.

Responsibilities of the positions are as follows:

SECOND VICE PRESIDENT: The Second Vice President chairs the Membership
Committee. Duties include maintaining a list of current regular and associate members,
follow up with any outstanding membership dues as needed, and in the absence of the
President and First Vice President, shall perform all duties of the President.

Meetings of the Executive Committee typically occur on the first Tuesday of each
month at 7:30 a.m. in the offices of the Municipal Water District of Orange County
(MWDOC) in Fountain Valley. Due to COVID-19 restrictions, meetings are currently
being held via teleconference until further notice.

If you are seeking nomination to the 2" Vice President position on the Executive
Committee, please send your letter/email of interest and a copy of your Board's
authorizing resolution to Heather Baez at Hbaez@mwdoc.com. All nomination
requests must be received by Friday, March 26, 2021.

If you have any questions about the any of the positions or the election process, please
contact either Heather Baez at Hbaez@mwdoc.com or Christina Hernandez at
Chernandez@mwdoc.com

Sincerely,
Mark Monin

Mark Monin, President
Independent Special Districts of Orange County



ﬂlv MEMORANDUM

MesaWater TO: Board of Directors
DISTRICT FROM: Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, Chief Financial Officer
Dedicated to DATE: March 11, 2021
Satisfying our Community’s  gUBJECT: Fiscal Year 2020 Audit Results and Comprehensive Annual
Water Needs Financial Report
RECOMMENDATION

Approve Mesa Water District’s audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020 and direct staff to finalize the Fiscal Year 2020 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

STRATEGIC PLAN

Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION

None.

DISCUSSION

The Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 audit for Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®) has been completed
and the draft Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) is attached and will be presented
at the March 11, 2021 meeting. The CAFR was prepared in accordance with guidelines
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Clifton Larson Allen
(CLA), formerly known as White Nelson Diehl Evans, LLP (WNDE), conducted an independent
audit of Mesa Water's financial records in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards and has expressed an unmodified opinion on the District’s financial statements for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

Representatives from CLA will attend the Board of Directors (Board) meeting to present the
results of the audit and a summary of the financial results for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020.

FY 2020 financial results (as of June 30, 2020) are summarized below:
e Mesa Water has met or exceeded its Fiscal Year Budgeted Target goals for Days Cash
Ratio and Cash on Hand:
o Days Cash Ratio was 506 days (Target 486 Days)
o Cash on Hand was $35.0 million (Target $33.4MM)

Statement of Net Position (Balance Sheet)

Highlights include:
e Current assets, including cash, investments and receivables, increased $4.4 million,
primarily due to the increase in net position.
e Non-current assets increased $69.3 million, primarily due to the issuance of the 2020
COPs.
e Current liabilities increased $.8 million, primarily due to an increase in accounts payable
and accrued expenses.

Page 1 of 2



nv

MesaWater

DISTRICT

¢ Non-current liabilities increased by $67.5 million, primarily due to the issuance of the
2020 Certificates of Participation (COPS).

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position (Income Statement)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Change in Net Position was an increase (income)
of $3.6 million.

Highlights include:
e Operating revenues increased from $36.2 million to $36.7 million, due to the increase in
monthly meter service charges and water consumption rate.
e Operating expenses were below budgeted, but increased by $2.3 million over the
previous year.
e Capital contributions increased $1.2 million, as a result of new development in the City of
Costa Mesa.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

In Fiscal Year 2021, $33,113 is budgeted for Auditing Services; $19,300 has been spent to
date.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended 2020
Attachment B: Internal Control Over Financial Reporting for the Fiscal Year Ended 2020

Page 2 of 2



nv

Mesa\Water

DISTRICT®

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE
FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2020

Mesa Water District | Costa Mesa, California

MesaWater.org

Dedicated to Satisfying our Community’s Water Needs



Mesa Water District
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

v

MesaWater

DISTRICT®

1965 Placentia Avenue
Costa Mesa, CA 92627-3420

Prepared by:
Financial Services Department



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Table of Contents
Page
Number
Table of Contents i
Introductory Section
Letter of Transmittal 1-5
Government Finance Officers Association -

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 6
Organization Chart 7
District Service Area Map 8

Financial Section
Independent Auditors’ Report 9-11
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information) 13-19
Basic Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Position 20
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 21
Statement of Cash Flows 22-23
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 24
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 25
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 26-74
Required Supplementary Information:
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 75
Schedule of Plan Contributions - Pension 77
Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return on Investments - OPEB 79
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 80
Schedule of Plan Contributions - OPEB 81
Supplementary Information:
Certificates of Participation - Revenue Coverage 82
Certificates of Participation - Reconciliation of Total Revenues and Total Expenses 83
Statistical Information Section
Statistical Section - Table of Contents 84
Changes in Net Position by Component - Last Ten Fiscal Years 85
Historic Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage - Fiscal Years Ended June 30 87
Operating Revenue by Source - Last Ten Fiscal Years 89

Historic Water Sales Revenues - Last Ten Fiscal Years 90

i



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Table of Contents (Continued)

Page
Number
Statistical Information Section (Continued)

Operating Expenses by Activity - Last Ten Fiscal Years 91
Non-Operating Revenue and Expenses - Last Ten Fiscal Years 92
Operating Revenue Base - Last Ten Fiscal Years 93
Customer Connections - Last Ten Fiscal Years 94
Revenue Rates - Last Ten Fiscal Years 95
Ten Largest Water Users - Current Fiscal Year and Five Years Ago 96
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type - Last Ten Fiscal Years 97
Demographics and Economic Statistics - Last Ten Fiscal Years 98
Principal Employers - Current Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago 99
District Employees by Department - Last Ten Fiscal Years 100
Historic Water Supply in Acre Feet - Last Five Fiscal Years 101

Historic Water Deliveries in Acre Feet - Last Five Fiscal Years 101

ii



Introductory Section



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>



nv

Mesa\Water

DISTRICT®
Dedicated to
Satisfying our Community’s
Water Needs

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Marice H. DePasquale
President
Division IIT

Shawn Dewane
Vice President
Division Vv

James Atkinson
Director
Division Iv

Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E.
Director
Division I

James R. Fisler
Director
Division IT

Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E.
General Manager

Denise Garcia
District Secretary

Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA
District Treasurer

Atkinson, Andelson,
Loya, Ruud & Romo
Legal Counsel

March 11, 2021

Board of Directors
Mesa Water District

Introduction

It is our pleasure to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®) for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2020 (with comparative data for 2019), following
guidelines set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). Mesa Water is ultimately responsible for both the accuracy of the
data and the completeness and fairness of presentation, including all
disclosures in this financial report. Mesa Water staff prepared this financial
report and believes that the data presented is accurate in all material
respects. This report is designed in a manner that we believe beneficial to
enhance the reader’s understanding of Mesa Water’s financial position
and activities.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) require that
management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the financial statements in the form of the Management'’s
Discussion and Analysis ( MD&A) Section. This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction
with it. The MD&A can be found immediately after the Independent
Auditor’s Report.

Mesa Water Structure and Leadership

Mesa Water is a county water district organized pursuant to Water Code
Section 33200 and operates pursuant to Water Code Section 30000
Mesa Water has been providing water service to its customers since
1960. Mesa Water is governed by a five-member Board of Directors
(Board), elected at-large by division within Mesa Water's service area.
The General Manager administers the day-to-day operations of Mesa
Water in accordance with policies and procedures established by the
Board. Mesa Water employs approximately 53 employees, some of
whom are part-time or temporary. Mesa Water's Board meets on the
second Thursday of each month. Meetings are publicly noticed and
citizens are encouraged to attend. Mesa Water provides water service to
approximately 110,000 residents in the City of Costa Mesa, parts of the
City of Newport Beach, and some unincorporated areas of Orange
County through approximately 25,000 service connections.

Mesa Water’s Services

Residential customers comprise approximately 82% of Mesa Water's
customer base and purchase approximately 60% of the water produced
annually by Mesa Water. In Fiscal Year 2020, Mesa Water's potable
supply was comprised of 100% groundwater and related groundwater
exchange programs.



nJ

MesaWater

DISTRICT®

Economic Condition, Outlook and Major Initiatives

Mesa Water carries out its mission with a highly-motivated and competent
staff empowered to conduct Mesa Water's business by placing customer
needs and welfare first. Each day Mesa Water's employees strive to carry
out their work mindful of Mesa Water's mission, “Dedicated to Satisfying
our Community's Water Needs.”

Mesa Water's service area includes various maijor regional facilities: John
Wayne Airport, Orange Coast College, Whittier Law School, Vanguard
University, Orange County Fairgrounds, Orange County Performing Arts
Center, South Coast Repertory Theater, and the shopping complex at
South Coast Plaza. The local economy is primarily based upon retail, .
commercial business, and light manufacturing.

in Mesa Water’s service area, consumers are now expe_zriencing the
benefits of decades-long investments in water use efficiency and water
infrastructure projects to help lower our regional dependence on imported
water.

Two decades ago, Mesa Water's Board of Directors set a goal to reduce
reliance on imported water from Northern California and the Colorado
River by increasing the District's production capacity of groundwater and
recycled water. Mesa Water is fortunate to be able to pump safe, high-
quality groundwater from Orange County’s clear-water aquifer and from
the deeper, amber-colored aquifer located directly under our service
area.

The Mesa Water Reliability Facility (MWRF) was the final step in
eliminating the District's dependence on imported water as Mesa Water is
now able to meet 100% of its community's water needs with locally-
sourced supplies. In fiscal year 2020 Mesa Water was able to make
further progress in the design phase of the two new wells sites. Once the
wells sites are completed, they will enhance Mesa Water's capability to
rely solely upon locally-sourced groundwater. Furthermore, producing
local water uses less electricity than is needed to import water from
hundreds of miles away.

Mesa Water's Board in fiscal year 2020 took on a major step towards
reliability by approving a three-year $70MM Capital Improvement
Program funded through Certificates of Participation. Mesa Water will
construct two new wells to increase local water production capacity and
invest in pipeline integrity testing to ensure economical and timely
replacement for continued reliable service and high-quality water to
customers.

Mesa Water has undertaken a major initiative to encourage water use
efficiency within its service area. In conjunction with Metropolitan Water
District (MWD) and the Municipal Water District of Orange County
(MWDOC), Mesa Water distributes and provides financial incentives for
high efficiency water use devices, and has developed education and
technical assistance programs designed for residents, homeowners
associations, businesses, and other public agencies. Mesa Water also
works with the City of Costa Mesa to promote the wise use of water

2



n

MesaWater

DISTRICT®

through the City’s development plan check process. These active
programmatic efforts have resulted in a cumulative water savings of
approximately 16,804 acre feet of water to date.

As of July 1, 2020, Mesa Water charges a uniform commodity rate of
$4.27 per unit and a bi-monthly fixed charge of $27.23 for a 5/8 inch
meter. One unit of water equals 748 gallons which means that the cost
per gallon is 0.57 cents. At $894 per year, the cost of water service for a
typical single family home using 127,900 gallons of water annually
remains a good value for Mesa Water's customers.

In fiscal year 2020 Covid-19 impacted the economy greatly. With multiple
shutdowns and a reduced number of people in business economic impact
was seen from a federal level all the way down to the City of Costa Mesa.
As a result of Mesa Water's Board forward thinking, Mesa Water was
able to continue to provide safe, local, and reliable water without any
major cutbacks.

Water Supply

Mesa Water has finished implementation of a long standing goal of
reducing reliance on MWD imported water by increasing production of
local groundwater and developing additional water sources. The
completion of the MWRF in January 2013 has achieved Mesa Water's
goal to provide 100% local and reliable water to its customers.

Mesa Water currently has seven groundwater wells that produce high
quality water at a lower cost than imported water, with two of the wells
associated with the MWRF. The MWRF treats amber groundwater from a
previously unusable aquifer, providing Mesa Water with an additional
potable water source. Amber groundwater from this lower aquifer is more
expensive to produce than clear groundwater produced from the upper
aquifer. However, the treatment cost of amber groundwater is
substantially less expensive than purchasing imported water.

To encourage the use of water production through the MWRF, MWD has
assisted Mesa Water by reimbursing a portion of the costs of treating
amber groundwater. The program used by MWD to reimburse Mesa
Water is the Local Resource Program (LRP) and expands the use of
amber groundwater and thereby reduces the demand on MWD supplies.

Mesa Water has been treating and delivering amber groundwater to
customers since 1985 using a variety of treatment methods. The
expansion and upgrade of the MWRF includes nano-filtration membrane
technology which expanded capacity to treat amber groundwater by
approximately 50% while reducing energy costs by nearly 67%.

In fiscal year 2020, Mesa Water produced approximately 76% of its
potable water supply from clear groundwater and related groundwater
exchange programs, approximately 24% from amber groundwater and
0% from imported water.

Mesa Water also sells recycled water for irrigation purposes. The water
is purchased from OCWD and replaces potable water that would

3



nv

MesaWater

DISTRICT®

otherwise have been used for irrigation. Approximately 6% of total water
supplied to consumers is recycled.

Internal Control Structure

Mesa Water's management is responsible for the establishment and
maintenance of the internal control structure that ensures the assets of
Mesa Water are protected from loss, theft or misuse. The internal control
structure ensures that adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for
the preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Mesa Water's internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes
that the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

Budgetary Control

Mesa Water's Board annually adopts a budget prior to the new fiscal
year. The budget authorizes and provides the basis for reporting and
control of financial operations, accountability for Mesa Water’s enterprise
operations, and capital projects. The budget is presented on the accrual
basis of accounting and is consistent with the presentation of Mesa
Water's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Investment Policy

The Board has adopted an investment policy that conforms to state law,
Mesa Water’s ordinances and resolutions, prudent money management,
and the “prudent person” standards. The objectives of the Statement of
Investment Policy are safety, liquidity and then yield. Currently, funds are
invested in various securities as authorized by Mesa Water's Investment
Policy.

Water Rates and Revenues

Revenue from user charges generated from Mesa Water's customers
support operations. Accordingly, water rates are reviewed every five (5)
years when a Water Rate Schedule is prepared to achieve the Board’s
financial goals. Water rates are user charges imposed on customers for
services and are the primary component of Mesa Water's revenue.
Water rates are composed of a commodity (usage) charge and a fixed
bi-monthly service charge. Mesa Water raised rates by an average of
5% in fiscal year 2020.

Audit and Financial Reporting

State Law and bond covenants require Mesa Water to obtain an annual
audit of its financial statements by an independent Certified Public
Accountant. The accounting firm of Clifton Larson Allen LLP conducted
the audit of Mesa Water's financial statements. Their unmodified
Independent Auditor's Report appears in the Financial Section.

Risk Management

Mesa Water participates in the Association of California Water Agencies

Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA) for the purchase of

workers' compensation, liability, property, automobile, and fidelity

insurance. The typical liability limits are $1 million per incident/occurrence.
4



nv

MesaWater

DISTRICT®

Awards and Acknowledgements

This is the 27th year that Mesa Water is submitting its Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada’s (GFOA) Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting. To be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR. The report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. We believe
that this CAFR meets the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for 2020.

Preparation of this report was accomplished through the combined
efforts of Mesa Water’s staff. We appreciate the dedicated efforts and
professionalism that these staff members contribute to Mesa Water. We
would also like to thank the members of the Board of Directors for their
continued support in planning and implementing Mesa Water District's
fiscal policies.

Respectfully submitted,

/Mar’wan Khalifa, C.P.A.
Mesa Water Chief Financial Officer



Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of

Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Mesa Water District

California

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2019

Chuilophun P- Mot

Executive Director/CEO



|suonesadp

SADINIDS sdiejyy
d331ep

$334n0say S321A098 saey
42Wwolsny 31qnd uewny j_tyue Uy

bBuriasuibug |} SIIINIDG
Y , __ Ieulalxy B annessiunupy

Job6euepy
Jeiduan

943 jo adyo
isbeuepy . J

ledausn
JuelsIssy

jabeuep
jedsuan

S1032341Qg
JO pieog

o1qnd

121481510

1918)\BSBIN

ny



Mesa Water District

District Service Area Map

Satsnid Auw

(TR

i OF
P pty O

-,... =
§

Director James R.

Director/Marice B.
DePasguale :

s [ £ e
3 WA Ry . £
- | - LR
1
gy VMt B = —
e il | v
- s
l /]
]
D. M s 3 _yr"l'l Ch
= wision . (
i o - - A
B (e R N U T — - ."

Fisler g
.-\N'.-J--- \-a— “I.h
| g 3
Wi ‘;’l' ik
| AT
| i £ f
. W oW ann e “'" "'"a%‘ *,.. 4
> .’
b " &
d“ :
'
0 / .
¥ ....::.:.:‘
_— s
Division _ e
e e ‘Division . g &
Director Fli‘ed R. (?) : a . e,
‘Bockmiller - : ey s e
/  Director Shawn i
g ' ane &
1 R, ck‘
3 ;
Pomen R 7 “\
> Yorgua L]
”‘1,11 s = ?
P A Iy 9+ .f'r 5 I
o.;,_"r.& e L & wrt i ,/3-:‘ ‘*‘.
s X ; . - 5% L, z
\ ' . ", Bank Bay (f 3 % bl
% Mewport N Sha o 2 | cew. T4 yid
Besch B o
{ -, n e — POPULATION e
£ "y
B R, iy % -y Division 1 22,460
o iy - Bt Division 2 20,811
i el bt A — | Division 3 21,693
{1 Division Area Number T wa, Division 4 21,453
o 30 A, N Division & 21,841
[ Division Area Boundary i apeq  (mmae
[ Mesa Water Boundary ——" Total Population 107,9 SU
ca : '




Financial Section



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>



P .
{A_U W}:Q CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
§ . J ﬂ CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Mesa Water District
Costa Mesa, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Mesa Water District (the District), as of and for the
years ended June 30,2020 and 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

A member of

Nexia

International



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the District as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Prior-Year Information

The June 30, 2019 financial statements were audited by White Nelson Diehl Evans LLP, whose
practice became part of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP as of November 1, 2020, and whose report
dated November 25, 2019, expressed unmodified opinions on those respective financial
statements of the business-type activities and the aggregate remaining fund information from
which the prior year summarized financial information was derived.

Report on Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension
liability, the schedule of plan contributions - pension, the annual money-weighted rate of return
on investments - OPEB, schedule of changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios, and the
schedule of plan contributions - OPEB, identified as Required Supplementary Information (RSI)
in the accompanying table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the RSI in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section,
supplementary information consisting of the certificates of participation - revenue coverage and
reconciliation of total revenues and total expenses, and the statistical information section, as
listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

10



Other Matters (Continued)

Other Information (Continued)

The supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents, is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section and statistical information section have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we
express no opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 22, 2021, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

WMM%Q L7

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Irvine, California
February 22, 2021

11



Mesa Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

The following discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Mesa Water District
(District/Mesa Water) provides an overview of the District’s financial activities for the year ended
June 30, 2020. This section should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements and
notes to the financial statements, which follows this analysis.

Financial Highlights

e Net position equaled $142.3 million, an increase of $5.0 million or 3.7% from the
prior year. $105.0 million of Net Position was for net investment in capital assets,
$3.3 million was restricted for pension benefits, and the remaining $34.0 million
was unrestricted.

* Total revenues decreased $.1 million or -.4%, primarily due to investment earnings
not being as strong as the prior year.

® Total expenses increased by $4.6 million or 14.9%. This increase is primarily due
to completion of the AAA lease and increased cost for general and administrative
expenses.

e Total Capital Assets increased by $2.2 million due to $7.7 million in net additions
and deletions, offset by depreciation expense of $5.5 million.

e Total debt increased by $66.9 million due to the issuance of the 2020 COPS.

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements: (1) The Statement of Net Position,
(2) Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and (3) Statement of Cash
Flows, all of which together provide information about the activities and performance of the
District using accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies. The report
also contains notes to the financial statements and other supplementary information.

Statement of Net Position includes all of the District’s investments in resources (assets) and the
obligations to creditors (liabilities) and deferred outflows and inflows of resources. It also provides
the basis for computing a rate of return, evaluating the capital structure, and assessing the liquidity
and financial flexibility of the District.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position measures the success of the
District’s operations over the past year and can be used to determine if the District has successfully
recovered all of its costs through its rates and other charges. The statement can be used to evaluate
profitability and credit worthiness.

Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the District’s cash receipts, cash payments
and changes in cash resulting from operations, investments, and financing activities.

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements.

Other Information includes required supplementary information.

12



Mesa Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Financial Analysis of the District

The following condensed schedules contain summary financial information extracted from the
basic financial statements to assist general readers in evaluating the District’s overall financial
position and results of operations as described in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). Increases or decreases in these schedules can be used as performance indicators to
assess whether the District’s overall financial position has improved or deteriorated. Other
external factors such as changes in economic conditions, customer growth, weather conditions and
legislative mandates as well as changes in Federal and State water quality standards should also
be considered as part of this assessment.

13



Mesa Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Statement of Net Position

The Statement of Net Position reflects the District’s financial position as of June 30. The statement
includes assets, deferred outflow of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. The
Net Position represents the District’s net worth including, but not limited to, capital contributions

and investments in capital assets. A condensed summary of the District’s total Net Position as of
June 30 is set forth below:

2020 2019 Change %6 Change
Assets and Deferred Outflows:
Current assets S 43.480.675 39,071,466 4409209 113%
Non-current assets 80,333,395 13.539.195 66,996 200 494 8%
Capital and intangible assets, net 134,931,458 132,676.394 2.255.064 1.7%
Total Assets 258,947 528 185.287.053 73,660473 39.8%%
Deferred charges on debt refundings 614,618 744,011 (129.393) -174%
Deferred amounts from OPEB & pension plans 2.792.143 2,725,430 66,713 24%
Total Deferred Cutflows 3,406,761 3.469 441 (62,680) -1.8%
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows $ 262354289 188.756.496 73.597.793 39.0%
Liabilities:
Current liabilities s 12526475 11.754.326 772,149 6.5%
Non-current liabilities 106,285 305 38.736,245 67.549.560 174.4%
Total Liabilities 118.812280 30,490,571 68,321,709 1333%
Deferred Inflow of Resources - Actuarial 1,177,050 940,772 236.278 251%
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 112989330 51,431,343 68,557,987 1333%
Net position:
Net Investment in capital assets 103,042,348 102275574 2,766,774 2. 1%
Restncted for pension benefits 3,383 344 4.814.662 (1.431.318)
Unrestricted 33,939267 30234017 3.704.350 123%
Total Net Position 142 364,050 137,325,153 5,039 806 3.7%
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows, and Net position § 262354280 188.756.496 75.597.793 39.0%

The District’s total Assets and Deferred Outflows exceeded total liabilities and Deferred Inflows
by $142.3 million and $137.3 million as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The largest single component of the District’s Net Position (74% and 75% for June 30, 2020 and
2019, respectively) reflect the District’s net investment in capital assets. The District uses these
capital assets to provide services to customers within the District’s service area. Consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District showed a positive balance in its Unrestricted Net
position of $33.9 million and $30.2 million, respectively.

Of the $106.2 million of non-current liabilities, $70.3 million is attributed to the issuance of the
2020 COPS. The net pension liability accounts for $11.5 million of the balance. This amount
does not include a CalPERS defined benefit pension plan trust with PARS (Pension Trust) in the
amount of $13.2 million for fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The PARS trust is legally restricted
to providing benefits for members of the defined benefit pension plan. However, in accordance
with GASB 68, the asset balance is not included in calculation of the net pension liability above.

14



Mesa Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position summarizes the District’s
operations during the fiscal year. A summary of the District’s changes in Net Position for the fiscal
years ended June 30 is presented below:

2020 2019 Change % Change
Revenues
Operating revenues 5 36,724.890 36,167,873 557,015 1.5%
Non-operating revermies 1.263_866 1,963,165 (699.299) -33.6%
Total Revenues 37,988,756 38.131.040 (142.284) 04%
Expenses:
Operating expenses (not including deprec.) 27238151 25247473 1,990,678 7.9%
Depreciation and amortization 5.517326 3,153,612 361714 7.0%
Non-operating expenses 3.277.881 948,417 2329464 245.6%
Total Expenses 36,033,338 31.351.502 4 681,856 14.9%
Net income before contributions 1.955.398 6,779,538 (4.824,140) “N2%
Capital Contributions 3.084 408 1917078 1.167.330 60.9%
Change in Net Position 5,039,806 8,696,616 (3.636,810) 42.0%
Net Position. beginning of year 137325153 128,628,537 8,696,616 6.8%
Net Position. end of year 5 142 364 959 137,325,153 5,039,806 3. 7%

The District’s Net Position increased by $5.0 million for the year ended June 30, 2020, while for
the year ended June 30, 2019, Net Position increased by $8.7 million.

15



Mesa Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Total District Revenues

2020 2019 Change % Change

Water sales S 26.913.077 25910454 1,002,623 319%
Meter service charges 7,870,740 7511573 359,163 4.8%
Recycled water sales 1,250,603 1,119.273 131332 11.7%
Concessions from govemmental agencies 163,601 1,226,127 (1.062.436) -86.6%
Other charges and services 326,777 400,445 126,331 315%
Total Operating Revenues 36,724,890 36.167 873 557,015 15%
Investment eamings 1,255,743 1.872.020 (616277) -329%
Gain on sale/disposition of capital assets, net 8.123 = 8123 " 100.0%
Other nonoperating revenue, net - 91.145 (91.145) -100.0%%
Total Non-operating reveniles 1,263,866 1.963.163 (699.299) -33.6%

Total Revemies L3 37.988.756 38,131,040 (142.284) 0.4%

The District’s operating revenues totaled $36.7 million in fiscal year 2020. This represents an
increase of $0.5 million or 1.5% from the prior year. The increase in total operating revenue was a
result of $0.4 million increase in meter service charges and $0.1 million increase in recycled water
sales. There was a $1.0 million decrease in concessions from governmental agencies due to the
Coastal Pumping Transfer Program (CPTP) being significantly reduced. These decreases were
offset by water sales as a result of increases in the rate.

The vast majority of the decrease in non-operating revenues reflects lower investment earnings.

16



Mesa Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Total District Expenses

2020 2019 Change % Change

Import source of supply 3 507.008 368,722 138,286 375%
Basin managed water 659,666 2,628,097 (1.968.431) -74.9%
Clear welt production 6,760.158 5.433,136 1.307.022 24.0%
Amber well production 3,158,924 2970494 188.430 63%
Recycled water 861,521 758,122 103399 13.6%
Total Water Supply 11847277 12,178,571 (231.204) -1.9%
Transmission and distribution 6.020.490 5479178 341,312 99%
General and administrative 9270384 7.589.724 1,680,660 22.1%
Depreciation and amortization 5.517.326 5,155,612 361,714 10%
Total Operating Expense 32755477 30.403,083 2352392 7.7%

Interest expense - long-tecm debt 964,979 945513 19.466 21%
Loss on sale/disposition of capital assets, net - 2,904 (2.904) -100.0%
Bond Issuance Costs 322473 - 322473 100.0%
Other nonoperating expense, net 1.990 429 - 1.990 429 0.0%
Total Nonoperating Expenses 3.277.881 948 417 2329 464 243.6%

Total Expenses 3 36,033338 31,351,502 4681836 14.9%

The District’s total expenses increased by $4.6 million or 14.9%. This increase primarily due to
additional spending in general and administrative expenses, and an increase in total pension
expense.

For non-operating expenses, issuance cost of the 2020 COPS and payoff of the AAA lease are the
main reasons for the $2.3 million increase.

17



Capital Assets

Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Mesa Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Balance Transfers/ Balance
2¢19 Additions Deletions 2020
19.058.171 71.772.390 (1,683.631) 25.146.930
199309727 1,683,631 (33.467)  200.959.891
(85,691.504) (5.517326) 33.467 (91,175.363)
132.676.394 3.938.695 (1,683.631) 134,93 1.458

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District’s investment in capital assets amounted to $134.9
million and $132.7 million, respectively, net of accumulated depreciation, resulting in a net
increase of $2.2 million. Capital additions to depreciable assets were $1.7 million in fiscal year
2020. Depreciation was up slightly by $0.4 million in comparison to the prior year. Please refer to
Note 3, Capital Assets, in the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

2017 Series COPS
2020 Senes COPS

Total long-term debt

Balance Payments/ Balance
2019 Additions Deletions 2020
30277.774 - (3.354.390) 26,923 384
- 70,331,984 (40,131) 70291 853
$ 30277.714 70.331,984 (3.394,521) 97215237

As of June 30, 2020, the District had total outstanding debt of $97.2 million, which was an increase
of $66.9 million from the prior fiscal year. The increase was due to the issuance of the 2020 COPS.
Please refer to Note 6, Long-Term Debt in the accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements.

18



Mesa Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, ratepayers,
stakeholders, and other interested parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations
and financial condition. Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in
this report or wish to request additional financial information, please contact the District at 1965
Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, California 92627-3420 or call (949) 574-1022.

19



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>



Basic Financial Statements



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2020 and 2019
ASSETS: 2020 2019
Current Assets:
Cash and investments (note 2) $ 35,006,268 $ 31,909,778
Accrued interest receivable 62,143 127,282
Accounts receivable, net 7,790,817 6,630,184
Materials and supplies inventory 316,434 199,110
Deposits and prepaid items 305,013 205,112
Total current assets 43,480,675 39,071,466
Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted - cash and investments held by fiscal agent (note 2) 67,336,195 734
Restricted - cash and investments held by pension trust (note 2) 13,188,800 13,528,061
Other noncurrent assets 10,400 10,400
Capital assets, not being depreciated (note 3) 25,146,930 19,058,171
Depreciable capital assets, net (note 3) 109,784,528 113,618,223
Total noncurrent assets 215,466,853 146,215,589
TOTAL ASSETS 258,947,528 185,287,055
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Unamortized loss on bond defeasance 614,618 744,011
Deferred amounts from OPEB plan (note 5) 252,135 103,882
Deferred amounts from pension plans (note 10) 2,540,008 2,621,548
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 3,406,761 3,469,441
LIABILITIES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 6,116,151 5,290,008
Accrued wages and related payables 263,323 126,277
Customer advances and deposits 2,209,544 2,813,977
Accrued interest payable 529,048 377,198
Long-term liabilities - due within one year:
Current portion of compensated absences (note 4) 433,409 361,866
Current portion of certificates of participation payable (note 6) 2,975,000 2,785,000
Total current liabilities 12,526,475 11,754,326
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities - due in more than one year:
Compensated absences (note 4) 108,352 90,467
Net OPEB liability (note 5) 410,849 686,259
Net pension liability (note 10) 11,526,367 10,466,745
Certificates of participation payable (note 6) 94,240,237 27,492,774
Total noncurrent liabilities 106,285,805 38,736.245
TOTAL LIABILITIES 118,812,280 50,490,571
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amounts from OPEB plan (note 5) 357,953 72,570
Deferred amounts from pension plans (note 10) 819,097 868.202
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 1,177,050 940,772
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets (note 7) 105,042,348 102,275,574
Restricted for pension benefits 3,383,344 4,814,662
Unrestricted 33,939,267 30,234,917
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 142.364,959 $ 137.325.153

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

20



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

OPERATING REVENUES:
Water consumption sales
Monthly meter service charge
Recycled water sales
Concessions from governmental agencies
Other charges and services
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Imported sources of supply
Basin managed water
Clear water
Amber water
Recycled water
Transmission and distribution
Depreciation and amortization
General and administrative
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment earnings
Interest expense - long-term debt
Gain (loss) on sale/disposition of capital assets, net
Bond issuance costs
Other nonoperating, net
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
Capacity and installation charges
Capital grant
Developers and others
TOTAL CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
TOTAL NET POSITION - beginning of year

TOTAL NET POSITION - end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

2020 2019
$ 26913,077 $ 25910454
7,870,740 7,511,575
1,250,605 1,119,273
163,691 1,226,127
526,777 400,446
36,724,890 36,167,875
507,008 368,722
659,666 2,628,097
6,760,158 5,453,136
3,158,924 2,970,494
861,521 758,122
6,020,490 5,479,178
5,517,326 5,155,612
9,270,384 7,589,724
32,755,477 30,403,085
3,969,413 5,764,790
1,255,743 1,872,020
(964,979) (945,513)
8,123 (2,904)
(322,473) -
(1,990,429) 91,145
(2,014,015) 1,014,748
1,955,398 6,779,538
1,297,240 860,855
584,091 554,095
1,203,077 502,128
3,084,408 1,917,078
5,039,806 8,696,616
137,325,153 128,628,537

$ 142,364,959

$ 137,325,153




MESA WATER DISTRICT

Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales and services
Cash paid to employees for salaries and wages
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND

RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from capacity and installation charges
Principal proceeds from 2020 certificates of participation
Premium proceeds from 2020 certificates of participation
Bond issuance costs
Proceeds from capital grants
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Net cash provided by (used for) capital
and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Payment to PARS Pension Trust

Payment to PARS OPEB Trust

Earnings on PARS Pension Trust used to purchase
investments, net of $66,170 and $64,636 of administrative fees
as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively

Investment earnings

Proceeds from sale of investments

Purchase of investments

Net cash used for investing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

22

2020

2019

$ 35,474,198

$ 35,681,795

(8,741,314) (8,106,587)
(18,698,097) (17,551,282)
8,034,787 10,023,926
(6,569,313) (10,661,395)
782,866 773,706
55,985,000 -
14,346,984 -
(322,473) "
584,091 554,095
(2,785,000) (2,605,000)
(1,293,258) (1,423,500)
8,123 3,580
60,737,020 (13,358,514)
- (1,000,000)
(110,000) .
(178,051) (780,980)
549,809 410,802
13,312,113 2,991,687
(7,999,463) (3,996,182)
5,574,408 (2,374,673)
74,346,215 (5,709,261)
9,822,834 15,532,095
$ 84,169.049 $ 9.8223834
(Continued)



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019
(with prior-year comparative totals)

2020 2019

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income $ 3,969,413 $ 5,764,790
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,517,326 5,155,612
Other nonoperating revenue (expense) (1,476,055) 178,294
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (1,160,633) (447,235)
(Increase) decrease in materials and supplies inventory (117,324) 13,136
(Increase) decrease in deposits and prepaid expenses (99,901) 50,608
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows for OPEB plan (148,253) (5,882)
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows for pension plans 81,540 483,251
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued expenses 826,143 (652,662)
Increase (decrease) in customer advances and deposits (604,433) (125,994)
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 89,428 25,984
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and related payables 137,046 20,009
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB liability (275,410) 1,625
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability 1,059,622 (167,217)
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows for OPEB plan 285,383 11,138
Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows for pension plans (49,105) (281,531)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES § 8,034,787 $ 10,023,926

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Amortization of loss on bond defeasance $ 129,393 $ 129,393
Amortization of long-term debt premiums $ 609,521 $ 569,390
Developer constructed facilities $ 1,203,077 $ 502,128
Change in fair value of investments $ 509,998 $ 597,849
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS TO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:
Cash and investments $ 35,006,268 $ 31,909,778
Restricted cash and investments 80,524,995 13,528,795
Less: noncash equivalents (31,362,214) (35,615,739)
Cash and cash equivalents $§  84.169,049 $ 9.822.834

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

23



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan

June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
ASSETS:
Restricted cash and investments held by trust $ 1,442,823 1,312,312
TOTAL ASSETS 1,442 823 1,312,312
NET POSITION:
Net position restricted for OPEB benefits 1,442,823 1,312,312
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 1,442,823 1312312

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

24



Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan

ADDITIONS:
Employer contributions
Investment income
TOTAL ADDITIONS
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits
Administrative expense
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - beginning of year

NET POSITION - end of year

MESA WATER DISTRICT

Year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
204,212 97,603
27,415 81,002
231,627 178,605
94,212 97,603
6,904 6,279
101,116 103,882
130,511 74,723
1,312,312 1,237,589
1,442,823 1312312

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

25



(D

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Description of the District

Mesa Water District (District) is an independent special district formed on January 1, 1960,
pursuant to Section 33200 et. seq., of the California Water Code, which was designated the
Costa Mesa District Merger Law. The general provisions of this law called for the
consolidation of four predecessor agencies.

The District is located in Orange County, California and provides water to the City of Costa
Mesa, parts of the City of Newport Beach, and unincorporated parts of Orange County,
including the John Wayne Airport. Mesa Water sells water at a “pass-through” cost to the
City of Huntington Beach through a jointly owned pipeline for which the City of
Huntington Beach contributes 41.4% of the operation and maintenance costs. Amounts
received from this agreement are netted against the costs to result in only the District’s cost
remaining.

The District’s potable water is produced from groundwater wells or purchased from the
Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC), a member agency of the
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD). Non-potable (recycled) water
is purchased from the Orange County Water District (OCWD).

The District’s revenue results solely from its activities as a water utility and it does not
receive tax revenues of any kind.

The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors (Board) who serve
overlapping four-year terms. Each member of the Board represents one of five geographic
divisions of approximately equal population. The Board periodically elects one of its
members to serve as President and another as Vice-President. The Board appoints the
General Manager who is responsible for the day-to-day operations and the administration
of the District in accordance with its policies. The Board also appoints the District
Secretary, Assistant District Secretary, District Treasurer, and Assistant District Treasurer.

The District is the primary governmental unit based on the foundation of a separately
elected governing board that is elected by the citizens in a general popular election.
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the
primary government are financially accountable.

Mesa Water District Improvement Corporation (Corporation) was incorporated in
March 1988. The Corporation is a California non-profit public benefit corporation formed
to assist in the financing of certain improvements to the District’s water system and as such
has no employees or other operations. The Corporation meets the definition of a component
unit, and would be presented on a blended basis, since it is part of the primary government;
however, since the Corporation has no activity, no financial information has been included
in these financial statements.

26



(1

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - Proprietary Fund

Although the Corporation is a legally separate entity, the governing board is comprised of
the same membership as the District’s Board. The District may impose its will on the
Corporation and there is a financial benefit/burden relationship between the District and
the Corporation. The Corporation does not issue separate financial statements and does not
have any activity for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.

The District is accounted for as an enterprise fund (proprietary fund type). A fund is an
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts established to record the net position
and results of operations of a specific governmental activity. The activities of enterprise
funds closely resemble those of ongoing business in which the purpose is to conserve and
add to basic resources while meeting operating expenses from current revenues. Enterprise
funds account for operations that provide services on a continuous basis and are
substantially financed by revenues derived from user charges.

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable
measurement focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of
resources being measured such as current financial resources or economic resources. The
basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the
financial statements.

The accompanying financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the economic measurement
Sfocus, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources (whether current or noncurrent) associated with these activities are included on
the statement of net position. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under
the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of timing of related cash flows.

The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with water operations. The principal operating
revenues of the District are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses
include cost of sales and services, general and administrative expenses, and depreciation
of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses. Capital contributions are reported as a separate line
item in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and consist of
contributed capital assets, grants, and other charges that are legally restricted for capital
expenditures by state law or by Board action that established those charges.

27



(1

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting - Fiduciary Fund

The fiduciary fund financial statements include the statement of fiduciary net position and
the statement of changes in fiduciary net position. The District’s fiduciary other
post-employment benefits (OPEB) trust fund is accounted for using the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. The OPEB trust fund
accounts for the activities of the District’s plan for post-retirement medical benefits.

New Pronouncements

Current Year Standards - GASB No. 95

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of
Certain Authority Guidance, which was effective immediately. This Statement provided
temporary relief to governments and other stakeholders in light of the COVID-19 pandemic
and postponed the effective dates of certain provisions in Statements and Implementation
Guides that first became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2018, and later.

Current Year Standards - GASB No. 97

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97 — Certain Component Unit Criteria, and
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation Plans—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a
supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. Paragraph 4 of this Statement requires that for
purposes of determining whether a primary government is financially accountable for a
potential component unit, except for a potential component unit that is a defined
contribution pension plan, a defined contribution OPEB plan, or an other employee benefit
plan (for example, certain Section 457 plans), the absence of a governing board should be
treated the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform. Paragraph
5 of this Statement also requires that the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of
Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, be applicable to only defined benefit pension plans
and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the criteria
in paragraph 3 of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, or paragraph
3 of Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pension Plans, respectively.

The requirements of these paragraphs did not impact the District.

28



(D

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

New Pronouncements (Continued)

Pending Accounting Standards - GASB No. 84

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84 — Fiduciary Activities. This Statement
establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments.
The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets
of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists.
Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary component units and postemployment
benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities. An activity meeting the criteria should
be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements.

This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary
fund when an event has occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary
resources. Events that compel a government to disburse fiduciary resources occur when a
demand for the resources has been made or when no further action, approval, or condition
is required to be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the assets. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, early
application is encouraged.

Pending Accounting Standards - GASB No. 87

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87 — Leases. This statement requires recognition
of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating
leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the
payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based
on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying
asset for leases with a term of more than 12 months. Under this Statement, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor
is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing
activities. For leases with a term of 12 months or less, lessees and lessors should recognize
short-term lease payments as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, respectively,
based on the payment provisions of the lease contract. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021, early application is
encouraged.

29



(D

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

New Pronouncements (Continued)

Pending Accounting Standards - GASB No. 92

In January 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 92 — Omnibus 2020. This Statement
addresses practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application
of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics including issues
related to leases, fiduciary activities, measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related
to asset retirement obligations (AROs) in a government acquisition, reporting by public
entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers or €xcess insurers,
reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative
literature and terminology used to refer to derivative instruments.

The requirements of this Statement are effective as follows:

e The requirements related to the effective date of Statement 87 and Implementation
Guide 2019-3, reinsurance recoveries, and terminology used to refer to derivative
instruments are effective upon issuance.

e The requirements related to intra-entity transfers of assets and those related to the
applicability of Statements 73 and 74 are effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2021.

e The requirements related to application of Statement 84 to postemployment benefit
arrangements and those related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets
or liabilities are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.

e The requirements related to the measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any)
associated with AROs in a government acquisition are effective for government
acquisitions occurring in reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.

Pending Accounting Standards - GASB No. 96

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96 — Subscription-Based Information
Technology Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and
financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs)
for government end users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2)
establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—
and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for
outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and
(4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. The requirements of this Statement are
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,2022, and all reporting periods thereafter.
Early application is encouraged. Assets and liabilities resulting from SBITAs should be
recognized and measured using the facts and circumstances that existed at the beginning
of the fiscal year in which this Statement is implemented.

30



(1)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

New Pronouncements (Continued)

Pending Accounting Standards - GASB No. 97

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97 — Certain Component Unit Criteria, and
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred
Compensation Plans—an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a
supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. This Statement requires that a Section 457 plan
be classified as either a pension plan or an other employee benefit plan depending on
whether the plan meets the definition of a pension plan and clarifies that Statement 84, as
amended, should be applied to all arrangements organized under IRC Section 457 to
determine whether those arrangements should be reported as fiduciary activities.

This Statement supersedes the remaining provisions of Statement No. 32, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation
Plans, as amended, regarding investment valuation requirements for Section 457 plans. As
aresult, investments of all Section 457 plans should be measured as of the end of the plan’s
reporting period in all circumstances.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2021. Earlier application of those requirements is encouraged and permitted.

Net Position

In the statement of net position, net position is classified into the following categories:
Net investment in capital assets - This amount consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of the assets.

Restricted net position - This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. The District’s restricted net
position reflects the restricted - cash held by pension trust offset by corresponding pension

deferred outflows and inflows of resources and the net pension liability.

Unrestricted net position - This amount is all net position that do not meet the definition
of “net investment in capital assets”.

31



(D

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Position Flow Assumption

Sometimes the District will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.,
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the financial
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the District’s policy to consider restricted net position to have
been depleted before unrestricted net position is applied except in the case of restricted
pension net position for which the District will specifically identify annual amounts to be
utilized from the pension trust to fund the annual required payments for the net pension
liability.

Budgetary Policies

The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and
evaluation purposes. Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparison of actual
revenue and expense with planned revenue and expense for the period. Encumbrance
accounting is not used to account for commitments related to unperformed contracts for
construction and services.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District considers all highly liquid investments that were purchased with a maturity of
three months or less to be cash equivalents, except for the cash held with fiscal agent.

Investments and Investment Policy

Investments are reported in the accompanying financial statements at fair value, which is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The District has adopted
an investment policy directing the District’s Treasurer to deposit funds in financial
institutions. Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as
investment income reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest
earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale
of investments.

Accounts Receivable

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When
management deems customer accounts uncollectible, the District uses the allowance
method for the reservation and write-off of those accounts. '

32



(D

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets are financial resources generated for a specific purpose such as capital
projects, debt service, pension, or other post-employment benefits. These assets are for the
benefit of a specified purpose and, as such, are legally or contractually restricted by an
external third-party agreement.

Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting
periods and are recorded as deposits and prepaid items in the basic financial statements
utilizing the consumption method.

Material and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory consists primarily of pipe fittings, meters, and hydrants
used for construction and repairs to the water system, which are valued at cost. The first-in
first-out (FIFO) perpetual cost flow assumption is used when inventory is expensed or
capitalized the time of use.

Capital and Intangible Assets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy
has set the capitalization threshold for capitalizing purchases at $5,000 for both
infrastructure and non-infrastructure assets. Donated assets are recorded at acquisition
value at the date of donation. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the cost
and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective balances and any
gains or losses are recognized. Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Useful Life
Land improvements 15 - 50 years
Buildings and improvements 10 - 50 years
Machinery and equipment 4 - 10 years
Transmission and distribution system 10 - 99 years
Metering stations 10 - 99 years
Wells and pumping plant 5 -50 years
Reservoirs 50 -75 years
Control systems 4 - 20 years

33



(D

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Compensated Absences

The District’s personnel policies provide for accumulation of vacation. Liabilities for
vacation are recorded when benefits are earned. Cash payment of unused vacation is
available to those qualified employees when retiring or separating from the District.

Customer Advances and Deposits

Customer advances include deposits received in aid of construction, which are partially
refundable if the applicable construction does not take place. Construction advances are
transferred to contributed capital when the applicable construction project is completed.

Customer advances also include fees received for installation and inspection services for
which the District has yet to provide the service. Revenue is recognized when the service
is provided and any deposit remaining at the conclusion of the service is refunded to the

customer.

Customer deposits may be collected at the time water service is initiated. Deposits may be
applied to customer accounts or refunded at the time an account is closed.

Water Sales
The majority of water sales are billed on a bi-monthly cyclical basis. Large meter customers
and high consumption users are billed on a monthly basis. Estimated unbilled water sales

and service charges through June 30™ have been accrued as of year-end.

Capital Contributions

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District
by property owners, granting agencies or real estate developers desiring services that
require capital expenditures or capacity commitment.

Capacity Charges

The District recognizes revenue from capacity charges at the time the deposits become
non-refundable, which is when the relevant system actually connects to the District’s
potable water system.

34



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The District has the
following items that qualify for reporting in this category:

® Anunamortized loss on bond defeasance results from the difference in the carrying
value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

e Deferred outflows related to pensions and OPEB equal to employer contributions
made after the measurement date of the net pension and OPEB liabilities.

e Deferred outflows related to pensions for differences between actual and expected
experiences. These amounts are amortized over a closed period equal to the
average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided
with pensions through the plans.

e Deferred outflows from pensions and OPEB resulting from changes in
assumptions. These amounts are amortized over a closed period equal to the
average expected remaining services lives of all employees that are provided with
pensions and OPEB through the plans.

* Deferred outflows related to pensions resulting from the net difference in projected
and actual earnings on investments of the pension plan fiduciary net position.
These amounts are amortized over five years.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement clement, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will
not be recognized as inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has the
following items that qualify for reporting in this category:

e Deferred inflows related to pensions and OPEB for differences between actual and
expected experiences. These amounts are amortized over a closed period equal to
the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are
provided with pensions and OPEB through the plans.

e Deferred inflows related to pensions and OPEB resulting from the net difference
in projected and actual earnings on investments of the pension and OPEB plan
fiduciary net position. These amounts are amortized over five years.

¢ Deferred inflows related to pensions from changes in assumptions and changes in
employer’s proportion and differences between the employer’s contributions and
the employer’s proportionate share of contributions. These amounts are amortized
over a closed period equal to the average expected remaining services lives of all
employees that are provided with pensions through the plans.

35



(D

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) plan
(Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
CalPERS audited financial statements are publicly available reports that can be obtained at
CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.

GASB 68 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information
within certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

2020 2019
Valuation Date (VD) June 30,2018 June 30, 2017
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

Measurement Period (MP) June 30, 2018 to June 30,2019  June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018

OPEB Plan

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District’s OPEB plan and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the
OPEB plan. For this purpose, the District’s OPEB plan recognizes benefit payments when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources, revenues, and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

36



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(D) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the June 30, 2019 financial statements have been reclassified for
comparative purposes to conform to the presentation in the June 30, 2020 financial
statements. There was no change in reported net income or net position related to these

reclassifications.

2) Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, are classified in the financial

statements as follows:

2020 2019
Statements of Net Position:
Cash and investments $ 35,006,268 $ 31,909,778
Restricted cash and investments 80,524,995 13,528,795
Fiduciary Statements of Net Position:
Restricted cash and investments 1,442,823 1,312,312
Total for proprietary and
fiduciary funds $ 116,974,086 $ 46,750,885

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, consist of the following:

2020 2019

Petty cash $ 14,500 $ 4,500

Deposits with financial institutions 14,018,894 6,120,675

Total cash 14,033,394 6,125,175

Investments 20,972,874 25,784,603
Restricted:

Investments held by fiscal agent 67,336,195 734

Investments held by pension trust 13,188,800 13,528,061

Investments held by OPEB trust 1,442,823 1,312,312

Total investments 102,940,692 40,625,710

Total cash and investments $ 116,974,086 $ 46,750,885

37




)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment

Policy

The following table identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in
accordance with the California Government Code (or the District’s Investment Policy,
where more restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions of the California
Government Code (or the District’s Investment Policy, where more restrictive) that address
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. This table does not address
investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of
debt agreements of the District or the investments of funds within the pension or OPEB
Trust that are governed by the agreement between the District and the trustee, rather than
the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s Investment

Policy.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment

Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio  in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
State of California Obligations 5 years None None
Other State Obligations 5 years None None
California Local Agency Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Bankers’ Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Prime Commercial paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% g
Repurchase Agreements 1 year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 20% o
Medium-term notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money market mutual funds N/A 20% 10%
Trust Indenture or Other Contract Per Contract Per Contract Per Contract
Collateralized Bank Deposits 5 years None None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 10% None
Shares of beneficial interest in JPA’s N/A None None
Certificates of Deposits 5 years 30% None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None $50 million
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Time Deposits 5 years None *

* Subject to FDIC limits
** Of Base

The District’s investment policy mirrors the California Government Code except for
mortgage pass-through securities. The District’s policy is more restrictive than the
California Government Code as investments in mortgage pass-through securities shall not
exceed 10% of the portfolio.

38



2)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
District’s Investment Policy.

Pension and OPEB Trusts

Investment Policy

The District established a trust account with Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS)
to hold assets that are legally restricted for use in administering the District’s pension and
OPEB plans. The pension and OPEB trust Funds® specific cash and investments are
managed by a third-party portfolio manager under guidelines approved by the District.

Those guidelines are as follows:
Risk Tolerance: Capital Appreciation

Risk Management: The portfolio is constructed to control risk
through four layers of diversification - asset
classes (cash, fixed income, equity), investment
styles (large cap, small cap, international, value,
growth), managers and securities. Disciplined
mutual fund selection and monitoring process
help to drive return potential while reducing
portfolio risk.

Investment Objective: The primary goal of the capital appreciation
objective is growth of principal. The major
portion of the assets are invested in equity
securities and market fluctuations are expected.

Strategic Ranges: 0% - 20% Cash
10% - 30% Fixed Income
65% - 85% Equity

Rate of Return

For the year ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the annual money-weighted rate of return on
investments, net of investment expense, was 1.97% and 6.56%, respectively. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense,
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

39



@)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Investment in State Investment Pool and County Investment Pool

The District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the
State of California. The District is also a voluntary participant in the Orange County
Investment Pool (OCIP) that is regulated by California Government Code and the Orange
County Board of Supervisors under the oversight of the Orange County Treasurer-Tax
Collector. The fair value of the District’s investments in these pools is reported in the
accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of
the fair value provided by LAIF and OCIP for each respective portfolio (in relation to the
amortized cost of that portfolio).The balance available for withdrawal is based on the
accounting records maintained by LAIF and OCIP, which are recorded on an amortized
cost basis.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a governmental entity will not be able to recover its deposits or will
not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a governmental entity will not be able to
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to
direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local
government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual funds or
government investment pools (such as LAIF and OCIP).

The California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy do not contain legal
or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or
investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The California Government
Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or local
governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a
depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit), and, the
District’s investment policy that requires no more than two-thirds of the District’s deposits
in a depository shall be collateralized by mortgage-backed securities, with the remainder
to be secured by non-mortgage-backed securities.

The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110%
of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows financial
institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a
value of 150% of the secured public deposits. Bank balances, up to $250,000 at
June 30, 2020 and 2019 are either federally insured or collateralized in accordance with the
Code; however, the collateralized securities are not held in the District’s name.

40



@

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment the greater
the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. In accordance with its
Investment Policy, the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a
combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from
maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing over time as necessary to provide
the cash flows and liquidity needed for operations. Information about the sensitivity of the
fair values of the District’s investments (including investments held by bond trustee) to
market interest rate fluctuations is provided in the following tables that shows the

distribution of the District’s investments by maturity as of June 30, 2020 and 2019.

June 30, 2020:

12 Months 13t0 24 25-60
Investment Type Total Or Less Months Months
Local agency investment pool $ 1,073 § 1,073 § -3 -
Orange County investment pool 2,798,964 2,798,964 - %
Federal agency securities:
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 1,276,858 - - 1,276,858
Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) 1,027,175 " 514,755 512,420
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 2,584,165 - 767,835 1,816,330
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC) 1,749,427 - - 1,749,427
Federal Agricultural Mortgage
Corporation (FAMC) 1,077,865 - - 1,077,865
Negotiable certificates of deposit 10,457,347 495,025 3,495,318 6,467,004
Held by fiscal agent:
Money market mutual funds 577 577 - -
Held by Pension Trust:
Money market mutual finds 461,632 461,632 - -
Mutual Funds 12,727,168 12,727,168 - -
Held by OPEB Trust:
Money market mutual fimds 53,591 53,591 - -
Mutual Funds 1,389,232 1,389,232 - -
Total $ 35605074 $ 17927262 $ 4777908 $ 12,899,904

41



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(2) Cash and Investments (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

June 30, 2019:

12 Months 13t024 25-60
Investment Type Total Or Less Months Months
Local agency investment pool $ 1,049 $ 1,049 $ - § -
Orange County investment pool 3,696,610 3,696,610 - -
Federal agency securities:
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 3,679,598 - 3,679,598 -
Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) 6,130,019 1,145,539 . 4,984,480
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 2,241,007 448,697 = 1,792,310
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC) 2,959,287 998,610 - 1,960,677
Federal Agricultural Mortgage
Corporation (FAMC) 521,405 - - 521,405
Negotiable certificates of deposit 6,555,628 492226 1,178,938 4,884,464
Held by fiscal agent:
Money market mutual finds 734 734 - -
Held by Pension Trust:
Money market mutual finds 232,194 232,194 - -
Mutual Funds 13,295,867 13,295,867 ~ -
Held by OPEB Trust:
Money market mutual funds 19,574 19,574 - -
Mutual Funds 1,292,738 1,292,738 - -
Total $ 40625710 $ 21623838 § 4858536 $ 14,143,336

42



)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the minimum
rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the District’s
Investment Policy, or debt agreements, and the actual ratings by Standard & Poor’s as of
year-end for each investment type for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.

June 30, 2020:

Investment Type AAA AA+ Not Rated Total
Local agency investment pool $ - 5 - 3 1,073 § 1,073
Orange County investment pool 2,798,964 = - 2,798,964
Federal agency securities:
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) - 1,276,858 - 1,276,858
Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) - 1,027,175 - 1,027,175
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) - 2,584,165 - 2,584,165
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC) - 1,749,427 - 1,749,427
Federal Agricultural Mortgage
Corporation (FAMC) s 1,077,865 - 1,077,865
Negotiable certificates of deposit - - 10,457,347 10,457,347
Held by fiscal agent:
Money market mutual funds 577 - - 577
Held by Pension Trust:
Money market mutual funds 461,632 - - 461,632
Mutual Funds - - 12,727,168 12,727,168
Held by OPEB Trust:
Money market mutual funds 53,591 - - 53,591
Mutual Funds - - 1,389,232 1,389,232
Total $ 3,314,764 § 7,715,490 § 24,574,820 $§ 35,605,074

43



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2) Cash and Investments (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk (Continued)

June 30, 2019:

Investment Type AAA AA+ Not Rated Total
Local agency investment pool $ - 3 -3 1,049 1,049
Orange County investment pool = - 3,696,610 3,696,610
Federal agency securities:
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) - 3,679,598 - 3,679,598
Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) - 6,130,019 : 6,130,019
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) - 2,241,007 - 2,241,007
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC) - 2,959,287 - 2,959,287
Federal Agricultural Mortgage
Corporation (FAMC) - 521,405 - 521,405
Negotiable certificates of deposit - - 6,555,628 6,555,628
Held by fiscal agent:
Money market mutual funds 734 - - 734
Held by Pension Trust:
Money market mutual fnds 232,194 - . 232,194
Mutual Funds - - 13,295,867 13,295,867
Held by OPEB Trust:
Money market mutual finds 19,574 - - 19,574
Mutual Funds - 1,292,738 1,292,738
Total $ 252502 $ 15531316 $ 24,841,892 40,625,710

44



@

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk (Continued)

Investments in any one issuer (other than external investment pools, such as LAIF, OCIP,
and the pension and OPEB trusts) that represent 5% or more of total District investments
(excluding investments held by fiscal agent, held by pension trust, and held by OPEB trust)
are as follows for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019:

June 30, 2020:

Issuer Investment Type Amount
FFCB Federal Agency Securities $ 1,276,858
FHLB Federal Agency Securities 2,584,165
FHLMC Federal Agency Securities 1,749,427
FAMC Federal Agency Securities 1.077.865

$ 6688315
June 30, 2019:

Issuer Investment Type Amount
FFCB Federal Agency Securities $ 3,679,598
FNMA Federal Agency Securities 6,130,019
FHLB Federal Agency Securities 2,241,007
FHLMC Federal Agency Securities 2.959.287

$ 15.009.911

Fair Value Measurements

The District categorizes its fair value measurement within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the
valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets, Level 2 inputs are quoted prices for similar
assets in active markets (significant other observable inputs), and Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.

Federal agency securities, negotiable certificates of deposit, and mutual funds classified in
level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix
pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted
prices.

45



)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The District had the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2020:

Quoted Observable Unobservable
Prices Inputs Inputs
Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Federal agency securities:
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) $§ - 3 1,276,858 $ - 3 1,276,858
Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) - 1,027,175 . 1,027,175
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) - 2,584,165 - 2,584,165
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC) - 1,749,427 - 1,749,427
Federal Agricultural Mortgage
Corporation (FAMC) - 1,077,865 - 1,077,865
Negotiable certificates of deposit - 10,457,347 - 10,457,347
Held by Pension Trust:
Mutual Funds - 12,727,168 12,727,168
Held by OPEB Trust:
Mutual Funds - 1,389,232 - 1,389,232
$ - $ 32289237 § - 32,289,237
Local agency investment pool* 1,073
Orange County investment pool* 2,798,964
Held by fiscal agent:
Money market mutual funds 577
Held by Pension Trust:
Money market mutual funds* 461,632
Held by OPEB Trust:
Money market mutual funds* 53.591
Total investment portfolio $ 35,605,074

* Not subject to fair value measurement hierarchy.

46



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(2) Cash and Investments (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The District had the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2019:

Quoted Observable Unobservable
Prices Inputs Inputs
Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Federal agency securities:
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) § - $ 3679598 $ - $ 3,679,598
Federal National Mortgage
Association (FNMA) z 6,130,019 - 6,130,019
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) - 2,241,007 - 2,241,007
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (FHLMC) - 2,959,287 - 2,959,287
Federal Agricultural Mortgage
Corporation (FAMC) - 521,405 - 521,405
Negotiable certificates of deposit - 6,555,628 - 6,555,628
Held by Pension Trust:
Mutual Funds - 13,295,867 13,295,867
Held by OPEB Trust:
Mutual Funds - 1,292,738 - 1,292,738
$ - $ 36675549 $ - 36,675,549
Local agency investment pool* 1,049
Orange County nvestment pool* 3,696,610
Held by fiscal agent:
Money market mutual finds 734
Held by Pension Trust:
Money market mutual fimds* 232,194
Held by OPEB Trust:
Money market mutual finds* 19,574
Total investment portfolio $ 40,625,710

* Not subject to fair value measurement hierarchy.

47



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

3) Capital Assets

Changes in capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, were as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
June 30, 2019 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2020
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 11,225,090 $§ -3 - 3 11,225,090
Construction-in-progress 7,833,081 7,772,390 (1,683,631) 13,921,840
Total non-depreciable assets 19,058,171 7,772,390 (1,683,631) 25,146,930
Depreciable assets:
Land improvements 984,412 - - 984,412
Buildings and improvements 5,121,698 - - 5,121,698
Machinery and equipment 4,811,605 - (33,467) 4,778,138
Transmission and distribution system 97,636,585 1,683,631 - 99,320,216
Reservoirs 28,999,946 - - 28,999,946
Wells and pumping plant 22,021,182 - - 22,021,182
Metering stations 1,225,758 - - 1,225,758
Intangible assets 2,388,615 - - 2,388,615
Control systems 5,074,242 - - 5,074,242
Mesa water reliability facility 31,045,684 - - 31,045,684
Total depreciable assets 199,309,727 1,683,631 (33,467) 200,959,891
Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (719,094) (28.429) - (747,523)
Buildings and improvements (2,373,933) (133,477) - (2,507,410)
Machinery and equipment (3,012,381) (415,160) 33,467 (3,394,074)
Transmission and distribution system (44,291,962) (1,665,547) - (45,957,509)
Reservoirs (11,591,142) (486,725) - (12,077,867)
Wells and pumping plant (3,576,500) (466,446) - (4,042,946)
Metering stations (355,970) (24,515) - (380,485)
Intangible assets (2,184,679) (75,087) - (2,259,766)
Control systems (2,805,555) (366,425) - (3,171,980)
Mesa water reliability facility (14,780,288) (1,855,515) - (16.635.803)
Total accumulated depreciation (85,691,504) (5,517,326) 33.467 (91,175,363)
Total depreciable assets, net 113,618,223 (3,833,695) - 109,784,528
Total capital assets, net $ 1326763% § 3938695 § (1,683,631) $ 134931458

Depreciation and amortization expense during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Capital assets - depreciation expense $ 5,442.239
Intangible assets - amortization expense 75,087
53517326

48



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

3) Capital Assets (Continued)

Changes in capital assets during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, were as follows:

Balance Additions/ Deletions/ Balance
June 30,2018 Transfers Transfers June 30, 2019
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $ 11,225,090 $ -3 - 8 11,225,090
Construction-in-progress 15,574,983 11,163,523 (18,905,425) 7,833,081
Total non-depreciable assets 26,800,073 11,163.523 (18,905,425) 19,058,171
Depreciable assets:
Land improvements 881,461 102,951 - 984,412
Buildings and improvements 4,734,646 387,052 - 5,121,698
Machinery and equipment 4,267,198 736,457 (192,050) 4,811,605
Transmission and distribution system 95,151,191 2,485,394 - 97,636,585
Reservoirs 28,922,516 77,430 - 28,999,946
Wells and pumping plant 6,905,041 15,116,141 - 22,021,182
Metering stations 1,225,758 - - 1,225,758
Intangible assets 2,388,615 - - 2,388,615
Control systems 5,074,242 - - 5,074,242
Mesa water reliability facility 31,045,684 - - 31,045,684
Total depreciable assets 180,596,352 18,905,425 (192,050) 199,309,727
Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements (693,766) (25,328) - (719,094)
Buildings and improvements (2,247,554) (126,379) - (2,373,933)
Machinery and equipment (2,842,153) (355,794) 185,566 (3,012,381)
Transmission and distribution system (42,661,638) (1,630,324) - (44,291,962)
Reservoirs (11,105,364) (485,778) - (11,591,142)
Wells and pumping plant (3,387,183) (189,317) - (3,576,500)
Metering stations (331,455) (24,515) - (355,970)
Intangible assets (2,090,667) (94,012) - (2,184,679)
Control systems (2,439,129) ' (366,426) - (2,805,555)
Mesa water reliability facility (12,922.549) (1.857,739) - (14,780.,288)
Total accumulated depreciation (80.721,458) (5,155,612) 185,566 (85,691,504)
Total depreciable assets, net 99,874,894 13,749.813 (6,484) 113,618,223
Total capital assets, net $ 126674967 $ 24913336 $ (18911,909) $ 132,676,394

Depreciation and amortization expense during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Capital assets - depreciation expense $ 5,061,600
Intangible assets - amortization expense 94,012

55155612

49



4)

)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences comprise of unpaid vacation which is accrued as earned. The
changes in compensated absences balances during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, were as follows:

Balance Balance Current Long-term
June 30, 2019 Earned Taken June 30, 2020 Portion Portion

$ 452333 8§ 375843 § (286,415) $ 541,761 § 433,409 $ 108,352

Balance Balance Current Long-term
June 30, 2018 Earned Taken June 30, 2019 Portion Portion

$ 426349 % 348,885 $ (322,901) § 452333 § 361,866 $ 90,467

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan

Plan Description

The District has an agent multiple-employer defined benefit plan that provides post-
employment health care benefits, including medical, dental, and vision benefits, to eligible
employees and their dependents at retirement through the California Public Employees
Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA).

The District elected to join PARS (OPEB Trust) as a means to fund the Annual Determined
Contribution (ADC). The OPEB Trust issues a publicly available financial report for the
fiduciary net position that is available upon request. The OPEB Trust is reported as a
fiduciary fund. The plan itself does not issue a separate financial report.

The District is required to pay the PEMCHA minimum ($136/month in 2019 and
$139/month in 2020) for each CalPERS retiree who is enrolled in CalPERS medical
insurance for whom the District was their employer.

The following requirements must be satisfied in order to be eligible for post-employment
medical, dental, and vision benefits: (1) attainment of age 55, and (2) 11 years of full-time
service, and (3) retirement from the District (the District must be the last employer prior to
retirement). For qualifying participants enrolled in a CalPERS medical plan, their District
benefit includes the PEMHCA minimum.

50



)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan (Continued)

Plan Description (Continued)

Spouses at the time of the employee’s retirement and surviving spouses are also eligible to
receive benefits. Retirees may enroll in any plan available through the District’s medical
and dental programs. The ability to participate in the vision program is linked to
participation in the medical program.

Employees Covered

As of the measurement dates June 30, 2019 and 2018, the following current and former
employees were covered by the benefit terms under the plan:

Measurement Date June 30, 2019

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 31
Inactive employees or beneficiaries entitled to but not yet receiving benefits I
Active employees 57

89

Measurement Date June 30, 2018

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 34
Inactive employees or beneficiaries entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 1
Active employees 45

80
Contributions

Benefit provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be amended by
the Board of Directors through agreements and memorandums of understanding between
the District and its employees. The plan does not require employee contributions.
Administrative costs of the OPEB plan are financed through investment earnings or paid
directly by the District.

The annual contribution for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, were based on
the actuarially determined contribution and pay-as-you-go basis (i.e. as medical insurance
premiums become due), respectively. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District
paid $69,457 for current premiums, $110,000 to the OPEB trust, $6,444 for administrative
expenses, and the estimated implied subsidy was $24,755, resulting in total payments of
$210,656. The payments for current premiums of $69,457 and administrative expenses of
$6,444 were paid directly by the District and were not reimbursed by the OPEB trust.

51



)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan (Continued)

Contributions (Continued)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the District paid $67,603 for current premiums, no
payments to the OPEB trust, $6,279 for administrative expenses, and the estimated implied
subsidy was $30,000, resulting in total payments of $103,882. The payments for current
premiums of $67,603 and administrative expenses of $6,279 were paid directly by the
District and were not reimbursed by the OPEB trust.

Accounting for the Plan

The OPEB trust with PARS is prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employer
contributions to the plan are recognized when due and the employer has made a formal
commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits are recognized when due and payable
in accordance with the terms of each plan.

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments with PARS are reported at fair value, which is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Securities for which market quotations are not readily
available are valued at their fair value as determined by the custodian with the assistance
of a valuation service.

Net OPEB Liability

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the District’s net OPEB liability was measured as
of June 30, 2019 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2019. For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the District’s net OPEB liability was measured as of
June 30, 2018 and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 rolled
forward to June 30, 2018 using standard update procedures. A summary of the principal
assumptions and methods used to determine the total OPEB liability are shown below.

52



&)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan (Continued)

Net OPEB Liability (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability in the June 30,2019 and 2017 actuarial valuations was determined
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Valuation Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2017
Measurement Date June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
Actuarial Cost Method Entry age normal, level percentage of payroll
Asset Valuation Method Fair value
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discourt Rate 6.75%

Long-Term Expected 6.75%

Rate of Return on Investments
General Inflation 2.75%
Medical Trend Non-Medicare: 7.5% for 2020 (7.25% for 2021), decreasing to an

ultimate rate of4.0% in 2076 and later years
Medicare: 6.5% for 2020 (6.3% for 2021), decreasing to an
ultimate rate 0f 4.0% in 2076 and later years

Mortality CalPERS 1997-2015 experience CalPERS 1997-2015 experience

Mortality Improvement Mortality projected fully Mortality projected fully
generational with Scale MP-2019  generational with Scale MP-2017

The long-term expected rates of return are Bartel Associates estimates and are presented
as geometric means developed over a 20-year period. The long-term expected real rates of
return for each major asset class included in the OPEB plan’s target asset allocation as of
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, are as follows:

Long-Term
Expected Real
Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return
PARS OPEB Trust:
Global Equity 73.00% 4.82%
Fixed Income 20.00% 1.47%
Real Estate Investment Trusts 2.00% 3.76%
Cash 5.00% 0.06%
Total 100.00%

53



©)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan (Continued)

Net OPEB Liability (Continued)

Discount Rate

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the discount rate used to measure the
total OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed District contributions would result in sufficient plan assets to pay all
benefits from the trust. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for current active and
inactive employees and beneficiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
the OPEB trust was applied to all periods of the projected benefits payments to determine
the total OPEB liability.

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability
The changes in the net OPEB liability are as follows:

Increase (Decrease)

Total Plan Net
OPEB Fiduciary OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
Balance at June 30,2018
(Measurement Date) $ 1,923,848 $ 1,237,589 § 686,259
Changes in the Year:
Service cost 79,816 - 79,816
Interest on the total OPEB liability 131,954 - 131,954
Differences between actual and -
expected experience (363,133) - (363,133)
Changes in assumptions 48,279 - 48,279
Contributions - employer - 103,882 (103,882)
Net nvestment income - 77,659 (77,659)
Benefit payments (97,603) (97,603) -
Administrative expenses - (9,215) 9,215
Net Changes (200,687) 74,723 (275,410)
Balance at June 30, 2019
(Measurement Date) $ 1,723,161 $§ 1,312,312 § 410,849

54



)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan (Continued)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Continued)

Increase (Decrease)

Total Plan Net
OPEB Fiduciary OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)
Balance at June 30, 2017
(Measurement Date) $ 1,815,878 $ 1,131,244 $ 684,634
Changes in the Year:
Service cost 77,491 - 77,491
Interest on the total OPEB liability 124,626 - 124,626
Differences between actual and -
expected experience - - -
Changes in assumptions - - -
Contributions - employer - 100,236 (100,236)
Net investment income - 109,377 (109,377)
Benefit payments (94,147) 94,147 -
Administrative expenses - (9,121) 9,121
Net Changes 107,970 106,345 1,625
Balance at June 30, 2018
(Measurement Date) $ 1,923,848 $ 1,237,589 $ 686,259
Change of Assumptions

The mortality improvement scale was updated to Scale MP-2019 from Scale MP-2017
from the measurement period ended June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019.

Change of Benefit Terms
There were no changes of benefit terms.
Subsequent Events

There were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in this
disclosure.

55



©)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan (Continued)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage
point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Plan's Net OPEB Liability
as of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020 $ 624,673 $ 410,849 $ 233,620
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Plan's Net OPEB Liability
as of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019 $ 918,692 $ 686,259 $ 492,791

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Medical Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as what the District’s
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using medical trend rates that are 1-

percentage point lower:

6.25% (Non- 7.25% (Non- 8.25% (Non-
Medicare) and Medicare) and Medicare) and
5.3% (Medicare) 6.3% (Medicare) 7.3% (Medicare)
Decreasing to Decreasing to Decreasing to
3.0% in 2076 4.0% in 2076 5.0% in 2076
Plan's Net OPEB Liability
as of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020 $ 218282 § 410,849 $ 648,423
6.5% (Non- 7.5% (Non- 8.5% (Non-
Medicare) and Medicare) and Medicare) and
5.5% (Medicare) 6.5% (Medicare) 7.5% (Medicare)
Decreasing to Decreasing to Decreasing to
3.0% in 2076 4.0% in 2076 5.0% in2076
Plan's Net OPEB Liability
as of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019 $ 496,275  $ 686,259 $ 920,588

56



)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan (Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of
$72,376 and $112,999, respectively.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, which are the measurement periods ending June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to measwrement date ~ $ 210,656 $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience - (311,988)
Changes in assumptions 41,479 -
Net differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan nvestments - (45,965)
Total $ 252,135 $ (357,953)

$210,656 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to
the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the
year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense as follows:

Year
Ending
June 30, Amount
2021 $ (65,171)
2022 (65,171)
2023 (49,813)
2021 (43,190)
2025 (44,345)
Thereafter (48,784)

57



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

5) Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Plan (Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

(Continued)
As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019
Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources

OPEB contributions subsequent to measurement date ~ $ 103,882 $
Net differences between projected and actual

earnings on plan investments - (72,570)
Total $ 103,882 $ (72,570)

$103,882 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to
the measurement date was recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability in the year
ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized as OPEB expense as follows:

Year
Ending
June 30, Amount
2020 $ (21,982)
2021 (21,982)
2022 (21,982)
2023 (6,624)
2021 -
Thereafter -

Pavable to the OPEB Plan

At June 30, 2020, the District had no outstanding amount of contributions to the OPEB
plan required for the year ended June 30, 2020.

58



(6)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Long-Term Debt

The following amounts of debt were outstanding June 30, 2020 and 2019:

Balance at Balance at Amount Due
June 30, 2019 Additions Repayments June 30, 2020 in One Year
Other debt:
2017 Series COPs 25,865,000 - (2,785,000) 23,080,000 2,975,000
Plus: Unamortized premium 4412774 - (569,390) 3,843384 -
Subtotal 2017 COPs 30,277,774 - (3,354,390) 26,923 384 2.975,000
2020 Series COPs - 55,985,000 - 55,985,000
Plus: Unamortized premium - 14,346,984 (40,131) 14,306,853
Subtotal 2020 COPs - 70,331,984 (40,131) 70,291,853
Total COPs $ 30277774 8 70331984 $ (3,394,521) § 97215237 $ 2975000
Balance at Balance at Amount Due
June 30,2018 Additions Repayments June 30, 2019 in One Year
Other debt:
2017 Series COPs 28,470,000 - (2,605,000) 25,865,000 2,785,000
Plus: Unamortized premium 4982164 - (569 390) 4412774
Total COPs 3 33452164 $ - 8 (3.174390) § 302777714 $ 2,785,000

2017 Revenue Certificates of Participation

On June 19, 2017, the District issued $29,295,000 of 2017 Revenue Certificates of
Participation (COPs). The issuance proceeds were used to refund the 2010 COPs and to
finance the purchase of two wells in order to increase the pumping capacity of the District.
The COPs were issued at a premium of $5,551,554 which will be amortized by $42,263
per month over the life of the debt service, which is 10 years. Principal is payable on March
15th of each year and interest payments are payable on March 15th and September 15th
each year, commencing September 15, 2017 with an interest rate of 5.0%. The COPs are
scheduled to mature on March 15, 2027.

As a result of the refunding, the 2010 COPs are considered to be in substance defeased,
and the related liabilities have been removed from the District’s financial statements.

The above Certificates are secured by a pledge of net revenues from the operation of the
enterprise. The District has covenanted that it will set charges which will be sufficient to
provide net revenues equal to at least 115% of the aggregate amount of annual debt service
of the District. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District reported net revenues of
$13,725,777 and debt service of $4,028,500, which is 341%. For the year ended
June 30, 2020, the District reported net revenues of $9,891,067 and debt service of
$4,078,250, which is 243%.

59



(6)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

2017 Revenue Certificates of Participation (Continued)

Future annual debt service requirements on the 2017 COPs are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2021 $ 2,975,000 $ 1,154,000 $ 4,129,000
2022 3,175,000 1,005,250 4,180,250
2023 3,385,000 846,500 4,231,500
2024 3,605,000 677,250 4,282,250
2025 3,835,000 497,000 4,332,000
2026-2027 6,105,000 408,000 6,513,000

Total Payments $ 23,080,000 § 4,588,000 § 27,668,000

2020 Revenue Certificates of Participation

On June 2, 2020, the District issued $55,985,000 of 2020 Revenue Certificates of
Participation (COPs). The issuance proceeds were used to finance improvements to the
District Water System, including but not limited to: (i) the construction of two new
groundwater production wells to increase groundwater production capacity, (ii) the
rehabilitation of two reservoirs currently in operation, (iii) the development and
construction of an outreach center at the Mesa Water Reliability Facility (MWRF), (iv) the
rehabilitation and/or abandonment of nine large vaults, and (v) the scheduled annual
replacements of hydrants, vales and meters. The COPs were issued at a premium of
$14,346,984 which will be amortized by $40,131 per month over the life of the debt
service, which is approximately 30 years. Principal is payable on March 15th of each year
and interest payments are payable on March 15th and September 15th each year,
commencing September 15, 2020 with interest rates ranging from of 3.0% to 5.0%. The
COPs are scheduled to mature on March 15, 2050.

The above Certificates are secured by a pledge of net revenues from the operation of the
enterprise. The District has covenanted that it will set charges which will be sufficient to
provide net revenues equal to at least 125% of the aggregate amount of annual debt service
of the District. For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District reported net revenues of
$9,568,594 and debt service of $4,078,250, which is 235%.

60



(6)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Long-Term Debt (Continued)

2020 Revenue Certificates of Participation (Continued)

Future annual debt service requirements on the 2020 COPs are as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2021 $ -3 2,010,190 $ 2,010,190
2022 - 2,566,200 2,566,200
2023 - 2,566,200 2,566,200
2024 - 2,566,200 2,566,200
2025 - 2,566,200 2,566,200

2026-2030 4,450,000 12,615,750 17,065,750
2031-2035 9,030,000 10,859,500 19,889,500
2036-2040 11,410,000 8,482,700 19,892,700
2041-2045 13,870,000 6,014,050 19,884,050
2046-2050 17,225,000 2,668,000 19,893,000

Total Payments $ 55985000 $§ 52,914,990 $ 108,899,990

Other Defeased Certificates of Participation

In fiscal year 2016-2017, the District defeased the 2010 COPs by placing the proceeds of
the new bonds with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the
old bonds. Accordingly, the escrow account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds
are not included in the District’s financial statements. At June 30, 2020 and 2019, $0 and
$16,865,000 of bonds outstanding to be paid by the escrow agent are considered defeased.

61



(M

®

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Net Position

Calculation of net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

2020 2019
Capital assets, net $ 134,931,458 $§ 132,676,394
Certificates of participation payable, current (2,975,000) (2,785,000)

Certificates of participation payable, non-current (94,240,237) (27,492,774)
Restricted - cash and investments

held by fiscal agent 67,336,195 734
Deferred amount on refunding 614,618 744,011
Capital related payables (462,707) (685,425)
Retention payable (161,979) (182,366)

Net investment in capital assets $ 105,042,348 $§ 102,275,574

Deferred Compensation Program

For the benefit of its employees, the District participates in a 457 Deferred Compensation
Program (Program). The purpose of this Program is to provide deferred compensation for
public employees that elect to participate in the Program. Generally, eligible employees
may defer receipt of a portion of their salary until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency. The District is not required to make any contributions to this
Program. Until the funds are paid or otherwise made available to the employee, the
employee is not obligated to report the deferred salary for income tax purposes.

Federal law requires deferred compensation assets to be held in trust for the exclusive
benefit of the participants. Accordingly, the District is in compliance with this legislation.
Therefore, these assets are not the legal property of the District, and are not subject to
claims of the District’s general creditors. Fair value of the Program assets held in trust at
June 30, 2020 and 2019 was $6,888,354 and $7,241,077, respectively.

Since the District has little administrative involvement and does not perform the investing
function for this plan, the assets and related liabilities are not shown on the statement of
net position.

62



€

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

401(a) Defined Contribution Plan and Terminated Retiree Health Savings Plan

Plan Prior to January 1, 2017

For the benefit of its employees, the District participated in a Retiree Health Savings Plan
(RHSP). The purpose of the RHSP was to provide supplementary health care benefits to
the District’s executive management. Prior to January 1, 2017, the District contributed
$15,000 per year for each member of the RHSP, which was automatically vested. No
contributions were required of the participants. Members could withdraw funds at the
normal retirement age of 55. Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, were
established and could be amended by the District’s Board of Directors.

The District is no longer making contributions to this plan since it was terminated on
January 1, 2017 and replaced with a 401(a) plan as noted below. After the termination date,
the only additions consist of investment earnings.

These assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants. Therefore, these
assets are not the legal property of the District, and are not subject to claims of the District’s
general creditors. Market value of the RHSP assets held in trust at June 30, 2020 and 2019
was $558,780 and $581,348, respectively.

Since the District has little administrative involvement and does not perform the investing
function for the RHSP, the assets and related liabilities are not shown on the statement of
net position.

Plan After January 1, 2017

On January 1, 2017, the District terminated the RHSP plan noted above and replaced this
plan with a 401(a) single employer defined contribution pension plan for employees within
the Management Group. The District contributes 2.5% of each participant’s base salary
each year subject to limitations by the federal code, which is automatically vested. No
contributions are required of the plan participants. Members can withdraw funds at the
normal retirement age of 55. Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, are
established and may be amended by the District’s Board of Directors.

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District contributed $26,753 and $26,717,
respectively to the 401(a) plan.

These assets are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of the participants. Therefore, these
assets are not the legal property of the District, and are not subject to claims of the District’s
general creditors. Market value of the 401(a) assets held in trust at June 30, 2020 and 2019,
was $100,797 and $79,702, respectively.

63



(10)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the
Miscellaneous (all other) Employee Pension Plans, cost-sharing multiple employer defined
benefit pension plans administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS). Benefit provisions under the Plans are established by State statute and
District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description
of the pension plans regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership
information that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-
time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50
to 62 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-industrial
disability benefits after five (5) years of service. The death benefit is one of the following:
the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death
Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.

64



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

(10)  Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Benefits Provided (Continued)

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect as of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020
and 2019, are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous
Prior to On or After
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2%@55 2%@62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50 -63 52-67
Monthly benefits, as a %
of eligible compensation 1.426% to 2.418% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates: 6.891% 6.308%
June 30, 2019:
Required employer contribution rates:
Normal cost rate 10.152% 7.266%
Payment of unfunded lability $ 529,101 $ 1,941
June 30, 2020:
Required employer contribution rates:
Normal cost rate 10.868% 7.072%
Payment of unfinded lability $ 686,538 $ 3,212

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by
the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. The
total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial valuation
process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance
any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference between
the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees. District contribution
rates may change if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy
contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member
contributions requirements are classified as plan member contributions.

65



(10)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions used to determine Total Pension Liability

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement period was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, with update procedures used to roll forward the
total pension liability to June 30, 2019. The total pension liability for the June 30, 2018,
measurement period was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, with
update procedures used to roll forward the total pension liability to June 30, 2018. The total
pension liability was based on the following assumptions:

Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Valuation Date June 30, 2017 June 30, 2018
Measurement Date June 30, 2018 June 30, 2019
Actuarial Cost Method Entry- Age Normal Entry-Age Nomal
Cost Method Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15% 7.15%

Inflation 2.50% 2.50%

Salary Increases ¢y )

Mortality Rate Table ) )

Post Retirement Benefit Increase 3) 3

(1) Varies by entry age and service

(2) The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of
mortality are based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-
retirement and Post-retirement mortality rates includes 15 years of projected mortality improvement
using 90% of Scale MP-2016 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table,
please refer to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from
December 2017 that can be found on the CalPERS website.

(3) The less of contract COLA or 2.50% until Purchasing Power Protection Allowance Floor on
purchasing power applies, 2.50% thereafter.

Iong-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using
a building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

66



(10)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Long-term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund
cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound
(geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term
(11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both
short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The
expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return
that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using
both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the
single equivalent rate calculated above and adjusted to account for assumed administrative
expenses.

The expected real rates of return by asset class for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019, are as follows:

New Real Return Real Return

Strategic Years Years

Asset Class (a) Allocation 1-10(b) 11+ (¢)
Global Equity 50.00% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed Income 28.00% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation Assets 0.00% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.00% 6.30% 7.23%
Real Assets 13.00% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.00% 0.00% -0.92%

Total 100.00%

(a) Inthe CalPERS CAFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is
included in Short-term Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity
Securities and Global Debt Securities

(b) An expected inflation 0f 2.0% used for this period

(¢) An expected inflation 0£2.92% used for this period

67



(10)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)
Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15% for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount
rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member
contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily
required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of
current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District reported a net pension liability for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability as follows:

2020 2019

Miscellaneous - Proportionate Share of
the Net Pension Liability $ 11,526,367 $ 10,466,745

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of
the net pension liability. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the net pension liability
of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total pension liability for the Plan used
to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2018, rolled forward to June 30, 2019, using standard update procedures. For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2019, the net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of
June 30, 2018, and the total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, rolled forward to
June 30, 2018, using standard update procedures. The District’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
employers, actuarially determined.

68



(10)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of the
measurement dates ended June 30, 2017, 2018, and 2019 was as follows:

Miscellaneous
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.26976%
Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.27773%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.00797%

Miscellaneous
Proportion - June 30, 2018 0.27773%
Proportion - June 30, 2019 0.28784%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.01011%

For the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District recognized a pension expense of
$2,281,880 and $1,009,473, respectively for the Plan.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, which are the measurement periods ending June 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively, the District reports other amounts for the Plan as deferred outflow

and deferred inflow of resources related to pensions as follows:

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 1,189,823 $ -
Differences between actual and expected experience 800,554 (62,027)
Change in assumptions 549,631 (194,840)
Change in employer's proportion and differences
between the employer's contributions and the
employer's proportionate share of contributions - (360,713)
Net differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments - (201,517)
Total $ 2,540,008 $ (819,097)

69




(10)

MESA WATER DISTRICT

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

Related to Pensions (Continued)

$1,189,823 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as

pension expense as follows:

Year
Ending
June 30, Amount
2021 $ 625,620
2022 (191,637)
2023 56,383
2024 40,722
2025 -
Thereafter -

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019

Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date
Differences between actual and expected experience
Change in assumptions
Change in employer's proportion and differences
between the employer's contributions and the
employer's proportionate share of contributions
Net differences between projected and actual
earnings on plan investments
Total

70

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
$ 974,972 $ -
401,591 (136,659)
1,193,240 (292,440)
- (439,103)
51,745 -
$ 2,621,548 $ (868,202)




(10)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)

$974,972 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent
to the measurement date was recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as
follows:

Year
Ending
June 30, Amount
2020 $ 813,354
2021 421,694
2022 (362,531)
2023 (94,143)
2024 -
Thereafter -

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the
Plan, calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current

rate:

Discount Rate - 1%

Current Discount Rate

Discount Rate + 1%

(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
Plan's Net Pension Liability
as of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2020 $ 17,929,028 $ 11,526,367 $ 6,241,422
Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Rate  Discount Rate + 1%
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)
Plan's Net Pension Liability
as of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2019 $ 16,580,186 $ 10,466,745 $ 5,420,199

71



(10)

1)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2020 and 2019, the District had no outstanding amount of contributions to the
pension plan required for the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019.

Additional Funding of the Pension Plan

In June 2017, the District approved the creation of a CalPERS defined benefit pension plan
trust with PARS (Pension Trust). The PARS trust is legally restricted to providing benefits
for members of the defined benefit pension plan. However, in accordance with GASB 68,
the asset balance is not included in calculation of the net pension liability above.

The District contributed $0 and $1 million to the Pension Trust in the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Investments earnings of $244,221, administrative
expenses of $66,170, and distributions of $517,312 resulted in an asset balance of
$13,188,800 as of June 30, 2020. Investments earnings of $845,616, administrative
expenses of $64,636, and distributions (benefit payments) of $531,042 resulted in an asset
balance of $13,528,061 as of June 30, 2019.

Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The District is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies/Joint Powers
Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA), an intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers
authority created to provide self-insurance programs for California water agencies. The
purpose of the ACWA/JPIA is to arrange and administer programs of self-insured losses
and to purchase excess insurance coverage. On June 30, 2020 and 2019 the District
participated in the liability and property programs of the ACWA/JPIA as follows:

e General and auto liability, public officials and employees’ errors and omissions:
Total risk financing self-insurance limits of $5 million. ACWA/JPIA purchases
additional excess coverage layers: $55 million for general, auto, and public
official’s liability which increases the limits on the insurance coverage noted above.

72



(11

(12)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Risk Management (Continued)

* Public employee dishonesty coverage up to $3.0 million per loss and includes
public employee dishonesty, forgery or alteration, computer fraud, and ERISA.

® Cyber liability coverage up to $3,000,000 per occurrence and $5,000,000 in
aggregate.

* Property loss is paid at the replacement cost for property on file, if replaced within
two years after the loss, otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis. ACWA/JPIA
is self-insured for the first $100,000 and purchases excess coverage up to $500
million limited to insurable value of $77,286,626.

* Boiler and machinery coverage for the replacement cost up to $500 million per
occurrence limited to insurable value, subject to various deductibles depending on
the type of equipment.

e Workers’ Compensation Insurance up to California statutory limits for all work
related injuries/illnesses covered by California law. ACWA/JPIA is self-insured to
$2 million has purchased excess insurance to the statutory limit.

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal
years and there were no reductions in the District’s insurance coverage during the years
ended June 30, 2020 and 2019. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable that a loss has
been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective
insurance coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but
not reported (IBNR). There were no claims payable as of June 30, 2020, 2019, and 2018.

Commitments and Contingencies

In the ordinary course of operations, the District is subject to claims and litigation from
outside parties. After consultation with legal counsel, the District believes the ultimate
outcome of such matters, if any, will not materially affect its financial condition.

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health
emergency because of an outbreak of a new strain of coronavirus (the “COVID-19
outbreak”) and the risks that is posed to the international community as the virus spread
globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19
outbreak as a pandemic based on the rapid increase in exposure globally.

73



(12)

MESA WATER DISTRICT
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues to evolve as of the date of this report.
As such, it is uncertain as to the full magnitude that the pandemic will have on the District’s
financial condition, liquidity, and future results of operations. Management is actively
monitoring the impact of the global situation on the District’s financial condition, liquidity,
operations and workforce. The District cannot estimate the length or gravity of the impact
of the COVID-19 outbreak at this time; however, if the pandemic continues, it may have
an effect on the District’s results of future operations and financial position in fiscal year
2021.

74



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>



Required Supplementary Information



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>



MESA WATER DISTRICT
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Fiscal year ended
Measurement period
Plan's proportion of the net pension liability

Plan's proportionate share of the
net pension liability

Plan's covered payroll

Plan's proportionate share of the
net pension liability as a percentage
of its covered payroll

Plan's proportionate share of fiduciary
net position as a percentage of the
Plan's total pension liability

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:
There were no changes in benefits.

Changes in Assumptions:
From fiscal year June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016:

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

0.28784%

$ 11,526,367

$ 4,731,286

243.62%

75.26%

GASB 68, paragraph 68 states that the long-term expected rate of return should be determined net of pension plan investment expense
but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The discount rate of 7.50% used for the June 30, 2014 measurement date
was net of administrative expenses. The discount rate of 7.65% used for the June 30, 2015 measurement date is without reduction of

pension plan administrative expense.
From fiscal year June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017:

There were no changes in assumptions.
From fiscal year June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018:

The discount rate was reduced from 7.65% to 7.15%.
From fiscal year June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019:

There were no significant changes in assumptions.
From fiscal year June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020:

There were no changes in assumptions.

* _ Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.

75



Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability

Fiscal year ended

Measurement period

MESA WATER DISTRICT

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

June 30, 2019

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

June 30, 2016

Plan's proportion of the net pension liability 0.27773% 0.26976% 0.26051%
Plan's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ 10,466,745 $ 10,633,962 $ 9,049,658
Plan's covered payroll $ 4,788,239 $ 4,880,332 $ 4,641,846
Plan's proportionate share of the

net pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 218.59% 217.89% 194.96%
Plan's proportionate share of fiduciary

net position as a percentage of the

Plan's total pension liability 75.26% 73.31% 74.06%

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:
There were no changes in benefits.

Changes in Assumptions:
From fiscal year June 30, 2015 to June 30, 2016:

June 30, 2015

0.24319%

$ 6,671,898

$ 4,124,923

161.75%

82.72%

June 30, 2014

0.25558%

$ 6,316,538

$ 5,360,103

117.84%

83.03%

GASB 68, paragraph 68 states that the long-term expected rate of return should be determined net of pension plan investment expense
but without reduction for pension plan administrative expense. The discount rate of 7.50% used for the June 30, 2014 measurement date
was net of administrative expenses. The discount rate of 7.65% used for the June 30, 2015 measurement date is without reduction of

pension plan administrative expense.
From fiscal year June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017:

There were no changes in assumptions.
From fiscal year June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018:

The discount rate was reduced from 7.65% to 7.15%.
From fiscal year June 30, 2018 to June 30, 2019:

There were no significant changes in assumptions.
From fiscal year June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020:

There were no changes in assumptions.

* - Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.

76



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Schedule of Plan Contributions - Pension

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Fiscal year ended

Contractually required contribution
(actuarially determined)

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered payroll

Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Asset valuation method

Inflation
Salary increases

Investment rate of return
Retirement age
Mortality

(M
)
€))
@
®

Level percentage of payroll, closed

Depending on age, service, and type of employment

Net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

50 years (2%@J55) and 52 years (2%@62)

Mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the most recent CalPERS Experience Study
adopted by the CalPERS Board.

Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.

77

June 30, 2020

$ 1,189,823

(1,189,823)

S -

$ 5,167,801

23.02%

6/30/2017

Entry age
M

Fair Value

2.625%
@

7.25% (3)
4
(5)



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Schedule of Plan Contributions - Pension

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018 June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Contractually required contribution
(actuarially determined) $ 974972 $ 838,463 $ 766,997 $ 693,154 $ 510456
Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions (974.972) (838,463) (766,997) (693.154) (510,456)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - 8 - 8 - $ -
Covered payroll $ 4,731,286 $ 4,788,239 $ 4,880,332 $ 4,641,846 $ 4,124,923
Contributions as a percentage of
covered payroll 20.61% 17.51% 15.72% 14.93% 12.37%
Notes to Schedule:
Valuation Date 6/30/2016 6/30/2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2013 6/30/2012
Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:
Actuarial cost method Entry age Entry age Entry age Entry age Entry age
Amortization method 1 (1) 0)) )] §))
Asset valuation method Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value 15 Year
Smoothed
Market Method
Inflation 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75% 2.75%
Salary increases ) ) 2) 2) )
Investment rate of return 7.375% (3) 7.50% (3) 7.50% (3) 7.50% (3) 7.50% (3)
Retirement age ()] 4) 4) “® 4
Mortality ) (3) &) &) &)
(1) Level percentage of payroll, closed
(2) Depending on age, service, and type of employment
(3) Net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
(4) 50 years (2%@55) and 52 years (2%@62)
(5) Mortality assumptions are based on mortality rates resulting from the most recent CalPERS Experience Study

adopted by the CalPERS Board.

Fiscal year 2015 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only six years are shown.

78



MESA WATER DISTRICT

OPEB Plan
Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return on Investments

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

Retiree Health Plan

Fiscal Year Ended Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return, Net of Investment Expense (1)
6/30/17 15.77%
6/30/18 10.11%
6/30/19 6.56%
6/30/20 1.97%

(1) Ten years of historical information is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Statement No. 74. Fiscal year ended

June 30, 2017 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only four years are presented.

79



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

Fiscal year ended
Measurement period

Total OPEB Liability:

Service cost

Interest on total OPEB liability

Actual vs. expected experience

Assumption changes

Benefit payments, including refunds

and the implied subsidy benefit payments
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning of Year
Total OPEB Liability - End of Year (a)

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds
and the implied subsidy benefit payments
Administrative expenses

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of Year
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of Year (b)

Net OPEB Liability - Ending (a)-(b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability

Covered-employee payroll

Net OPEB liability as percentage of
covered payroll

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:
There were no changes in benefits.

Changes in Assumptions:

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2019

June 30, 2018

June 30, 2017

$ 79816 $ 77491  § 75,234
131,954 124,626 117,658
(363,133) . t
48,279 . £
(97,603) (94,147) (89,724)
(200,687) 107,970 103,168
1,923,848 1,815,878 1,712,710
1,723,161 1,923,848 1,815,878
103,882 100,236 339,724
77,659 109,377 135,762
(97,603) (94,147) (89,724)
(9,215) (9,121) (6,367)

74,723 106,345 379,395
1,237,589 1,131,244 751,849
1,312,312 1,237,589 1,131,244

$ 410,849 $ 686259 $ 684,634
76.16% 64.33% 62.30%

$ 4737491 $ 4788239 $ 4,798,000
8.67% 14.33% 14.27%

The mortality improvement scale was updated to Scale MP-2019 from Scale MP-2017 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.

* Fiscal year 2018 was the first year of implementation; therefore, only three years are shown.

80



Fiscal year ended

Actuarially determined contribution

MESA WATER DISTRICT

Schedule of Plan Contributions - OPEB

Last Ten Fiscal Years*

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

$ 115,302 $ 147,000 $ 143,000

Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contributions
Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

(210,656) (103,882) (98.000)

3 (95354} _$ 43.118 $ 45.000

$ 5,167,801 $ 4,737,491 § 4,788,239

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 4.08% 2.19% 2.05%

Notes to Schedule:

Valuation Date

6/30/2019 6/30/2017 6/30/2017

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Amortization period
Asset valuation method
Discount rate

General Inflation

Medical trend
Mortality
Mortality Improvement

Entry age normal, level percentage of payroll

Level percent of pay

17-year fixed period for 2017/18; 15-year fixed period for 2019/20

Fair value

6.75%

2.75%

Non-Medicare: 7.5% for 2020 (7.25% for 2021), decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076 and later
years

Medicare: 6.5% for 2020 (6.3% in 2021), decreasing to an ultimate rate of 4.0% in 2076 and later years
CalPERS 1997-2015 experience study

Fiscal year June 30, 2020:

Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2019

Fiscal years June 30, 2018 and 2019:

Mortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2017

* . Fiscal year 2018 was the 1st year of implementation, therefore only three years are shown.

81



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>



Supplementary Information



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Certificates of Participation
Revenue Coverage

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2019

Total operating and nonoperating revenues

and capacity installation charges $ 39,277,873 $ 38,991,895
Total maintenance and operating expenses

and nonoperating expenses 29,386,806 25,266,118

Net Revenues $ 9,891,067 $ 13,725,777

Certificates of participation annual debt service and
all other parity debt constituting obligations
payable from net revenues $ 4,078,250 $ 4,028,500

Ratio of net revenues to annual debt service and
all other parity debt payable from net revenues 2.43 341

82



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Certificates of Participation

Reconciliation of Total Revenues and Total Expenses

Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Revenues:
Operating revenues
Nonoperating revenues - investment earnings
Nonoperating revenues - other nonoperating, net
Capacity and installation charges

Total revenues

Maintenance and operating expenses:
Operating expenses before depreciation and amortization
Nonoperating expenses - other nonoperating, net
Plus: Other post-employment benefits noncash activity

Total maintenance and operating expenses
Nonoperating expenses:
Interest expense - long-term debt
Less: Certificates of participation interest paid and noncash
amortization of bond defeasance and premiums

Total nonoperating expenses

Total expenses

83

June 30, 2020

June 30, 2019

$ 36,724,890 $ 36,167,875
1,255,743 1,872,020

- 91,145

1,297,240 860,855

$ 39,277,873 $ 38,991,895
27,238,151 25,247,473
1,990,429 -
158,226 18,645
29,386,806 25,266,118
964,979 945,513
(964,979) (945,513)

$ 29,386,806 $ 25,266,118




Statistical Information Section



<Page Intentionally Left Blank>



MESA WATER DISTRICT

Statistical Section

This part of the District’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,

and required supplementary information say about the government’s overall financial health.

Table of Contents

Financial Trends

Theses schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the District’s financial performance and well-being
have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the
District’s most significant own-source revenue, water sales, and related
expenses.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the
District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

This schedule offers demographic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the District’s financial
activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the
reader understand how the information in the District’s financial report
relates to the service the District provides.

84

Page No.

85-88

89-95

96-97

98-99

100-101



Mesa Water District
Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 1
Fiscal Year
2011 2012 2013 2014
Changes in net position:
Operating revenues (see schedule 2) $ 29,495,485 29,296,353 34,080,443 37,675,090
Operating expenses (see schedule 3) (25,848,828) (23,953,040) (29,095,185) (31,103,589)
Operating income(loss) 3,646,657 5,343,313 4,985,258 6,571,501
Net non-operating revenue(expense) (see schedule 4) (790,937) (321,690) (1,196,646) (1,142,788)
Net income(loss) before capital contributions 2,855,720 5,021,623 3,788,612 5,428,713
Capital contributions 1,779,584 228,413 1,409,655 1,771,171
Extraordinary Loss on Capital Assets Abandonment (13,357,434) - - -
Prior Period Adjustment - - - -
Changes in net position 3 (8,722,130) 5,250,036 5,198,267 7,199,884
Net position:
Net Investment in capital assets $ 73,793,234 84,080,083 84,054,617 85,117,787
Restricted - - - -
Unrestricted 16,474,621 19,452,573 24,676,306 30,813,020
Total net position $ 90,267,855 103,532,656 108,730,923 115,930,807

* as restated.

Changes in Net Position

$10,000,000 -

$8,000,000

$6,000,000

$4,000,000

$2,000,000

Dollars

S0 -

-$2,000,000 -

-54,000,000

-$6,000,000 -

-$8,000,000 -

-$10,000,000

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Fiscal Year

Source: Mesa Water District Audited Financial Statements.

85



Mesa Water District
Changes in Net Position and Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 1, Continued

Fiscal Year

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
32,913,142 28,997,983 31,124,804 35,705,309 36,167,875 36,724,890
(28,025,981) (26,221,594) (28,489,995) (31,234,095) (30,403,085) (32,755477)
4,887,161 2,770,389 2,634,809 4,471,214 5,764,790 3,969,413

(889,936) (2,009,000) (1,382,150) (549,097) 1,014,748 (2,014,015)
3,997,225 761,389 1,252,659 3,922,117 6,779,538 1,955,398
2,552,466 3,016,356 4,340,361 3,283,326 1,917,078 3,084,408

(1,418,737) - - (927,250) - -
5,130,954 3,771,745 5,593,020 6,278,193 8,696,616 5,039,806
84,181,875 * 86535551 * 90,777,661 94,096,310 102,275,574 105,042,348
. . : = 4,814,662 3,383,344
28,797,704 30,221,773 31,572,683 34,532,227 30,234,917 33,939,267
112,979,579 116,757,324 122,350,344 128,628,537 137,325,153 142,364,959

Net Position by Component

$160,000,000

$140,000,000

$120,000,000

5 $100,000,000
°
a

$80,000,000 -

$60,000,000 -

$40,000,000 -

$20,000,000 -

$0 - 7 T - -
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Fiscal Year
B Net Investment in capital assets B Series2 ® Unrestricted

Source: Mesa Water District Audited Financial Statements.

86



Mesa Water Dustrict
Historic Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 1a

Fiscal Year

2011 2012 2013 2014
Revenues
Water Sales $19,598,778 $21,446,306 $23,205,333 $24,639,988
Meter Service Charges 4,329,199 4,597,512 4,865,284 5,454,610
Pass-through Water Sales
Govemmental Agencies $3,494,841 $1,200,178 $3,948,733 $4,035,580
Concessions from Governmental Agencies 739,301 2,797 - 1,238,000
Recycled Water Sales 1,042,340 1,158,856 1,549,378 1,698,506
Other Charges and Services 291,027 893,501 511,715 608,406
Capacity and Installation Charges 637,994 134,616 434,763 452,679
Investment Earnings 94,758 313,494 43234 238,672
Total Revenues $30,228,238 $29,747,260 $34,558,440 $38,366,441
Operation and Maintenance Costs
Imported & Basin Managed Source of Supply $3,629,226 $5,449,257 $3,073,519 $2,695,858
Transmission and Distribution 4,692,121 4,838,681 5,005,698 5,251,819
General and Administrative 5,268,838 5,577,027 6,217,746 6,320,500
Pass-through Water Purchases to
Govemmental Agencies 3,494,841 1,200,178 3,948,733 4,035,580
Total Clear Water Pumping 3,343,162 3,767,638 4,134,259 4,287,888
Total Amber Water Pumping 1,943,963 38,178 2,472,987 3,353,823
Recycled Water 300,364 325,349 443,319 470,767
In-lieu Source of Supply 209,053 249,703 - -
Total Operating Expenses $22,881,568 $21,446,011 $25,296,261 $26,416,235
Net Revenues $7,346,670 $8,301,249 $9,262,179 $11,950,206
Senior Obligations 1,977,850 1,971,850 1,977,750 1,972,150
Senior Obligations Coverage 371 421 4.68 6.06
Revenues Available for Parity Obligations $5,368,820 $6,329,399 $7,284,429 $9,978,056
Parity Obligations
2010 Installment Payments - - 837,119 1,339,038
1991 OCWD Well Loan 51,231 44,645 46,207 97,324
1998 OCWD Well 11 Loan 51,243 88,832 37,598 352,239
1998 Wells IB and 10 Loan 32,603 24,759 52,149 147,207
Total Parity Obligations 135,077 158,236 973,073 1,935,808
Parity Obligations Coverage 39.75 40.00 7.49 5.15
Revenues Available for Capital Projects and
Other Coverage 5,233,743 6,171,163 6,311,356 8,042,249

Source: Mesa Water District Audited Financial Statements.

87



Mesa Water Dustrict
Historic Operating Results and Debt Service Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Schedule 1a, Continued

Fiscal Year

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

$24,034,254 $21,357,269 $23,261,150 $26,272,951 $25,910,454 $26,913,077
5,803,271 6,050,343 6,331,300 6,838,600 7,511,575 7,870,740
968,138 - - 933,937 1,226,127 163,691
1,397,919 1,056,481 971,796 1,137,748 1,119,273 1,250,605
709,560 830,432 560,558 522,073 400,446 526,777
1,247,867 1,945,079 2,498,287 1,912,740 860,855 1,297,240
404,763 681,378 25,518 535,930 1,872,020 1,255,743
$34,565,772 $31,920,982 $33,648,609 $38,153,979 $38,900,750 $39,277,873
$2,645,852 $1,031,539 $842,353 $2,405,315 $2,996,819 896,268
5,750,908 4,961,178 5,021,716 6,132,007 5,479,178 6,020,490
7,380,985 7,900,124 8,184,895 7,978,006 7,589,724 9,270,384
4,273,537 4,682,120 4,427,407 2,776,268 5,453,136 6,760,158
2,864,506 2,453,295 4,520,866 3,134,554 2,970,494 3,158,924
436,560 496,582 572,549 629,455 758,122 861,521
- - - 3,168,477 - 270,406
$23,352,348 $21,524,838 $23,569,786 $26,224,082 $25,247,473 $27.238,151
$11,213,424 $10,396,144 $10,078,823 $11,929,897 $13,653,277 $12,039,722
1,969,750 1,973,750 1,974,000 1,899,150 4,028,500 4,078,250
5.69 5.27 5.11 6.28 3.39 2.95
$9,243,674 $8,422,394 $8,104,823 $10,030,747 $9,624,777 $7,961,472

1,339,838 1,340,038 1,339,638 - - -

1,339,838 1,340,038 1,339,638 - - -

6.90 6.29 6.05 N/A N/A N/A
7,903,837 7,082,357 6,765,185 10,030,747 9,624,777 7,961,472
Source: Mesa Water District Audited Financial Statements.

88



Mesa Water District

Operating Revenues By Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 2
Fiseal ' Water Consumption Monthly Meter Pass-thru Water Sales to Recycled Other Charges Concessions from Total Operating
Year Sales Service Charge Governmental Agencies Water Sales and Services Governmental Ag Revenues
2011 19,598,777 4,329,199 3,494,841 1,042,340 1,030,328 - 29,495,485
2012 21,446,306 4,597,512 1,200,178 1,158,856 893,501 29,296,353
2013 23,205,333 4,865,284 3,948,733 1,549,378 511,715 - 34,080,443
2014 24,639,988 5,454,610 4,035,580 1,698,506 608,406 1,238,000 37,675,090
2015 24,034,254 5,803,271 - 1,397,919 709,560 968,138 32,913,142
2016 21,060,727 6,050,343 - 1,056,481 830,432 - 28,997,983
2017 23,261,150 6,331,300 - 971,796 560,558 - 31,124,804
2018 26,272,951 6,838,600 - 1,137,748 522,073 933,937 35,705,309
2019 25,910,454 7,511,575 - 1,119,273 400,446 1,226,127 36,167,875
2020 26,913,077 7,870,740 - 1,250,605 526,777 163,691 36,724,890
$40,000,000
$35,000,000
$30,000,000
$25,000,000
4
0
°
a
$20,000,000
$15,000,000
$10,000,000
$5,000,000
$0
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Fiscal Year
B Water Consumption Sales
B Monthly Meter Service Charge
H Series5
B Recycled Water Sales
® Other Charges and Services
® Concessions from Governmental Agencies
Source: Mesa Water District Audited Financial Statements.

89



Mesa Water District

Historic Water Sales Revenues'
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 2a

Fiscal Potable Water Recycled Increase

Year Sales Revenues A Water Sales Total (Decrease)

2011 23,927,976 1,042,340 24,970,316 2.3%
2012 26,043,818 1,158,856 27,202,674 8.9%
2013 28,070,617 1,549,378 29,619,995 8.9%
2014 30,094,598 1,698,506 31,793,104 7.3%
2015 30,174,271 1,397,919 31,572,190 -0.7%
2016 27,111,070 1,056,481 28,167,551 -10.8%
2017 29,592,450 971,796 30,564,246 8.5%
2018 33,111,551 1,137,748 34,249,299 12.1%
2019 33,422,029 1,119,273 34,541,302 0.9%
2020 34,783,817 1,250,605 36,034,422 43%

$40,000,000

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

Dollars

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

50
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Fiscal Year

B Potable Water Sales Revenues = Recycled Water Sales

Notes:
D Excludes revenues from sales at cost to the City of Huntington Beach.

@ Includes bimonthly meter charges.
Source: Mesa Water District Audited Financial Statements.

90

2019 2020



Mesa Water District
Operating Expenses by Activity
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 3
Imported Source Pass-thru Water Tr issi Depr Total
Fiscal of Supply and Clear Amber Purchases to In-Lieu Recycled and and General and Operating
Year Basin Managed ‘Water Water Gover 1 Agencies Water Water Distrik Amortizati Ad istrative Expenses
2011 3,629,226 3,343,162 1,943,963 3,494,841 209,053 300,364 4,680,458 2,967,260 5,280,501 25,848,828
2012 5,449,257 3,767,638 38,178 1,200,178 249,703 325,349 4,838,681 2,507,029 5,577,027 23,953,040
2013 3,073,519 4,134,259 2,472,987 3,948,733 - 443,319 5,005,698 3,798,924 6,217,746 29,095,185
2014 2,427936 4,287,888 3,353,823 4,035,580 - 470,767 5,425,385 4,687,354 6,414,856 31,103,589
2015 2,645,852 4,273,537 2,864,506 - - 436,560 5,750,908 4,673,633 7,380,985 28,025,981
2016 1,031,539 4,682,120 2,453,295 - - 496,582 4,961,178 4,702,756 7,900,124 26,227,594
2017 842,353 4,427,407 4,520,866 - - 572,549 5,021,716 4,920,209 8,184,895 28,489,995
2018 2,405,315 2,776,268 3,134,554 - 3,168,477 629,455 6,132,007 5,010,013 7,978,006 31,234,095
2019 2,996,819 5,453,136 2,967,369 - - 758,122 5,482,303 5,155,612 7,589,724 30,403,085
2020 896,268 6,760,158 3,158,924 - 270,406 861,521 6,020,490 5,517,326 9,270,384 32,755,477
$35,000,000
$30,000,000
$25,000,000 +—|
$20,000,000 -
w
=
g $15,000,000 -
$10,000,000 - =: ke
$5,000,000
S0 - v
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Fiscal Year
B Imported Source of Supply and Basin Managed
m Clear Water
& Amber Water
® Pass-thru Water Purchases to Governmental Agencies
mn-Lieu Water
“ Recycled Water
® Transmission and Distribution
= Depreciation and Amortization
# General and Administrative
Source: Mesa Water District Audited Financial Statements.

91



Mesa Water District

Non-operating Revenues and (Expenses)

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 4

Gain (Loss) on Sale/

Fiscal Investment Interest Expense- Disposition Capital Other Non- Nonoperating
Year Earnings & Long-Term Debt Assets, Net Operating, Net Revenues/(Expenses)
2011 94,758 (748,517) (82,164) (55,014) (790,937)
2012 313,494 (720,536) (68,158) 153,510 (321,690)
2013 43,234 (1,429,154) (6,288) 195,562 (1,196,646)
2014 238,672 (1,595,546) 28,155 185,931 (1,142,788)
2015 404,763 (1,293,727) 9,639 (10,611) (889,936)
2016 681,378 (1,196,589) (69,130) (1,424,659) (2,009,000)
2017 25,518 (1,094,610) (94,086) (218,972) (1,382,150)
2018 535,930 (1,140,774) 17,397 38,350 (549,097)
2019 1,872,020 (945,513) (2,904) 91,145 1,014,748
2020 1,255,743 (964,979) 8,123 (2,312,902) (2,014,015)
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
S0
g ($1,000,000)
3
o
($2,000,000)
(53,000,000}
{$4,000,000)
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2020
Fiscal Year
M Pension Plan Prior Service
® Investment Earnings (1)
® Interest Expense- Long-Term Debt
W Gain (Loss) on Sale/ Disposition Capital Assets, Net
® Other Non-Operating, Net
Note:

M pcludes Interest Income Realized and Unrealized Gains and Losses On Investments.
Mesa Water District Audited Financial Statements.

Source:

92



Mesa Water District
Operating Revenue Base
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 5

Fiscal Production

Year (Gallons) AF Sales AF Production AF
2011 5,964,539,630 17,359 17,359 18,305
2012 6,119,286,269 17,874 17,874 18,779
2013 6,836,777,586 18,701 18,701 20,981
2014 6,551,560,206 19,011 19,011 20,106
2015 6,130,560,714 18,110 18,110 18,814
2016 5,330,922,360 15,057 15,057 16,360
2017 5,370,676,182 15,898 15,898 16,482
2018 5,605,288,902 17,059 17,059 17,202
2019 5,234,796,315 16,110 16,110 16,065
2020 5,252,066,418 15,905 15,905 16,118

8,000
7,000
6,000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000

Gallons (in Millons)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Fiscal Year

Note: For Information Regarding Water Sales See Schedule 2 'Operating Revenue by Source'.
Source: Mesa Water District Billing System.

93



Mesa Water District
Customer Connections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 6
Customer Type
Fiscal Single-Family Multi-Family Commerical/B Other & Recycled Fire Total
Year Residential Residential usiness Industrial Government Irrigation Water Line Connections
2011 13,783 5,742 2,369 277 129 966 42 687 23,995
2012 13,778 5,763 2,370 274 223 977 42 698 24,125
2013 13,732 5,808 2,371 269 240 984 42 699 24,145
2014 13,798 5,806 2,374 267 228 996 32 704 24,205
2015 13,931 6,041 2,359 264 142 1013 36 705 24,491
2016 13,933 6,044 2,357 255 175 973 43 708 24,488
2017 13,955 6,021 2,351 253 139 973 42 743 24,477
2018 14,138 6,092 2,356 249 142 976 43 752 24,748
2019 14,286 6,162 2,361 247 141 995 43 758 24,993
2020 14,314 6,164 2,367 240 137 999 43 768 25,032
[
25,000
20,000
"
]
5 15,000
g
[s}
L3
1]
@
2
E
=
z
10,000
5,000
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Fiscal Year
m Single-Family Residential ® Multi-Family Residential ® Commerical/Business ® [ndustrial
m Other & Government ® Irrigation ® Recycled Water ® Fire Line
Source: Mesa Water District Billing System.

94



Mesa Water District
Revenue Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 7

Minimum Bimonthly Service Charge - Potable Water Service

Meter Size 6/30/11 _ 6/30/12  6/30/13 _ 6/30/14 __ 6/30/15  6/30/16  6/30/17  6/30/18 _ 6/30/19 6/30/20
5/8" $ 17.00 18.00 19.00 20.00 21.50 22.50 23.00 24.69 25.93 27.23
3/4" 25.50 27.00 28.50 30.00 32.50 33.50 34.50 37.31 39.18 41.14
1" 42.50 45.00 47.50 50.00 54.00 55.50 57.50 62.00 65.10 68.36
11/2" 85.00 90.00 95.00 100.00 108.00 111.50 115.00 124.51 130.74 137.28
2" 136.00 144.00 152.00 160.00 172.50 178.50 184.00 199.11 209.07 219.53
3" 297.50 315.00 332.50 350.00 378.00 390.00 402.00 435.51 457.29 480.16
4" 535.50 567.00 598.50 630.00 680.00 702.00 724.00 784.32 823.54 864.72
6" 1,190.00  1,260.00  1,330.00 1,400.00 1,510.00 1,560.00 1,610.00 1,744.08 1,83129 1,922.86
8" 2,040.00 2,160.00 2,280.00 2,400.00 2,590.00 2,670.00 2,670.00 2,983.82  3,133.02 3,289.68
10" 3,230.00  3,420.00 3,610.00 3,800.00 4,100.00 4,230.00 4,370.00 4,727.89 496429 521251
Minimum Bimonthly Service Charge - Fireline Water Service - Class I
Meter Size 6/30/10  6/30/11 6/30/12  6/30/13  6/30/15 _ 6/30/16  6/30/17  6/30/18  6/30/19 _ 6/30/20
2" $ 16.00 17.00 18.00 19.00 20.50 21.00 22.00 6.81 7.16 7.52
3" 24.00 25.50 27.00 28.50 31.00 32.00 33.00 19.79 20.79 21.83
4" 32.00 34.00 36.00 38.00 41.00 42.50 43.50 42.18 44.29 46.51
6" 48.00 51.00 54.00 57.00 61.50 63.50 65.50 122.53 128.66 135.10
8" 64.00 68.00 72.00 76.00 82.00 84.50 87.50 261.11 274.17 287.88
10" 96.00 102.00 108.00 114.00 123.00 127.00 131.00 469.56 493.04 517.70
12" N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Minimum Bimonthly Service Charge - Fireline Water Service - Class I1
Meter Size 6/30/10  6/30/11 6/30/12  6/30/13  6/30/15 _ 6/30/16 _ 6/30/17  6/30/18 _ 6/30/19 _ 6/30/20
2" $ 32.00 34.00 36.00 38.00 41.00 42.50 43.50 6.81 7.16 7.52
3" 48.00 51.00 54.00 57.00 61.50 63.50 65.50 19.79 20.79 21.83
4" 64.00 68.00 72.00 76.00 82.00 84.50 87.50 42.18 4429 46.51
6" 96.00 102.00 108.00 114.00 123.00 127.00 131.00 122.53 128.66 135.10
8" 128.00 136.00 144.00 152.00 164.00 169.50 174.50 261.11 274.17 287.88
10" 192.00 204.00 216.00 228.00 246.00 254.00 262.00 469.56 493.04 517.70
12" N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Water Use Rate (per 100 cubic feet = 748 gallons)
User Type 6/30/10  6/30/11 6/30/12  6/30/13  6/30/15  6/30/16  6/30/17  6/30/18  6/30/19 _ 6/30/20
Residential
Potable Commodity Rate $ 2.70 2.85 3.00 3.15 3.40 3.51 3.62 3.86 4.06 4.06
Non-Residential
Construction Commodity Rate  § 4.05 4.28 4.50 4.73 5.10 5.26 5.43 4.27 4.49 4.49
Fireline Commodity Rate $ 5.40 5.70 6.00 6.30 6.80 7.02 7.24 4.27 4.49 4.49
Recycled Commodity Rate $ 243 2.57 2.70 2.84 2.51 232 1.82 2.52 2.65 2.65

Source: Mesa Water District Records.

95



Mesa Water District

Ten Largest Water Users by Revenue
Current Fiscal Year and Five Years Ago
Schedule 8

96

FY 2019/20 Consumption  Acre Feet % of Total ~ FY 2014/15 Consumption  Acre Feet % of Total
1 Mesa Verde Partners 202,879 466 2.8% Mesa Verde Partners 246,129 565 2.9%
2 City Of Costa Mesa 102,644 236 1.4% City of Costa Mesa 231,354 531 2.8%
3 Newport-Mesa Unified School District 99,526 228 1.4% Newport-Mesa Unified School District 183,815 422 2.2%
4 The Irvine Company, Llc 78,118 179 1.1% County of Orange 114,334 262 1.4%
5 Casden Lakes, Lp 56,052 129 0.8% South Coast Plaza 91,982 211 1.1%
6 County Of Orange 55,512 127 0.8% The Irvine Company, Inc. 91,715 211 1.1%
7 Amel Residential Properties 46,655 107 0.6% United Dominion Realty 84,788 195 1.0%
8 Camden Property Trust 44,180 101 0.6% Amel Residential Properties 81,955 188 1.0%
9 CJ Segerstrom & Sons 40,598 93 0.6% Coast Community College 76,827 176 0.9%
10 South Coast Plaza 38,762 89 0.5% Fairview State Hospital 76,766 176 0.9%
1,756 10.4% 2,938 15.2%

Sales in Acre Feet Sales in Acre Feet

Potable 15,905 Potable 18,110

Recycled 959 Recycled 1,159

Total Sales Acre Feet 16,864  Total Sales Acre Feet 19,269

Source: Mesa Water District Billing System.



Mesa Water District
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 9
Total
Fiscal Certificates of OCWD Well DWR Capital Pension Refi As a Share of
Year Participation Loans Loan Leases Loan Debt Per Capita Personal Income
2011 35,050,518 838,455 - - - 35,888,973 322.28 0.59%
2012 33,380,023 732,724 - - - 34,112,747 305.00 0.56%
2013 31,319,523 596,770 - - - 31,916,293 285.39 0.50%
2014 29,204,027 - - - - 29,204,027 254.83 0.43%
2015 27,013,531 - - - - 27,013,531 235.71 0.39%
2016 24,723,036 - - - - 24,723,036 214.98 0.35%
2017 36,805,648 - - - - 36,805,648 320.05 0.52%
2018 33,452,164 - - - - 33,452,164 292.07 0.44%
2019 30,277,774 - - - - 30,277,774 264.13 0.37%
2020 97,215,237 - - - - 97,215,237 846.98 1.19%
$100,000,000
$75,000,000
"
s
°
o
$50,000,000
$25,000,000 -
$0 - . : :
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Fiscal Year

& Certificates of Participation B OCWD Well Loans ® DWR Loan 1 Capital Leases B Pension Refi Loan

Source: Mesa Water District Audited Financial Statements.

97



Mesa Water District

Schedule of Demographics and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Schedule 10

Costa Mesa County of Orange
Fiscal Unemployment Personal Income Personal Income
Year Population Rate Population Thousands of Dollars) per Capita
2011 117,178 7.8% 3,010,232 159,007,100 52,822
2012 110,757 7.1% 3,055,792 166,345,500 54,436
2013 111,358 5.0% 3,081,804 168,966,400 54,827
2014 111,846 4.6% 3,113,991 177,412,900 56,973
2015 111,835 4.1% 3,147,655 185,500,000 58,933
2016 114,603 3.6% 3,183,011 190,978,000 59,999
2017 115,012 3.3% 3,194,024 199,492,000 62,458
2018 114,536 2.9% 3,221,103 215,479,000 66,896
2019 114,634 2.6% 3,222,498 230,180,000 71,429
2020 114,778 12.4% 3,194,332 226,531,000 70,917
Population - Costa Mesa
140,000
120,000
100,000
5 80,000
s 60,000
g 40,000
& 20,000 —
Fiscal Year
Population - Orange County
3,500,000
3,000,000
o 2,500,000
€ 2,000,000
< 1,500,000
g 1,000,000
A~ 500,000
Fiscal Year
Personal Income per Capita - Orange County
$80,000
$70,000
$60,000 — —— —
n $50,000 - ||
= $40,000 - ]
8 $30,000 - =
$20,000 - L]
$10,000 - ]
$0 T - : -
'19\\ ¥ ’»Qx'” q’@?‘ '\9\5 W@" WQ\'\ q’@"" WQ\“ W@,“
Fiscal Year
Source:  California Department of Finance, Demographic Research Unit, http://www.dof.ca.gov

State of California, Employment Development Department, http:/www.edd.ca.gov
County of Orange, Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, hitp://egov.ocgov.com/ocgov/Auditor-Controller

98



Mesa Water District
City of Costa Mesa Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
Schedule 11

2019-2020 2010-2011

Number of % of Number of % of

Name of Company Employees Total Name of Company Employees  Total
Winfield Locks, Inc. 5,009 7.46%  Experian Information Solution 3,700 5.61%
Epl Intermediate, Inc. 3,998 5.96%  Coast Community College District Foundation 2,900 4.39%
Experian Information Solution 3,700 5.51%  Orange Coast Community College 2,500 3.79%
Coast Community College District Foundation 1,313 1.96%  Coast Community College 2,500 3.79%
Contech Engineered Solutions Inc. 1,288 1.92%  Fairview Developmental Center 1,500 2.27%
Automobile Club of Southern California 1,200 1.79%  Interinsurance Exchange 1,200 1.82%
Intemational Business Machines Corporation 1,131 1.69%  First Team Real Estate Inc. 1,025 1.55%
Deloitte & Touche LLP 700 1.04%  Pacific Building Care Inc. 850 1.29%
Dynamic Cooking Systems, Inc. 700 1.04%  International Business Machines Corporation 750 1.15%
Sure Haven, Inc. 550 0.82%  Filenet Corporation 600 0.91%

Source: City of Costa Mesa CAFR.

99



Mesa Water District
District Employees by Department
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 12
Fiscal Year
Department 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
General Manager 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Administrative Services 7.5 8 6 7 7 7 6 7 8
Customer Services 11 10 10 11 11 9 8 9 9
Engineering 6 6 4 4 5 5 5 4 4
Financial Services 7.5 6 4 4 4 35 5 5 5
Public Affairs 1.5 3 4 2 2 3 0 3 3
Water Policy 0.0 0 0 0 1 1 1 1 1
Water Operations 26.5 21 20 21 21 20 19 21 21
62 56 50 51 53 51 46 52 53
70

Number of Employees

Source:

B General Manager
m Customer Services
® Financial Services

® Water Policy

Mesa Water District Records.

Fiscal Year

100

® Administrative Services
® Engineering

m Public Affairs
m Water Operations



Mesa Water District
Historic Water Supply
In Acre Feet Per Year
Last Five Fiscal Years

Schedule 13

Supplemental Water
Fiscal Recycled
Year Groundwater CPTP Water In-Lieu Water Total
2016 14,855 202 1,217 - 16,274
2017 16,185 298 1,197 - 17,680
2018 9,284 1,987 853 5,931 18,055
2019 13,573 2,492 916 - 16,981
2020 15,249 329 959 540 17,077
Source: Mesa Water District Records.
Mesa Water Deliveries
Historic Water Deliveries
In Acre Feet Per Year
Last Five Fiscal Years
Schedule 14
Fiscal Potable Water Recycled Water % Increase
Year Deliveries Deliveries Total (Decrease)
2016 14,822 1,217 16,039 -11.44%
2017 15,898 1,197 17,095 6.58%
2018 17,059 853 17,912 4.78%
2019 16,110 916 17,026 -4.95%
2020 15,905 959 16,864 -0.95%
Source: Mesa Water District Records.

101



CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Mesa Water District
Costa Mesa, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Mesa Water
District (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements and have issued our
report thereon dated February 22, 2021.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the District’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

A member of

Nexia

International



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards and that is described below.

Auditors’ Comment and Recommendation

Section 18.0 of the District's Statement of Investment Policy (SIP) states that the SIP shall be adopted
by resolution of the Board and that the policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the District
Treasurer and Mesa Water's Finance Committee and approved annually by the Board. The annual
approval by the Board occurred on December 20, 2018 for fiscal year 2018-2019; however, the annual
review for fiscal year 2019-2020 occurred on October 27, 2020, which is in excess of one year later
from the previous approval and is, therefore, not in compliance with the District's investment policy.
We recommend the District either approve the SIP annually or update the SIP to reflect the current

practice.

Management’s Response

Management intends to consider both options and adjust the SIP accordingly moving forward.

District’s Response to Finding

The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described above. The District’s
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

W"’””"“’%‘ 27
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Irvine, California
February 22, 2021



‘ﬂv MEMORANDUM

Mesa\Water TO: Board of Directors
PR FROM:  Tracy E. Manning, Water Operations Manager
Dedicated to DATE: March 11, 2021

Satisfying our Community’s  gUBJECT: Emergency Water Supply Reliability Assessment Program
Water Needs

RECOMMENDATION

This item is provided for discussion.

STRATEGIC PLAN

Goal #1: Provide a safe, abundant, and reliable water supply.
Goal #2: Practice perpetual infrastructure renewal and improvement.
Goal #6: Provide outstanding customer service.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION

None.

BACKGROUND

Mesa Water District's (Mesa Water®) Board of Directors have executed a long-range vision of
water independence and local reliability which has been brought to fruition by the development of
local groundwater supplies through five existing clear wells, the Mesa Water Reliability Facility,
and the planned development of two additional local wells. These sources, in concert with the
groundwater storage reservoirs, allow Mesa Water to be the only Orange County water agency to
provide 100% local water supply reliability.

Mesa Water also has the ability to provide 100% of system demands using water imported from
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD) through five turnout connections. This is
an emergency supply and is not used for routine operations, but has historically been used when
requested to assist with regional water basin management programs such as the Coastal
Pumping Transfer Program (CPTP). Mesa Water’s participation in historical basin management
programs have benefited regional water supplies, and have also been of benefit to Mesa Water by
providing an avenue to perform routine testing of valves, controllers, and flow meters at these
emergency connections without incurring the additional costs of imported water supplies.

CPTP and other basin management programs have been discontinued since December 31, 2019,
leaving our emergency imported water connections unused. In order to ensure this critical
emergency connection equipment remains functional and ready on demand it must be tested
periodically. This testing requires the use of imported water and the incurrence of associated
costs.

The proper testing of each of the eight flow meters, valves, and controllers at the turnouts is
expected to require the use of approximately 30 acre-feet of water per year. This water will not be
“lost”. Rather, it will be introduced into the distribution system supply and is expected to equate to
approximately 0.2% of annual supplies.

Page 1 of 2



nv

MesaWater

DISTRICT

The use of imported water incurs three primary costs defined below:

1) Cost per Acre Foot (AF): The flat rate for each AF of imported water used. The current
cost of $1104/AF will increase to $1143/AF on January 1, 2022.

2) Readiness-to-Serve (RTS) Charge: Standby charge based on the percentage of the total
imported by Municipal Water District of Orange County (MWDOC) that is used by Mesa
Water using a 4-year rolling average.

3) Capacity Charge: Peak flow charge based on the highest imported water flow rate (cubic
feet per second or CFS) called by Mesa Water during the high-demand season of May
through September each year, calculated over a 3-year rolling period. This fee is
determined as a percentage of the aggregate peak demands of all MWDOC member

agencies over the same period.

Current Costs to Mesa Water for Imported Water Use

Imported water $ per AF

RTS Charge per AF

Peak Capacity Charge per CFS

$1104

$55.82

$8,095

In order to minimize the financial impact, planned work for testing and maintenance of these
facilities will occur between October 15t and April 30" each year, avoiding capacity charge
assessments by MWDOC. This imported water would replace up to 30 AF of clear groundwater
supply. Therefore, the cost of this program would be offset by the cost of 30 AF of clear
groundwater supply.

Estimated Annual Costs for the Emergency Water Supply Assessment

(based on 2021 charges)

Imported RTS Capacity Total Imported | Less Clear Net Program
Water Cost Charge Charge Costs Groundwater* | Cost
$33,120 $1,675 $0 $34,795 $-17,640 $17,155

*Clear groundwater costs include the replenishment assessment, energy, and treatment costs.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

The current annual cost for 30 AF of imported water during off peak periods is approximately
$35,000 and will come from the existing water supply budget.

ATTACHMENTS

None.

Page 2 of 2



AGENDA
MESA CONSOLIDATED WATER DISTRICT
IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
ANNUAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627
Thursday, March 11, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.

IN AN EFFORT TO MITIGATE THE SPREAD OF COVID-19 (CORONAVIRUS), AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE GOVERNOR’'S EXECUTIVE ORDER N-29-20, THERE WILL BE
NO PUBLIC LOCATION FOR ATTENDING THIS BOARD MEETING IN PERSON.
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY LISTEN AND PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT BY EITHER
COMPUTER OR TELEPHONE AUDIO AS FOLLOWS:

Computer Audio: Please click the link below to join the Zoom webinar:
https://lzoom.us/j/98444927777
Meeting ID: 984 4492 7777
Passcode: 271651

Telephone Audio: (669) 900 6833

CALL TO ORDER - 6:00 p.m. or as soon thereafter as the Mesa Water District agenda permits.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

ITEMS TO BE ADDED, REMOVED, OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA

ACTION ITEMS:

A.

B.

CONFIRM DIRECTORS OF CORPORATION

APPROVE MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF MARCH 12, 2020
APPROVE MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF MAY 14, 2020

ELECTION OF CORPORATION OFFICERS:

Recommendation:

Elect President.

Elect Vice President.

Appoint Denise Garcia as Secretary.

Appoint Wendy Duncan as Assistant Secretary.
Appoint Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, as Treasurer.
Appoint Phil Lauri, P.E., as Assistant Treasurer.

ouhrwNE



https://zoom.us/j/98444927777?pwd=TkljRVBuNE5TOVNvTVBoOWsxbEtMUT09

E. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1 CHANGING THE MESA CONSOLIDATED WATER DISTRICT
IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION NAME:

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 2021-1 Changing the Mesa Consolidated
Water District Improvement Corporation Name and Authorizing the Filing of its Name
Change with the California Secretary of State.

F. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-2 ADOPTING AMENDED BYLAWS:

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution No. 2021-2 Adopting Amended Bylaws.
G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

None
H. NEW BUSINESS:

Recommendation: Direct officers to have annual audit conducted for Fiscal Year 2021.

In compliance with California law and the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need disability-related modifications or accommodations,
including auxiliary aids or services in order to participate in the meeting, or if you need the agenda provided in an alternative format, please
contact the District Secretary at (949) 631-1206. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable Mesa Water District (Mesa Water) to make
reasonable arrangements to accommodate your requests.

Members of the public desiring to make verbal comments utilizing a translator to present their comments into English shall be provided
reasonable time accommaodations that are consistent with California law.

Agenda materials that are public records, which have been distributed to a majority of the Mesa Water Board of Directors (Board), will be available
for public inspection at the District Boardroom, 1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA and on Mesa Water’'s website at www.MesaWater.org. If
materials are distributed to the Board less than 72 hours prior or during the meeting, the materials will be available at the time of the meeting.

ADJOURNMENT




MESA CONSOLIDATED WATER DISTRICT
IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Current Directors:

Jim Atkinson

Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E.
Marice H. DePasquale
Shawn Dewane

James R. Fisler

Current Officers:

President: Director Fisler

Vice President: Director DePasquale
Secretary: Denise Garcia

Assistant Secretary: Wendy Duncan

Treasurer: Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA

Assistant Treasurer: Phil Lauri, P.E.



MINUTES OF THE MESA CONSOLIDATED WATER DISTRICT

IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

ANNUAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627
Thursday, March 12, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Directors Present

Directors Absent

Staff Present

Others Present

PUBLIC COMMENTS

The meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at
6:43 p.m. by MCWDIC President Fisler.

James R. Fisler, MCWDIC President

Marice H. DePasquale, MCWDIC Vice President
Jim Atkinson, MCWDIC Director (teleconference)
Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E., MCWDIC Director
Shawn Dewane, MCWDIC Director

None

Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager

Denise Garcia, Administrative Services Manager/
MCWDIC Secretary

Wendy Duncan, Records Management Specialist/
MCWDIC Assistant Secretary

Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, Chief Financial Officer/
MCWDIC Treasurer

Stacie Sheek, Customer Services Manager

Syndie Ly, Human Resources Manager

Tracy Manning, Water Operations Manager

Jeff Hoskinson, Partner, Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud &
Romo

None

MCWDIC President Fisler asked for public comments on items not on the agenda.

There was no public present.

There was no public present at the teleconference site.

Attorney Hoskinson stated that one MCWDIC Director was attending the meeting via
teleconference per Governor Newsom'’s Executive Order No. N-25-20 which suspended certain
provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act.

MCWDIC Secretary Garcia stated that for each action, a roll call vote was taken in accordance
with California Government Code Section 54953 (b)(2) which states, “all votes taken during a
teleconferenced meeting shall be by roll call.”

MCWDIC President Fisler proceeded with the meeting.

Page 1 of 4



Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation Annual Meeting March 12, 2020

ITEMS TO BE ADDED, REMOVED, OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA

General Manager Shoenberger reported that there were no items to be added, removed, or
reordered on the agenda.

ACTION ITEMS:
A. CONFIRM DIRECTORS OF CORPORATION
MOTION
Motion by MCWDIC Director Bockmiller, second by MCWDIC Vice President DePasquale,

to confirm that the Directors of the Corporation Board consist of the Directors of the Mesa
Water District Board. Motion passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Dewane, DePasquale, Fisler
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None

B. APPROVE MINUTES FOR MEETING OF MARCH 14, 2019
MOTION
Motion by MCWDIC Vice President DePasquale, second by MCWDIC Director Dewane, to

approve the minutes for the meeting of March 14, 2019. Motion passed 5-0, by the
following roll call vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Dewane, DePasquale, Fisler
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None

C. ELECTION OF CORPORATION OFFICERS:

MCWDIC Secretary Garcia explained the current process followed to elect Officers of the
Corporation.

MOTION

Motion by MCWDIC Director Bockmiller, second by MCWDIC Vice President DePasquale,
to retain the current Corporation Officers:

James R. Fisler as MCWDIC President

Marice H. DePasquale as MCWDIC Vice President

Denise Garcia as MCWDIC Secretary

Wendy Duncan as MCWDIC Assistant Secretary

Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, as MCWDIC Treasurer

Phil Lauri, P.E., as MCWDIC Assistant Treasurer

oA WNE

Page 2 0of 4



Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation Annual Meeting March 12, 2020

E.

Motion passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Dewane, DePasquale, Fisler
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

At its March 14, 2019 annual meeting, the MWDIC Board of Directors (Board) queried:
e the length of the term of office for Officers of the Corporation
e if the MCWDIC bylaws has a sunset provision or clause

Attorney Hoskinson reported that the term of MCWDIC Officers may be changed from a 1-
year to a 2-year term by amending Bylaws Section 23. This would align with the 2-year
term of the Mesa Water District Officers.

He also recommended to amend Bylaws Section 24 to state that, in the event a MCWDIC
Officer leaves their Mesa Water District office, they would automatically depart their
MCWDIC office on the same date as well.

Attorney Hoskinson further reported that MCWDIC has no sunset provision or clause in its
bylaws. Dissolution of the Corporation is allowed by vote of the MCWDIC Board or by the
action of the MCWDIC Board in accordance with the provisions of California law. Upon the
dissolution of the Corporation, and after payment or provision for payment, all debts and
liabilities, the assets of MCWDIC shall be distributed to the District.

The MCWDIC Board directed staff to determine the possibility of changing the MCWDIC
name to “Mesa Water District Improvement Corporation” and to agendize this topic at a
future MCWDIC meeting.

NEW BUSINESS:

MOTION

Motion by MCWDIC Vice President DePasquale, second by MCWDIC Director Bockmiller,
to direct the Officers to have an annual audit conducted for Fiscal Year 2020. Motion
passed 5-0, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS Atkinson, Bockmiller, Dewane, DePasquale, Fisler
NOES: DIRECTORS None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS None

Page 3 of 4



Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation Annual Meeting March 12, 2020

The meeting was adjourned at 6:51 p.m.

Approved:

James R. Fisler, MCWDIC President

Denise Garcia, MCWDIC Secretary

Recording Secretary: Sharon D. Brimer

Page 4 of 4



MINUTES OF THE MESA CONSOLIDATED WATER DISTRICT

IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

SPECIAL MEETING

1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627
Thursday, May 14, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

Directors Present

Directors Absent

Staff Present

Others Present

The meeting of the Board of Directors was called to order at
6:07 p.m. by MCWDIC President Fisler.

James R. Fisler, MCWDIC President (teleconference)
Marice H. DePasquale, MCWDIC Vice President

(teleconference)
Jim Atkinson, MCWDIC Director (teleconference)
Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E., MCWDIC Director (teleconference)
Shawn Dewane, MCWDIC, Director (teleconference)

None

Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager (teleconference)

Phil Lauri, P.E., Assistant General Manager/
MCWDIC Assistant Treasurer (teleconference)

Denise Garcia, Administrative Services Manager/
MCWDIC Secretary

Wendy Duncan, Records Management Specialist/
MCWDIC Assist District Secretary

Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA, Chief Financial Officer/
MCWDIC Treasurer

Syndie Ly, Human Resources Manager (teleconference)

Tracy Manning, Water Operations Manager (teleconference)

Stacy Taylor, Water Policy Manager (teleconferece)

Kurt Lind, Business Administrator (teleconference)

Celeste Carrillo, Public Affairs Coordinator (teleconference)

Rob Anslow, Partner, Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud &
RomMO (teleconference)

Jonathan Aparicio, IT Support Engineer, T2 Tech Group

Jeffrey Bower, Managing Director, Bank of America
(teleconference)

Jack Tsang, Vice President, Bank of America (teleconference)

Lora Carpenter, Assistant Vice President, Fieldman, Rolapp
& Associates (teleconferece)

Robert A. Porr, Executive Vice President, Fieldman, Rolapp
& Associates (Teleconference)

Douglas S. Brown, Attorney, Stradling, Yocca, Carlson &
Rauth (teleconference)

Jennifer Farrell, Partner, Rutan & Tucker, LLP (teleconference)

MCWDIC President Fisler stated that the Board of Directors were attending the meeting via
teleconference per Governor Newsom'’s Executive Order N-29-20 which suspended certain
provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act.

Page 1 of 3



Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation Special Meeting May 14, 2020

MCWDIC President Fisler stated that for each action, a roll call vote was taken in accordance
with California Government Code Section 54953(b)(2) which states, “all votes taken during a
teleconferenced meeting shall be by roll call.”

MCWDIC President Fisler proceeded with the meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

MCWDIC President Fisler asked for public comments on items not on the agenda.

There were no comments.

ITEMS TO BE REMOVED OR REORDERED ON THE AGENDA

General Manager Shoenberger reported there were no items to be removed or reordered on the
agenda.

ACTION ITEMS:

A.

ISSUANCE OF 2020 REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION:

GM Shoenberger and Chief Financial Officer Khalifa provided a brief overview of the
topic.

CFO Khalifa introduced Bank of America Managing Director Jeffrey Bower and Vice
President Jack Tsang who proceeded with a brief Market Overview.

Messrs. Bower and Tsang responded to questions from the Board and they thanked them
for the information.

Fieldman, Rolapp & Associates Assistant Vice President Lora Carpenter provided a brief
Financial Overview and a presentation that highlighted the following:

e Capital Improvement Program Renewal
e New Money Debt Service

Ms. Carpenter responded to questions from the Board and they thanked her for the
presentation.

Stradling, Yocca, Carlson & Rauth P.C. Attorney Douglas S. Brown provided an overview
of the Legal Documents.

Mr. Brown responded to questions from the Board and they thanked him for the
information.

MCWDIC President Fisler asked for public comments. There were no comments.

Motion by MCWDIC Vice President DePasquale, second by MCWDIC Director Dewane,
to approve the recommended action.

Discussion ensued amongst the Board.

Page 2 of 3



Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation Special Meeting May 14, 2020

Motion by MCWDIC Director Bockmiller to defer action on this item. Motion failed due to
lack of a second.

MOTION

Motion by MCWDIC Vice President DePasquale, second by MCWDIC Director Dewane,
to adopt Resolution 2020-1 Authorizing the Preparation, Sale and Delivery of Revenue
Certificates of Participation, Approving Certain Documents as Described in the
Resolution with Respect Thereto and Authorizing Certain Actions in Connection
Therewith. Motion passed 4-1, by the following roll call vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS Atkinson, Dewane, DePasquale, Fisler
NOES: DIRECTORS Bockmiller

ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS None

ABSENT: DIRECTORS None

The meeting was adjourned at 6:46 p.m.

Approved:

James R. Fisler, MCWDIC President

Denise Garcia, MCWDIC Secretary

Recording Secretary: Sharon D. Brimer

Page 3 of 3



MESA CONSOLIDATED WATER DISTRICT
IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Current Directors:

Jim Atkinson

Fred R. Bockmiller, P.E.
Marice H. DePasquale
Shawn Dewane

James R. Fisler

President:

Vice President:
Secretary:

Assistant Secretary:
Treasurer:

Assistant Treasurer:

Proposed New Directors:

None

Current Officers:

Director Fisler

Director DePasquale
Denise Garcia

Wendy Duncan

Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA

Phil Lauri, P.E.

Proposed Officers:

Open

Open

Denise Garcia

Wendy Duncan

Marwan Khalifa, CPA, MBA

Phil Lauri, P.E.



MEMORANDUM

TO: MCWDIC Board of Directors

FROM: Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager

DATE: March 11, 2021

SUBJECT: Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation Name Change

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt Resolution No. 2021-1 Changing the Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement
Corporation Name and Authorizing the Filing of its Name Change with the California Secretary of
State.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION

At its April 24, 2012 Board meeting, the Mesa Water District Board of Directors approved
changing its name from “Mesa Consolidated Water District” to “Mesa Water District”.

At its March 14, 2019 annual meeting, the Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement
Corporation (MCWDIC or Corporation) Board of Directors (Board) directed staff to determine the
possibility of changing the name to “Mesa Water District Improvement Corporation” and to
agendize this topic at a future MCWDIC meeting.

At its March 12, 2020 annual meeting, the MCWDIC Board of Directors expressed the desire to
move forward with changing its corporate name from “Mesa Consolidated Water District
Improvement Corporation” to “Mesa Water District Improvement Corporation”.

DISCUSSION

The Corporation desires to change its corporate name from “Mesa Consolidated Water District
Improvement Corporation” to “Mesa Water District Improvement Corporation” to be consistent with
the 2012 name change decision.

To change the Corporation’s corporate name, the Restated Articles of Incorporation are required
by the California Secretary of State. The Board must approve the Restated Articles of
Incorporation and authorize staff and consultants to file the document with the California Secretary
of State. Once the Restated Articles of Incorporation have been filed, the Corporation will have
changed its corporate name from “Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation” to
“Mesa Water District Improvement Corporation”.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

Costs to file with the California Secretary of State are estimated at $100.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Resolution No. 2021-1, Draft

Page 1 of 1



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1
RESOLUTION OF THE

MESA CONSOLIDATED WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT

CORPORATION BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CHANGING ITS CORPORATE NAME AND AUTHORIZING THE FILING

OF ITS NAME CHANGE WITH THE
CALIFORNIA SECRETARY OF STATE

WHEREAS, Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation
(Corporation) was duly incorporated as a California nonprofit public benefit
corporation as of March 10, 1988; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to change its corporate name from
“‘Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation” to “Mesa Water
District Improvement Corporation.”

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MESA
CONSOLIDATED WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

The Restated Articles of Incorporation, which are required by the
California Secretary of State to change the Corporation’s corporate
name, are set forth in Attachment A and are incorporated herein by this
reference.

Upon filing with the California Secretary of State, the Corporation will
have duly changed its corporate name from “Mesa Consolidated Water
District Improvement Corporation” to “Mesa Water District
Improvement Corporation.”

Mesa Water staff and consultants are authorized to take such other
and further action(s) as are necessary or desirable to carry out the
directives of this Resolution.

(Remainder of page intentionally blank)

Resolution No. 2021-1 Page 1 of 2 Adopted: March 11, 2021



ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED this 11t day of March 2021 by the following roll
call vote.

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:

James R. Fisler
President, Board of Directors

Denise Garcia
Secretary

Resolution No. 2021-1 Page 1 of 2 Adopted: March 11, 2021



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTY OF ORANGE )

I, DENISE GARCIA, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Mesa
Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation, do hereby certify that the above
and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2021-1 of said Board,
and that the same has not been amended or repealed.

DATED: March 11, 2021

Denise Garcia
Corporation Secretary

Resolution No. 2021-1 Page 2 of 2 Adopted: March 11, 2021



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1
ATTACHMENT A

RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF
MESA WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Restated Articles of Incorporation



RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION

The undersigned certify that:

1. They are the Chief Executive Officer and the Secretary, respectively, of MESA
WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION, a California nonprofit
public benefit corporation (Corporation).

2. The Articles of Incorporation of this Corporation are amended and restated to
read as follows in Attachment A (Restated Articles of Incorporation), which is
incorporated herein by reference.

3. The foregoing Restated Articles of Incorporation have been duly approved by the
Board of Directors.

4. The Corporation has no members.

We further declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that
the matters set forth in this certificate are true and correct of our own knowledge.

DATE:

Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., Chief Executive
Officer

Denise Garcia, Secretary



ATTACHMENT A
RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF

MESA WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
l.
The name of this corporation is Mesa Water District Improvement Corporation.
Il.

This corporation is a nonprofit public benefit corporation and is not organized for
the private gain of any person. It is organized under the Nonprofit Public Benefit
Corporation Law for public purposes.

The specific purposes for which this corporation is formed are:

1. To render financial assistance to the Mesa Water District (the District), a
County Water District organized and existing under Sections 30000 and
following of the California Water Code, by financing, refinancing, acquiring,
constructing, improving, leasing and selling water, and other public
improvements, buildings, building improvements, equipment, lands, and
any other real or personal property for the benefit of the District and
surrounding areas.

2. To acquire by lease, purchase or otherwise, real or personal property or
any interest therein; to construct, reconstruct, modify, add to, improve or
otherwise acquire or equip buildings, structure or improvements and (by
sale, lease, sublease, leaseback, gift or otherwise) make any part or all of
any such real or personal property available to or for the benefit of the
District.

3. To promote the common good and general welfare of the residents,
property owners and customers of the District, and the governmental
enterprises in the District and surrounding areas by the acquisition of the
real and personal property as hereinabove described.

4. To borrow the necessary funds to pay the cost of financing, refinancing,
acquiring, constructing, replacing, establishing, improving, maintaining,
equipping and operating such properties and facilities for the herein
described purposes, the indebtedness for which borrowed money may, but
need not, be evidenced by securities of this corporation of any kind or
character issued at any one or more times, which may be either



unsecured or secured by any mortgage, trust deed, pledge, encumbrance
or other lien upon any part or all of the properties and assets at any time
then or thereafter owned or acquired by this corporation.

5. To receive limited or conditional gifts or grants in trust, inter vivos, or by
way of testamentary devises, bequests or grants in trust, or otherwise,
funds of all kinds including property, both real, personal and mixed,
whether principal or income, tangible or intangible, present or future,
vested or contingent, in order to carry on the purposes of this corporation.

C. The general purposes and powers are to have an exercise all rights and powers
now or hereafter conferred on nonprofit corporations under the laws of the State
of California; provided, however, that this corporation shall not, except to an
insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise any powers that are not
in furtherance of the specific and primary purposes of this corporation; provided,
further, that this corporation shall not have the power to, and shall not, do any act
or conduct any activity, plan, scheme, design or course of conduct which in any
way conflicts with Section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the Code), and regulations promulgated pursuant to said Section as it
now exists or as it may hereafter be amended.

The name and address in the State of California of this corporation’s agent for service of
process is: Denise Garcia, 1965 Placentia Avenue, Costa Mesa, CA 92627.

V.

A. The property of this corporation is irrevocably dedicated to public purposes and
no part of the net income or assets of this corporation shall ever inure to the
benefit of any director, officer or member thereof or to the benefit of any private
person.

B. This corporation is organized and operated by a group of public spirited citizens
exclusively for purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(4) of the Code.

C. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Articles, this corporation shall not
carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on by a corporation
exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(4) of the Code.

D. No substantial part of the activities of this corporation shall consist of carrying on
propaganda, or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and this corporation
shall not participate or intervene in any political campaign (including the
publishing or distribution of statements) on behalf of any candidate for political
office.



Date:

V.

During the continuance of this corporation, it may distribute any of its assets to
the United States of America, the State of California, or any political subdivision
thereof, to a nonprofit fund, foundation or corporation which is organized and
operated exclusively for charitable or social welfare purpose and which has
established its tax-exempt status under Section 501(c)(3) or 501 (c)(4) of the
Code.

Upon the dissolution or winding up of this corporation, its assets remaining after
payment of, or provisions made for the payment of, all debts and liabilities of this
corporation, shall be distributed to the United States of America, the State of
California, or any political subdivision thereof, or to a nonprofit fund, foundation or
corporation which is organized and operated exclusively for charitable or social
welfare purposes and which has established its tax-exempt status under Section
501(c)(3) or 501(c)(4) of the Code.

By:

Robert E. Anslow, Incorporator



MEMORANDUM

TO: MCWDIC Board of Directors

FROM: Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager
DATE: March 11, 2021

SUBJECT: Adopting Amended Bylaws

RECOMMENDATION

Adopt Resolution No. 2021-2 Adopting Amended Bylaws.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION

At its March 14, 2019 annual meeting, the Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement
Corporation (MCWDIC) Board of Directors (Board) inquired about the length of the term of office
for Officers of the Corporation. The Board recommended the term be changed from a 1-year term
to a 2-year term.

At its March 12, 2020 annual meeting, Attorney Hoskinson reported that the term of MCWDIC
Officers may be changed from a 1-year to a 2-year term by amending Section 23 of the Bylaws.
This would align with the 2-year term of the Mesa Water District Officers.

He also recommended to amend Section 24 of the Bylaws to state that in the event a MCWDIC
Officer leaves their Mesa Water District office, they would automatically depart their MCWDIC
office on the same date, as well.

DISCUSSION

The following changes were made to the Amended Bylaws:

e The Corporation name was changed throughout the Bylaws to reflect the name change
from “Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation” to “Mesa Water District
Improvement Corporation”.

e Section 6, Number — The number of members of the Board of Directors was changed
from four to five.

e Section 23, Subordinate Officers — The term of office was changed from an unspecified
time period to “a period of two years”.

e Section 24, Removal of Officers — The wording is this section was changed to state that
“if the President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, or any officer leaves service or
is terminated from employment with the District, such officer will be deemed to have
automatically resigned and vacated his or her office of the Corporation on the same
day”.

e Section 30, Nature of Objects and Purposes — The second sentence starting with
“Resolution No. 88-5 adopted concurrently with the approval and adoption of these
Bylaws and the Indenture, Installment Sale Agreement and Assignment Agreement
approved by such Resolution or a similar resolution or resolutions that may be adopted
in the future to carry out transactions which constitute additional phases to complete
the facilities program which is the subject of said Resolution No. 88-5, the Indenture,
Installment Sale Agreement and Assignment Agreement” was deleted and replaced
with “resolutions approved by the Board of Directors or agreements entered into by the

Page 1 of 2




Corporation that shall limit action(s) which may be taken by the Corporation, the Board
of Directors and/or the Corporation’s officers, as may be applicable”.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

None.

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment A: Resolution No. 2021-2, Draft
Attachment B: Resolution No. 88-1, Redline

Page 2 of 2



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-2

RESOLUTION OF THE
MESA WATERDISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ADOPTING AMENDED BYLAWS

WHEREAS, the Mesa Water District Improvement Corporation (the
Corporation), formerly the Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement
Corporation, was duly incorporated as a California nonprofit public benefit
corporation as of March 10, 1988; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation previously approved and adopted its original
Bylaws on March 10, 1988; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to amend its original Bylaws to govern
the affairs of the Corporation.

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MESA
WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION DOESHEREBY RESOLVE,
DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Amended Bylaws of the Corporation, attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein as Attachment A (Amended
Bylaws), are hereby adopted and approved and shall stand as
the Bylaws of the Corporation until valid amendment thereof.

Section 2. Upon adoption, the Amended Bylaws hereby supersede the
original Bylaws approved and adopted by the Corporation’s
Board of Directors on March 10, 1988.

Section 3. That the Secretary is to execute the Amended Bylaws and the
Certificate of Adoption of the Amended Bylaws, and to insert
the certified Bylaws in the book of minutes of the Corporation
and to see that a copy of the certified Bylaws is kept at the
principal office of the Corporation.

(Remainder of page intentionally blank)

Resolution No. 2021-2 Page 1 of 2 Adopted: March 11, 2021



ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED this 11th day of March 2021 by the
following roll call vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:

James R. Fisler
President, Board of Directors

Denise Garcia
Secretary

Resolution No. 2021-2 Page 2 of 2 Adopted: March 11, 2021



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) SS.
COUNTY OF ORANGE )

I, DENISE GARCIA, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Mesa Water District
Improvement Corporation, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a full, true
and correct copy of Resolution No. 2021-2 of said Board, and that the same has not
been amended or repealed.

DATED: March 11, 2021

Denise Garcia
Secretary



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-2
ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION OF THE
MESA WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ADOPTING AMENDED BYLAWS

AMENDED BYLAWS
OF

MESA WATER DISTRICT
IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Adopted: March 11, 2021



AMENDED BYLAWS
OF
MESA WATER DISTRICTIMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Section 1. Name. The name of the Corporation is Mesa Water District
Improvement Corporation.

I
Offices and Seal

Section 2. Offices. The principal office of the Corporation for the
transaction of business shall be 1965 Placentia Avenue,
Costa Mesa, California 92627. The Board of Directors of the
Corporation (the Board of Directors) may, however, fix and
change from time to time the principal office from one
location to another by noting the change of address in the
minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors at which the
address was fixed or changed. The fixing or changing of
such address shall not be deemed an amendment to these
Bylaws.

Section 3. Seal. The Corporation shall have a seal, consisting of two (2)
concentric circles with the words "Mesa Water District
Improvement Corporation" and the date of incorporation of
this corporation.

Members
Section 4. Members. This Corporation shall have no members
v
Directors
Section 5. Powers. Subject to the limitations of the laws of the State of

California, the Restated Articles of Incorporation of this
Corporation and the terms of these Bylaws, the powers of
this Corporation shall be vested in and exercised by, and its

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 1 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



property controlled and its affairs conducted by, the Board of
Directors.

Section 6. Number. The Corporation shall have five (5) Directors. The
Directors are collectively to be known as the Board of
Directors. The number of Directors may be changed by an
amendment to the Bylaws duly adopted by the Board of
Directors.

Section 7. Selection, Tenure of Office and Vacancies.

a) The members of the Board of Directors of the Mesa
Water District Improvement Corporation shall also be
members of the board of directors of the Mesa Water
District (the District). If a member of the Board of
Directors of the Mesa Water District Improvement
Corporation ceases to be a member of the board of
directors of the District, then he or she shall cease to be a
Director of this Corporation.

b) If the office of any Director becomes vacant prior to the
expiration of his or her term of office, the Director
appointed or otherwise chosen to fill the vacancy on the
District's board of directors shall be selected by the
remaining members of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation to fill such vacancy.

Section 8. Compensation. The Directors-shall serve without
compensation but each Director may be reimbursed for his or
her necessary and actual expenses, including travel incident
to his services as Director, pursuant to a resolution of the
Board of Directors. Any Director may elect, however, to
decline said reimbursement.

Section 9. Organizational Meetings.

a) Immediately following the annual meeting of the Board of
Directors, the Directors shall meet for the purpose of
organizing the Board, electing officers and transacting
such business as may come before the meeting. Pending
such organizational meeting, all officers of the
Corporation shall hold over, except any officer required by
law or these Bylaws to be a Director and who does not
qualify as a Director.

b) In the event such an organizational meeting shall not be

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 2 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



held immediately following such annual meeting of the
Board of Directors, it shall thereafter be held at the next
regular meeting or a special meeting and notice thereof
shall be given in the manner provided in Section 11 and
must conform to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown
Act, Sections 54950 et sego of the Government Code of
the State of California, as amended from time to time (the
Brown Act) and Parts 1 and 2 of Division 2, Sections 5002
through 6910, of the Corporations Code of the State of
California, as amended from time to time (the Nonprofit
Corporation Law).

Section 10. Regular, Annual and Organizational Meetings.

a) Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at
such time as the Board of Directors may fix by resolution
from time to time. At least one regular meeting shall be held
each year and be designated the Annual Meeting. All such
meetings shall, in all respects, conform to provisions of the
Brown Act and the Nonprofit Corporation Law. If any
provision hereof is inconsistent with the Brown Act or the
Nonprofit Corporation Law, such statutes shall prevail over
the inconsistent provision hereof to the extent of the
inconsistency.

b) No notice of any organizational meeting of the Board of
Directors, held immediately following the Annual Meeting of
the Board of Directors or on or after any special meeting of
the Board of Directors need be given; provided, that if such
an organizational meeting is not held immediately following
such meeting of the Board of Directors, then notice thereof
shall be given in a manner provided in Section 11 hereof, the
Brown Act and the Nonprofit Corporation Law.

Section 11. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors
shall be called, noticed and held in accordance with the
provisions of Government Code Section 54956 and
Corporations Code Section 5211.

Section 12. Quorum. A quorum shall consist of a majority of the members of
the Board of Directors unless a greater number is expressly
required by statute, by the Article of Incorporation of this
Corporation, or by these Bylaws. Every act or decision done or
made by a majority of the Board of Directors present at a
meeting duly held at which a quorum is present, shall be the act
of the Board of Directors.

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 3 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



Section 13. Waiver of Notice. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any
Director who, either before or after the meeting, signs a waiver
of notice, a written consent to the holding of the meeting, or an
approval of the minutes of the meeting. The waiver of notice or
consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. All such
waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the
corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the
meetings. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Director
who attends the meeting and does not protest, before or at the
commencement of the meeting, the lack of notice to him or her.

Section 14. Adjournment. A majority of the Directors present, whether or not
a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time
and place.

Section 15. Notice of Adjourned Meeting. Notice of time and place of

holding an adjourned meeting need not be given unless the
original meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours. If the
original meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, notice
of any adjournment to another time and place shall be given,
before the time of the adjourned meeting, to the Directors
who were not present at the time of the adjournment.

Section 16. Action Without a Meeting. Any action that the Board of
Directors is required or permitted to take may be taken
without a meeting if all members of the Board of Directors
consent in writing to the action; provided, however, that the
consent of any Director who has a material financial interest
in a transaction to which the Corporation is a party and who
is an "interested director" as defined in Section 5233 of the
Nonprofit Corporation Law shall not be required for approval
of that transaction. Such action by written consent shall have
the same force and effect as any other validly approved
action of the Board of Directors. All such consents shall be
filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of
Directors.

Section 17. Order of Business. The order of business at the regular
meeting of the Board of Directors and, so far as possible, at
all other meetings of the Board of Directors, shall be
essentially as follows, except as otherwise determined by the
Directors at such meeting:

a) Report on the number of Directors present in person in
order to determine the existence of a quorum.

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 4 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



b) Reading of the notice of the meeting and proof of the
delivery or mailing thereof, or the waiver or waivers of
notice of the meeting then filed, as the case may be.

c) Reading of unapproved minutes of previous meetings of
the Board of Directors and the taking of action with respect
to approval thereof.

d) Presentation and consideration of reports of officers and
committees.

e) Election of officers.
f) Unfinished business.
g) New business.

h) Adjournment.

Section 18. Resignation and Removal of Directors.

Resignation or removal of a Director from the board of
directors of the District shall constitute resignation or removal
of such Director from the Board of Directors of the
Corporation with the same date or effect.

Section 19. Nonliability for Debts. The private and personal property of
the Directors shall be exempt from execution or other liability
for any debts, liabilities or obligations of the Corporation and
no Director shall be liable or responsible for any debts,
liabilities or obligations of the Corporation.

Section 20. Indemnity by Corporation for Litigation Expenses of Officer,
Director or Employee. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
this Corporation shall indemnify its Directors, officers,
employees, and other persons described in Section 5238(a)
of the Nonprofit Corporation Law, including persons formerly
occupying any such position, against all expenses,
judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts actually
and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any
"proceeding,” as that term is used in that Section, and
including an action by or in the right of the Corporation, by
reason of the fact that the person is or was a person
described in that Section. "Expenses," as used in this Bylaw,
shall have the same meaning as in Section 5238(a) of the

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 5 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



Nonprofit Corporation Law.
\"/
Officers

Section 21. Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President,
a Vice President, a Secretary, a Treasurer and such other
officers as the Board of Directors may appoint. When the
duties do not conflict, one person, other than the President,
may hold more than one of these offices. Unless the
Directors of the Corporation otherwise direct, the President of
the Corporation shall be the first vice president of the District.
The Vice President of the Corporation shall be the president
of the District. The Treasurer of the Corporation shall be the
treasurer of the District and the Secretary of the Corporation
shall be secretary of the board of directors of the District. The
Corporation may also have, at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, one or more additional Vice Presidents, one or
more Assistant Secretaries, and one or more Assistant
Treasurers.

Section 22. Election of Officers. Except as provided in Section 21
respecting the President, Vice President, Treasurer and
Secretary, the other officers of the Corporation shall be
chosen by and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of
Directors and each shall hold office until he shall resign or
shall be removed or otherwise disqualified to serve or his
successor shall be elected and qualified to serve.

Section 23. Subordinate Officers. The Board of Directors may elect or
authorize the appointment of such other officers than those
hereinabove mentioned for a period of two years. Each
officer shall have such authority and perform such duties as
are provided in these Bylaws, or as the Board of Directors
from time to time may authorize or determine.

Section 24. Removal of Officers. Except as provided in Section 21
respecting the President, Vice President, Treasurer and
Secretary, any officer may be removed, either with or without
cause, by a majority of the Directors then in office at any
regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, or,
except in the case of an officer chosen by the Board of
Directors, by any officers upon whom such power of removal
may be conferred by the Board of Directors. Additionally, if
the President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, or any

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 6 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



officer leaves service or is terminated from employment with
the District, such officer will be deemed to have automatically
resigned and vacated his or her office of the Corporation on
the same day. Should a vacancy occur in any office as a
result of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any
other cause, the Board of Directors may delegate the powers
and duties of such office to any officers or to any Directors
until such time as a successor for said office has been
elected and appointed. Resignation or removal of the
president, vice president, treasurer and secretary of the
District shall constitute resignation or removal of such officer
of the Corporation.

Section 25. President.

a) The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of
Directors and exercise and perform such other powers
and duties as may be from time to time assigned to him
by the Board of Directors or be prescribed by the Bylaws.

b) The President shall also be the chief corporate officer of
the Corporation and shall, subject to the control of the
Board of Directors, have general supervision, direction
and control of the business and officers of the
Corporation. He shall preside at all meetings of the Board
of Directors. He shall be ex officio member of all standing
committees, and shall have the general powers and
duties of management usually vested in the office of
President of a corporation and shall have such other
powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors or by these Bylaws.

Section 26. Vice President. In the absence or disability of the President,
the Vice President, or the Vice Presidents in order of their
ranks as fixed by the Board of Directors, or if not ranked, the
Vice President designated by the Board of Directors, shall
perform all the duties of the President and when so acting
shall have all the powers of and be subject to all of the
restriction upon the President. The Vice Presidents shall
have such other powers and perform such duties as may
from time to time be prescribed for them, respectively, by the
Board of Directors or by these Bylaws.

Section 27. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept a
book of minutes at the principal office or at such other place
as the Board of Directors may order, of all meetings of the

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 7 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



Directors, with the time and place of holding the meeting,
whether regular or special, and if special, how authorized,
the notice thereof given, the names of those present at
Directors' meetings and the proceedings thereof. The
Secretary shall give or cause to be given notice of all
meetings of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, shall
keep the corporate records in safe custody and shall have
such other powers and perform such other duties as may be
prescribed by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws.

Section 28. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall keep and maintain or cause
to be kept and maintained adequate and correct accounts of
its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains and
losses. The books of account shall at all times be open to
inspection by any Director. The Treasurer shall deposit all
monies and other valuables in the name and to the credit of
the Corporation in such depositories as may be designated
by the Directors. He shall disburse the funds of the
Corporation as shall be ordered by the Board of Directors,
shall render to the President and the Directors whenever
they shall request it, an account of all of his transactions as
Treasurer and the financial condition of the Corporation, shall
take proper vouchers for all disbursements of the funds of
the Corporation, and shall have such other powers and
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board
of Directors or by these Bylaws.

Section 29. Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers.

The Assistant Secretaries and the Assistant Treasurers in
the order of their seniority as specified by the Directors shall,
in the absence or disability of the Secretary or the Treasurer,
respectively, perform the duties and exercise the powers of
the Secretary or Treasurer and shall perform such duties as
the Board of Directors shall prescribe.

Vi
Objects and Purposes

Section 30. Nature of Objects and Purposes. The business of this
Corporation is to be operated and conducted in the
promotion of its objects and purposes as set forth in Article Il
of its Article of Incorporation. The foregoing notwithstanding,
the Corporation shall not engage in any activities not
contemplated by, or necessary or proper to carry out the

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 8 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



transactions contemplated by resolutions approved by the
Board of Directors or agreements entered into by the
Corporation that shall limit action(s) which may be taken by
the Corporation, the Board of Directors and/or the
Corporation’s officers, as may be applicable.

Section 31. Dissolution. The Corporation may be dissolved by vote of the
Board of Directors, or by the action of the Board of Directors
in accordance with the provisions of California law. Upon the
dissolution or winding up of this Corporation, and after
payment or provision for payment, all debts and liabilities, the
assets of this Corporation shall be distributed to the District.
If for any reason the District is unable or unwilling to accept
the assets of the Corporation, said assets will be distributed
to the Federal Government; to a state or local government for
public purposes; or to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or
corporation which is organized and operated for charitable or
civic purposes and which has established its tax-exempt
status under Section 501(c)(3) or 501(c)(4) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code).

Section 32. Merger. The Corporation may merge with other corporations
organized solely for nonprofit purposes, qualified and exempt
from federal taxation pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) or
501(c)(4) of the Code, and from State taxation, upon
compliance with the provisions of California law relating to
merger and consolidation.

Vil
General Provisions

Section 33. Payment of Money, Signatures. All checks, drafts or other
orders for payment of money, notes or other evidences of
indebtedness issued in the name of or payable to the
Corporation and any and all securities owned by or held by
the Corporation requiring signature for transfer shall be
signed or endorsed by such person or persons and in such
manner as from time to time shall be determined by the
Board of Directors.

Section 34. Execution of Contracts. The Board of Directors, except as in
the Bylaws otherwise provided, may authorize any officer or
officers, agent or agents, to enter into any-contract or
execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the
Corporation and such authority may be general or confined

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 9 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



to specific instances and unless so authorized by the Board
of Directors, no officer, agent or employee shall have any
power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or
engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for
any purpose or in any amount.

Section 35. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall
commence on the 1st day of July of each year and shall end
on the 30th day of June of the next succeeding year.

Section 36. Annual Audit. The affairs and financial condition of the
Corporation shall be audited annually at the end of each
fiscal year by an independent certified public accountant
selected by the Board of Directors and a written report of
such audit and appropriate financial statements shall be
submitted to the Board of Directors prior to the next regular
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation following
the completion of such audit. Additional audits may be
authorized as considered necessary or desirable by the
Board of Directors.

Vil
Exempt Activities

Section 37. Restrictions. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these
Bylaws, no Director, officer, employee or representative of
this Corporation shall take any action or carry on any activity
by or on behalf of the Corporation not permitted to be taken
or carried on by an organization exempt under Section
501(c)(4) of the Code and the regulations promulgated
thereunder as they now exist or as they may hereafter be
amended.

IX
Amendment to Bylaws

Section 38. Amendments. These Bylaws may be amended by majority
vote of the Board of Directors.

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 10 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



ADOPTED by the Mesa Water District Improvement Corporation Board of Directors
on this 11th day of March 2021.

Denise Garcia
Secretary

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 11 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:

1. That | am the duly elected and acting Secretary of the Mesa
Water District Improvement Corporation, a California nonprofit
public benefit corporation; and

2. That the foregoing Amended Bylaws constitute a full, true and
correct copy of the Amended Bylaws of said Corporation in full
force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto subscribed my name this 11th day of
March 2021.

Denise Garcia
Secretary



RESOLUTION NO. 882021-12

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OFTHE-MESA CONSOLIDATED-WATERDISTRICT

WHEREAS,

IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ADOPTING AMENDED BYLAWS

the Mesa Water District Improvement Corporation (the

Corporation), formerly the Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement
Corporation—-{the"Ceorperation™), was duly incorporated as a California nonprofit
public benefit corporation as of March 10, 1988; and

WHEREAS,

the Corporation previously approved and adopted its original

Bylaws on March 10, 1988; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation desires to appreveamend its original Bylaws to
govern the affairs of the Corporation.

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MESA
CONSOHBATED WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION DOES
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.

Section 2.

Section 3.

Resolution No. 2021-2

The Amended Bylaws of the Corporation, attached hereto and
incorporated by reference herein as ExhibitAttachment “A%;
(Amended Bylaws), are hereby adopted and approved and
shall stand as the Bylaws of the Corporation until valid
amendment thereof.

Upon adoption, the Amended Bylaws hereby supersede the
original Bylaws approved and adopted by the Corporation’s
Board of Directors on March 10, 1988.

That the Secretary is to execute the Amended Bylaws and the
Certificate of Adoption of the Amended Bylaws, and to insert
the certified Bylaws in the book of minutes of the Corporation
and to see that a copy of the certified Bylaws is kept at the
principal office of the Corporation.

(Remainder of page intentionally blank)

Page 1 of 2 Adopted: March 11, 2021



ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED this 40th11th day of Mareh,—1988-March

2021 by the following roll call vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:

By

By

Denise Garcia

Secretary;
MESA-CONSOLIDATED-WATER-
BPISTRICTIMPROVEMENT-
CORPORATON-and-of- the Board-of
Directors-thereof

James R. Fisler

President, Board of Directors

MESA CONSOLIDATED WATER-
DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT-
CORPORATHON-and-ofthe Board-of
Directors-thereof

Resolution No. 2021-2

Page 2 of 2 Adopted: March 11, 2021



STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) SS.
COUNTY OF ORANGE )

I, SUE-STERRETFDENISE GARCIA, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the Mesa
Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation, do hereby certify that the above
and foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 88-1-2021-2 of said
Board, and that the same has not been amended or repealed.

DATED: Mareh406,4988March 11, 2021

Denise Garcia
Secretary



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-2
ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION OF THE
MESA WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ADOPTING AMENDED BYLAWS

AMENDED BYLAWS
OF

MESA CONSOLIDATEDWATER DISTRICT
IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Adopted: March 11, 2021



AMENDED BYLAWS
OF

MESA CONSOLIDATED-WATER DISTRICT-
IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Section 1. Name. The name of the Corporation is Mesa-Censolidated
Water District Improvement Corporation.

I
Offices and Seal

Section 2. Offices. The principal office of the Corporation for the
transaction of business shall be 1965 Placentia Avenue,
Costa Mesa, California 92627. The Board of Directors of the
Corporation (the “Board of Directors") may, however, fix and
change from time to time the principal office from one
location to another by noting the change of address in the
minutes of the meeting of the Board of Directors at which the
address was fixed or changed. The fixing or changing of
such address shall not be deemed an amendment to these
Bylaws.

Section 3. Seal. The Corporation shall have a seal, consisting of two (2)
concentric circles with the words "Mesa Conselidated-Water
District Improvement Corporation" and the date of
incorporation of this corporation.

Members
Section 4. Members. This Corporation shall have no members
\"
Directors
Section 5. Powers. Subject to the limitations of the laws of the State of

California, the Restated Articles of Incorporation of this
Corporation and the terms of these Bylaws, the powers of

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 1 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



this Corporation shall be vested in and exercised by, and its
property controlled and its affairs conducted by, the Board of
Directors.

Section 6. Number. The Corporation shall have feur{4five (5) Directors.
The Directors are collectively to be known as the Board of
Directors. The number of Directors may be changed by an
amendment to the Bylaws thereof-duly adopted by the Board
of Directors.

Section 7. Selection, Tenure of Office and Vacancies.

a) The members of the Board of Directors of the Mesa
Consolidated-Water District Improvement Corporation
shall also be members of the board of directors of the
Mesa Conselidated-Water District (the “District®). If a
member of the Board of Directors of the Mesa-
Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation
ceases to be a member of the board of directors of the
District, then he or she shall cease to be a Director of this
Corporation.

b) If the office of any Director becomes vacant prior to the
expiration of his or her term of office, the Director
appointed or otherwise chosen to fill the vacancy on the
District's board of directors shall be selected by the
remaining members of the Board of Directors of the
Corporation to fill such vacancy.

Section 8. Compensation. The Directors-shall serve without
compensation but each Director may be reimbursed for his or
her necessary and actual expenses, including travel incident
to his services as Director, pursuant to a resolution of the
Board of Directors. Any Director may elect, however, to
decline said reimbursement.

Section 9. Organizational Meetings.

a) Immediately following the annual meeting of the Board of
Directors, the Directors shall meet for the purpose of
organizing the Board, electing officers and transacting
such business as may come before the meeting. Pending
such organizational meeting, all officers of the
Corporation shall hold over, except any officer required by
law or these Bylaws to be a Director and who does not
qualify as a Director.

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 2 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



b) In the event such an organizational meeting shall not be
held immediately following such annual meeting of the
Board of Directors, it shall thereafter be held at the next
regular meeting or a special meeting and notice thereof
shall be given in the manner provided in Section 11 and
must conform to the provisions of the Ralph M. Brown
Act, Sections 54950 et sego of the Government Code of
the State of California, as amended from time to time (the
“Brown Act") and Parts 1 and 2 of Division 2, Sections
5002 through 6910, of the Corporations Code of the State
of California, as amended from time to time (the
“Nonprofit Corporation Law®").

Section 10. Regular, Annual and Organizational Meetings.

a) Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at
such time as the Board of Directors may fix by resolution
from time to time. At least one regular meeting shall be held
each year and be designated the Annual Meeting. All such
meetings shall, in all respects, conform to provisions of the
Brown Act and the Nonprofit Corporation Law. If any
provision hereof is inconsistent with the Brown Act or the
Nonprofit Corporation Law, such statutes shall prevail over
the inconsistent provision hereof to the extent of the
inconsistency.

b) No notice of any organizational meeting of the Board of
Directors, held immediately following the Annual Meeting of
the Board of Directors or on or after any special meeting of
the Board of Directors need be given; provided, that if such
an organizational meeting is not held immediately following
such meeting of the Board of Directors, then notice thereof
shall be given in a manner provided in Section 11 hereof, the
Brown Act and the Nonprofit Corporation Law.

Section 11. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors
shall be called, noticed and held in accordance with the
provisions of Government Code Section 54956 and
Corporations Code Section 5211.

Section 12. Quorum. A quorum shall consist of a majority of the members of
the Board of Directors unless a greater number is expressly
required by statute, by the Article of Incorporation of this
Corporation, or by these Bylaws. Every act or decision done or
made by a majority of the Board of Directors present at a

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 3 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



meeting duly held at which a quorum is present, shall be the act
of the Board of Directors.

Section 13. Waiver of Notice. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any
Director who, either before or after the meeting, signs a waiver
of notice, a written consent to the holding of the meeting, or an
approval of the minutes of the meeting. The waiver of notice or
consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. All such
waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the
corporate records or made a part of the minutes of the
meetings. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Director
who attends the meeting and does not protest, before or at the
commencement of the meeting, the lack of notice to him or her.

Section 14. Adjournment. A majority of the Directors present, whether or not
a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another time
and place.

Section 15. Notice of Adjourned Meeting. Notice of time and place of

holding an adjourned meeting need not be given unless the
original meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours. If the
original meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, notice
of any adjournment to another time and place shall be given,
before the time of the adjourned meeting, to the Directors
who were not present at the time of the adjournment.

Section 16. Action Without a Meeting. Any action that the Board of
Directors is required or permitted to take may be taken
without a meeting if all members of the Board of Directors
consent in writing to the action; provided, however, that the
consent of any Director who has a material financial interest
in a transaction to which the Corporation is a party and who
is an "interested director" as defined in Section 5233 of the
Nonprofit Corporation Law shall not be required for approval
of that transaction. Such action by written consent shall have
the same force and effect as any other validly approved
action of the Board of Directors. All such consents shall be
filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board of
Directors.

Section 17. Order of Business. The order of business at the regular
meeting of the Board of Directors and, so far as possible, at
all other meetings of the Board of Directors, shall be
essentially as follows, except as otherwise determined by the
Directors at such meeting:

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 4 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



a) Report on the number of Directors present in person in
order to determine the existence of a quorum.

b) Reading of the notice of the meeting and proof of the
delivery or mailing thereof, or the waiver or waivers of
notice of the meeting then filed, as the case may be.

c) Reading of unapproved minutes of previous meetings of
the Board of Directors and the taking of action with respect
to approval thereof.

d) Presentation and consideration of reports of officers and
committees.

e) Election of officers.
f) Unfinished business.
g) New business.

h) Adjournment.

Section 18. Resignation and Removal of Directors.

Resignation or removal of a Director from the board of
directors of the District shall constitute resignation or removal
of such Director from the Board of Directors of the
Corporation with the same date or effect.

Section 19. Nonliability for Debts. The private and personal property of
the Directors shall be exempt from execution or other liability
for any debts, liabilities or obligations of the Corporation and
no Director shall be liable or responsible for any debts,
liabilities or obligations of the Corporation.

Section 20. Indemnity by Corporation for Litigation Expenses of Officer,
Director or Employee. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
this Corporation shall indemnify its Directors, officers,
employees, and other persons described in Section 5238(a)
of the Nonprofit Corporation Law, including persons formerly
occupying any such position, against all expenses,
judgments, fines, settlements and other amounts actually
and reasonably incurred by them in connection with any
"proceeding,” as that term is used in that Section, and
including an action by or in the right of the Corporation, by
reason of the fact that the person is or was a person

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 5 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



described in that Section. "Expenses," as used in this Bylaw,
shall have the same meaning as in Section 5238(a) of the
Nonprofit Corporation Law.

Vv
Officers

Section 21. Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President,
a Vice President, a Secretary, a Treasurer and such other
officers as the Board of Directors may appoint. When the
duties do not conflict, one person, other than the President,
may hold more than one of these offices. Unless the
Directors of the Corporation otherwise direct, the President of
the Corporation shall be the first vice president of the District.
The Vice President of the Corporation shall be the president
of the District. The Treasurer of the Corporation shall be the
treasurer of the District and the Secretary of the Corporation
shall be secretary of the board of directors of the District. The
Corporation may also have, at the discretion of the Board of
Directors, one or more additional Vice Presidents, one or
more Assistant Secretaries, and one or more Assistant
Treasurers.

Section 22. Election of Officers. Except as provided in Section 21
respecting the President, Vice President, Treasurer and
Secretary, the other officers of the Corporation shall be
chosen by and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of
Directors and each shall hold office until he shall resign or
shall be removed or otherwise disqualified to serve or his
successor shall be elected and qualified to serve.

Section 23. Subordinate Officers. The Board of Directors may elect or
authorize the appointment of such other officers than those
hereinabove mentioned as-the-businessfor a period of the-

Corporationmay-require—each-of whomtwo years. Each
officer shall-held-office-for-such-peried; have such authority

and perform such duties as are provided in these Bylaws, or
as the Board of Directors from time to time may authorize or
determine.

Section 24. Removal of Officers. Except as provided in Section 21
respecting the President, Vice President, Treasurer and
Secretary, any officer may be removed, either with or without
cause, by a majority of the Directors then in office at any
regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, or,

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 6 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



except in the case of an officer chosen by the Board of
Directors, by any officers upon whom such power of removal
may be conferred by the Board of Directors. Additionally, if
the President, Vice President, Treasurer, Secretary, or any
officer leaves service or is terminated from employment with
the District, such officer will be deemed to have automatically
resigned and vacated his or her office of the Corporation on
the same day. Should a vacancy occur in any office as a
result of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any
other cause, the Board of Directors may delegate the powers
and duties of such office to any officers or to any Directors
until such time as a successor for said office has been
elected and appointed. Resignation or removal of the
president, vice president, treasurer and secretary of the
District shall constitute resignation or removal of such officer
of the Corporation.

Section 25. President.

a) The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of
Directors and exercise and perform such other powers
and duties as may be from time to time assigned to him
by the Board of Directors or be prescribed by the Bylaws.

b) The President shall also be the chief corporate officer of
the Corporation and shall, subject to the control of the
Board of Directors, have general supervision, direction
and control of the business and officers of the
Corporation. He shall preside at all meetings of the Board
of Directors. He shall be ex officio member of all standing
committees, and shall have the general powers and
duties of management usually vested in the office of
President of a corporation and shall have such other
powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors or by these Bylaws.

Section 26. Vice President. In the absence or disability of the President,
the Vice President, or the Vice Presidents in order of their
ranks as fixed by the Board of Directors, or if not ranked, the
Vice President designated by the Board of Directors, shall
perform all the duties of the President and when so acting
shall have all the powers of and be subject to all of the
restriction upon the President. The Vice Presidents shall
have such other powers and perform such duties as may
from time to time be prescribed for them, respectively, by the
Board of Directors or by these Bylaws.

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 7 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



Section 27. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep or cause to be kept a
book of minutes at the principal office or at such other place
as the Board of Directors may order, of all meetings of the
Directors, with the time and place of holding the meeting,
whether regular or special, and if special, how authorized,
the notice thereof given, the names of those present at
Directors' meetings and the proceedings thereof. The
Secretary shall give or cause to be given notice of all
meetings of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, shall
keep the corporate records in safe custody and shall have
such other powers and perform such other duties as may be
prescribed by the Board of Directors or these Bylaws.

Section 28. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall keep and maintain or cause
to be kept and maintained adequate and correct accounts of
its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains and
losses. The books of account shall at all times be open to
inspection by any Director. The Treasurer shall deposit all
monies and other valuables in the name and to the credit of
the Corporation in such depositories as may be designated
by the Directors. He shall disburse the funds of the
Corporation as shall be ordered by the Board of Directors,
shall render to the President and the Directors whenever
they shall request it, an account of all of his transactions as
Treasurer and the financial condition of the Corporation, shall
take proper vouchers for all disbursements of the funds of
the Corporation, and shall have such other powers and
perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board
of Directors or by these Bylaws.

Section 29. Assistant Secretaries and Assistant Treasurers.

The Assistant Secretaries and the Assistant Treasurers in
the order of their seniority as specified by the Directors shall,
in the absence or disability of the Secretary or the Treasurer,
respectively, perform the duties and exercise the powers of
the Secretary or Treasurer and shall perform such duties as
the Board of Directors shall prescribe.

Vi
Objects and Purposes

Section 30. Nature of Objects and Purposes. The business of this
Corporation is to be operated and conducted in the

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 8 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



promotion of its objects and purposes as set forth in Article Il
of its Article of Incorporation. The foregoing notwithstanding,
the Corporation shall not engage in any activities not
contemplated by, or necessary or proper to carry out the

transactlons contemplated by—ReseLunePrNe—S&éadepted—

As&gnmeM—Ag#eemenL resolutions approved by sueh-
Resolutionthe Board of Directors or a-similarreseolution-or

resolutions-agreements entered into by the Corporation that
shall limit action(s) which may be adepted-intaken by the

‘ . hick : Llit |
phases-to-completeCorporation, the facilitiesprogram-which-
is-Board of Directors and/or the subject-ofsaid-Resolution-
Assignment-AgreementCorporation’s officers, as may be
applicable.

Section 31. Dissolution. The Corporation may be dissolved by vote of the
Board of Directors, or by the action of the Board of Directors
in accordance with the provisions of California law. Upon the
dissolution or winding up of this Corporation, and after
payment or provision for payment, all debts and liabilities, the
assets of this Corporation shall be distributed to the District.
If for any reason the District is unable or unwilling to accept
the assets of the Corporation, said assets will be distributed
to the Federal Government; to a state or local government for
public purposes; or to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or
corporation which is organized and operated for charitable or
civic purposes and which has established its tax-exempt
status under Section 501(c)(3) or 501(c)(4) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code*").

Section 32. Merger. The Corporation may merge with other corporations
organized solely for nonprofit purposes, qualified and exempt
from Federalfederal taxation pursuant to Section 501(c)(3) or
501(c)(4) of the Code, and from State taxation, upon
compliance with the provisions of California law relating to
merger and consolidation.

Vi
General Provisions

Section 33. Payment of Money, Signatures. All checks, drafts or other
orders for payment of money, notes or other evidences of

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 9 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



indebtedness issued in the name of or payable to the
Corporation and any and all securities owned by or held by
the Corporation requiring signature for transfer shall be
signed or endorsed by such person or persons and in such
manner as from time to time shall be determined by the
Board of Directors.

Section 34. Execution of Contracts. The Board of Directors, except as in
the Bylaws otherwise provided, may authorize any officer or
officers, agent or agents, to enter into any-contract or
execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the
Corporation and such authority may be general or confined
to specific instances and unless so authorized by the Board
of Directors, no officer, agent or employee shall have any
power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or
engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for
any purpose or in any amount.

Section 35. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall
commence on the 1st day of July of each year and shall end
on the 30th day of June of the next succeeding year.

Section 36. Annual Audit. The affairs and financial condition of the
Corporation shall be audited annually at the end of each
fiscal year, commencing with fiscal year 1987-1988, by an
independent certified public accountant selected by the
Board of Directors and a written report of such audit and
appropriate financial statements shall be submitted to the
Board of Directors prior to the next regular meeting of the
Board of Directors of the Corporation following the
completion of such audit. Additional audits may be
authorized as considered necessary or desirable by the
Board of Directors.

Vil
Exempt Activities

Section 37. Restrictions. Notwithstanding any other provisions of these
Bylaws, no Director, officer, employee or representative of
this Corporation shall take any action or carry on any activity
by or on behalf of the Corporation not permitted to be taken
or carried on by an organization exempt under Section
501(c)(4) of the Code and the regulations promulgated
thereunder as they now exist or as they may hereafter be
amended.

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 10 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



IX
Amendment to Bylaws

Section 38. Amendments. These Bylaws may be amended by majority
vote of the Board of Directors.

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 11 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



ADOPTED by the Board-of Directors-of- the-Mesa Conselidated-Water District
Improvement Corporation Board of Directors on Mareh-10,-4988this 11th day of
March 2021.

By

Denise Garcia
Secretary;

Resolution No. 2021-2: Attachment A Page 12 of 11 Adopted: March 11, 2021



SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:

1. That | am the duly elected and acting Secretary of the Mesa
Consolidated-Water District Improvement Corporation, a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation; and

2. That the foregoing Amended Bylaws constitute a full, true and
correct copy of the Amended Bylaws of said Corporation in full
force and effect as of the date hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto subscribed my name this 9th11th day
of March,4988 March 2021.

By

Denise Garcia
Secretary;



Mesa Consolidated Water District Improvement Corporation Annual Meeting March 11, 2021

There is no Unfinished Business.

Page 1 of 1



MEMORANDUM

TO: MCWDIC Board of Directors

FROM: Paul E. Shoenberger, P.E., General Manager
DATE: March 11, 2021

SUBJECT: New Business

RECOMMENDATION

Direct officers to have annual audit conducted for Fiscal Year 2021.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION

None.

DISCUSSION

None.

FINANCIAL IMPACT

None.

ATTACHMENTS

None.

Page 1 of 1



mv MEMORANDUM

MesaWater TO: Board of Directors
BiSriRiel FROM: Stacy Taylor, Water Policy Manager
Dedicated to DATE: March 11, 2021
Satisfying our Community’s  gUBJECT: 2021 State Legislation Pertaining to Open Meetings and Water
Water Needs Issues
RECOMMENDATION

Approve the recommended positions on the 2021 State Legislation pertaining to Open Meetings
and Water Issues.

STRATEGIC PLAN

Goal #1: Provide a safe, abundant, and reliable water supply.

Goal #2: Practice perpetual infrastructure renewal and improvement.
Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent.

Goal #4: Increase public awareness about Mesa Water and about water.
Goal #5: Attract and retain skilled employees.

Goal #6: Provide outstanding customer service.

Goal #7: Actively participate in regional and statewide water issues.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION/DISCUSSION

At its February 23, 2021 meeting, the Board of Directors (Board) received a presentation from
California Advocates, Inc. representatives who discussed several pieces of state legislation,
introduced in 2021, regarding open meetings and water issues. The Board expressed interest in
considering positions on the below-listed bills at the next Board meeting.

DISCUSSION

Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®) consultants and staff continue to engage with the Association
of California Water Agencies (ACWA), California Municipal Utilities Association (CMUA), and
California Special Districts Association (CSDA) on advocacy efforts related to open public
meetings and the issues of water affordability, quality, rates validation, and service. Listed below
is information about four bill proposals that could affect Mesa Water and, thus, are high priority for
the District’s legislative affairs. Staff will provide a verbal update on these bills at the March 11,
2021 meeting.

Bill Number Topic Recommendation

Oppose (with ACWA/

AB 377 (Rivas — D, Salinas) Water Quality CMUA coalition)

AB 703 (Rubio — D,
Baldwin Park)

Support (with MWDOC/

Open Meetings SCWC coalition)

Oppose Unless Amended
SB 222 (Dodd — D, Napa) Water Affordability (with ACWA/ CMUA
coalition)

Page 1 of 5



nv

MesaWater

DISTRICT

Bill Number Recommendation

Oppose Unless Amended
SB 223 (Dodd — D, Napa) Water Service (with ACWA/CMUA
coalition)

AB 377 — Water Quality: Impaired Waters

Sponsored by California Coastkeeper and authored by Assemblymember Robert Rivas (D,
Salinas), with Senator Bob Hertzberg (D, Van Nuys) as co-author, AB 377 is being called the
“California Clean Water Act” by the authors and the sponsor.

This bill would: 1) require that “...all California surface waters be fishable, swimmable and
drinkable by January 1, 2050”; 2) prohibit the State Board and regional water quality control
boards from issuing a discharge permit of any kind that causes or contributes to an exceedance of
a water quality standard in receiving waters; and, 3) prohibit the renewal, reissuance or
modification of any discharge permit that contains effluent limitations or conditions that are less
stringent than those in the previous permit.

Status: This bill will be heard by the Assembly Committee on Environmental Safety and Toxic
Materials.

Mesa Water suggested position: OPPOSE (based on the District’s “Water Quality and
Economic Feasibility” Legislative Platform).

AB 703 — Open Meetings: Local Agencies: Teleconferences

Sponsored by Three Valleys Municipal Water District (Three Valleys MWD) and authored by
Assemblymember Blanca Rubio (D, Baldwin Park), AB 703 would allow for additional flexibility for
local city councils, boards, commissions, and other public agencies to hold public meetings
remotely via video and teleconference. This bill builds upon Governor Newsom’s March 2020
Executive Order N-29-20, as part of his response to the COVID-19 pandemic, to provide public
access to and patrticipation in local agencies’ meetings by allowing local agencies to use
teleconferencing for meetings and removing restrictions on teleconferencing for meetings.

Current law refers to “teleconference locations” and requires various actions taken at what was
typically remote or alternative locations, by local governments wishing to have teleconferenced
meetings. Current law does not recognize that a teleconference location can now be wherever
there is a person with a computer, a tablet, or a mobile phone.

AB 703 would: 1) eliminate the previously existing concept of “teleconference locations”; 2) revise
existing law to ensure minimum standards for public participation; and, 3) revise notice
requirements to allow for greater public participation in teleconferenced meetings of local
agencies.

AB 703 will provide Mesa Water and other public agencies the flexibility to hold open meetings in
person or via teleconference, while allowing for increased opportunities for public participation.
This bill does not require teleconferencing, but modernizes existing law to ensure greater public
participation in meetings of the legislative bodies of local agencies that choose to utilize
teleconferencing.

Page 2 of 5


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB377
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220AB703
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/3.17.20-N-29-20-EO.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/03/3.17.20-N-29-20-EO.pdf

nv

Mesa\Water

DISTRICT

AB 703 also expresses legislative intent to improve and enhance public access to local agency
meetings into the future, consistent with the digital age, by allowing broader access through
teleconferencing options consistent with the Governor’s Executive Order N-29-20, permitting
expanded use of teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Note: The California News Publishers Association has expressed opposition to AB 703.

Status: This bill will be heard by the Assembly Local Government Committee. Attachment A
contains a template letter of support for AB 703.

Mesa Water Suggested Position: SUPPORT (based on the District’s “Local Government”
Legislative Platform).

SB 222 — Water Affordability Assistance Program

Authored by Senator Bill Dodd (D, Napa), SB 222 would establish the Water Affordability
Assistance Fund (WAAF) in the California State Treasury. The bill currently does not name a
funding source for the WAAF, which would provide assistance for both water and wastewater
services to low-income ratepayers and ratepayers experiencing economic hardship.

Money in the fund would be made available upon appropriation by the Legislature to the State
Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) for the following purposes:

1. Direct water bill assistance;

2. Water bill credits to renters, individuals, or households that pay other amounts, fees, or
charges related to residential water and wastewater service;

Water crisis assistance;
Affordability assistance to low-income households served by domestic wells;
Water efficiency measures for low-income households; and,

o 0 bk w

Short-term assistance to public water systems to administer program components, including
startup costs.

This bill requires the SWRCB, in consultation with a specified advisory group to develop
guidelines for program implementation, fund oversight, and an expenditure plan containing
enumerated components.

According to the bill's author who, when he was in the State Assembly, also authored AB 401 (the
Low-Income Water Rate Assistance Program study bill, chaptered in 2015), the SWRCB found
“drinking water is a basic human need. However, California households find it increasingly difficult
to satisfy this need as the retail cost of water has risen substantially over the last decade and is
expected to rise significantly over the coming years. The burden of rapidly rising drinking water
costs falls disproportionately on the 13 million Californians living in low-income households, many
of whom have seen their incomes stagnate during the same period. Expenditures to meet basic
water needs are expected to continue to rise rapidly due to the need for water systems to replace
aging infrastructure, meet treatment standards, diversify supplies, and maintain a well-trained
workforce.”

While water providers recognize that millions of Californians could benefit from a financial
assistance program for water, there could be a bill written that would create a reasonable, efficient

Page 3 of 5


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB222
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160AB401

nv

Mesa\Water

DISTRICT
and effective Low-Income Rate Assistance (LIRA) program for water. However, SB 222 contains
problematic language including, but not necessarily limited to, the following:

e The proposed benefit distribution mechanism, such as a water bill or tax credit, is inefficient
and more costly than using an existing social help program (e.g., CalFresh) or the Franchise
Tax Board;

e The SWRCB is not the efficient choice for the implementing agency;
e The proposed scope is broader than the program outlined in the AB 401 Report;
e There is no identified funding source; and,

e This bill, as currently written, goes beyond a LIRA program and would authorize the SWRCB to
determine the appropriateness of rate structures for small water systems.

Though not a comprehensive list, the above-listed items are some of the more problematic
sections of SB 222 that the water community -- working in conjunction with ACWA, CMUA and
others -- are addressing with Senator Dodd and his staff. Mesa Water staff and consultants are
engaged with the coalition of associations advocating for amendments to SB 222.

Status: This bill has been “double referred” to the Senate Energy, Utilities and Communications
(EU&C), and Environmental Quality Committees; it will first be heard in the EU&C Committee.

Mesa Water Suggested Position: OPPOSE UNLESS AMENDED (based on the District’s “Water
Rate Assistance Programs” Legislative Platform).

SB 223 — Discontinuation Of Residential Water Service

Authored by Senator Bill Dodd (D, Napa), SB 223 would expand existing provisions that were
enacted via SB 998 (Dodd) in 2018, related to water shutoffs.

This bill would: 1) make the existing prohibition applicable to small systems with 200 connections
or less; 2) require water agencies to develop arrearage management plans that would allow
ratepayers who have accrued water and sewer debt to be repaid over a period of 12 months or
longer; and, 3) require a water system to “waive” all late fees, interest charges, and penalties on
delinquent bills every 12 months.

According to the author’s office, “Even before the pandemic, water rates have been rising much
faster than income (or wages). The SWRCB estimated that California’s water rates rose more
than 45% on average between 2007 and 2015. For families earning less than $25,000 annually,
water costs more than 2% of their income, and for families earning less than $10,000, the cost of
water is more than 5% of income. Water is deemed unaffordable if it exceeds 1.5% of household
income, according to the EPA Affordability benchmark.

Aging water systems and increasingly stringent water quality standards are major reasons for the
rise in water rates. These factors require significant investment to keep water systems in
operation. Also, because of constitutional restrictions (Prop. 218), public water agencies are
limited in their ability to charge a differential rate to higher-income households to offset the costs of
water for low-income households.

A recent study conducted by the Pacific Institute reported that nearly 187,000 households had
their water shut off in 2018, impacting 583,000 Californians. Economic dislocation due to the
pandemic is pushing those numbers even higher. In response to this growing problem, Governor

Page 4 of 5


https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB223
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB998

nv

Mesa\Water

DISTRICT

Newsom imposed a statewide water shutoff moratorium in April of 2020. The moratorium is a
temporary measure, but the factors contributing to higher water rates are long term.
Disconnections will persist absent legislative action.

Lastly, the difficulties low-income households face in paying their water bills is accruing significant
debt owed to their water agencies. This creates a double-barreled effect. Ratepayers accrue so
much debt they may never be able to catch up, putting access to water at risk, and water agencies
may lose so much revenue, they may have difficulty maintaining operations.”

There are a number of issues with SB 223, some of which may be in violation with Prop. 218.
Some of the bill’s problematic language includes, but is not necessarily limited to, the following:

e Waiving debt for unpaid water bills;

e Waiving reconnection fees for low-income ratepayers;

e Giving the SWRCB new enforcement powers;

e Extending the minimum delinquency period from 60 days to 120 days;

e Requiring that the unpaid amount be at least $400 before the water shutoff process may begin;

e Allowing customers to “self-certify” if there is a resident in the home that is under 18 or over 65
and the water shutoff will pose a serious threat to health and safety; and,

¢ |f the water bill includes both water and sewer services, the bill is not considered delinquent if
they have paid an amount equal to, or greater than, the portion of the bill that covers
water...this appears to cover any customer (not just low-income ratepayers).

SB 223 exacerbates implementation problems water districts are having with SB 998. The new
provisions in SB 998 were only in effect for two months before the Governor issued a moratorium
on water shutoffs. Mesa Water, along with a long list of other water providers, opposed SB 998
because it created a “one-size-fits-all” approach to water shutoffs that was unnecessary. Water
providers have direct contact with their customers and work with them on unpaid bills long before
shutting off their water. SB 223'’s intent is to strengthen and extend shutoff protocols without any
evidence that SB 998’s provisions are inadequate.

Mesa Water staff and consultants are engaged with the coalition of associations (i.e., ACWA,
CMUA, etc.) to express the water community’s concerns to Senator Dodd and his staff, and
advocate for amendments to SB 223.

Status: This bill has been “double referred” to the Senate Energy, Utilities and Communications
(EU&C), and Environmental Quality Committees; it will first be heard in the EU&C Committee.

Mesa Water Suggested Position: OPPOSE UNLESS AMENDED (based on the District’s
“Proposition 218" Legislative Platform).

FINANCIAL IMPACT

None.

ATTACHMENTS
Attachment A: 2021 Legislative Platforms
Attachment B: Support Letter Template for AB 703

Page 5 of 5



nv

Mesa\Water
DISTRICT

2021 Legislative Platforms
December 2020

Calendar Year 2021 marks the first year of California’s two-year (2020 and 2021) legislative
session, with the State legislature slated to reconvene on Monday, January 4, 2021. Due to
the global Covid-19 pandemic, the 2021 session is expected to be conducted much like the
2020 legislative session which was historically unique with the implementation of new
remote lawmaking processes that affected advocacy activities, limited policy hearings and
public participation, and resulted in legislation focused on a few priority issues:
homelessness and affordable housing; public and employee health (especially related to
Covid-19), and wildfires. Also in 2020, the state was focused on addressing budget shortfalls
caused by the pandemic.

For 2021, it is expected that some legislative proposals and ongoing policy discussions from
2019 and 2020 could return in 2021, including legislation and regulations that could
significantly impact Mesa Water District (Mesa Water®). The State administration,
legislature, and regulators explored several ongoing water issues in 2019 and 2020,
including, but not limited to:

e water use efficiency/conservation regulations pertaining to data reporting,
water loss performance standards, and other topics related to implementing
SB 606 and AB 1668 (passed in 2018);

o water affordability related to California’s Human Right to Water and the Safe and
Affordable Drinking Water Fund (respectively, AB 685 and SB 200), Low-Income Water
Rate Assistance also called “lifeline rates” or LIWRA programs (AB 401), and the state’s
No Water Shutoffs law (SB 998), as well as Governor’s Executive Order N-42-20
prohibiting shutoffs during the Covid-19 emergency;

e water district consolidations;
e headwaters protection, forest management, and wildfires prevention;

e climate adaptation and resilience, and related issues (i.e., energy policies, public safety
power shutoffs, etc.);

e water quality, PFAS, and other Constituents of Emerging Concern (CECs);
e recycled water and water reuse;

o affordable housing proposals to alleviate homelessness (i.e., ADUs, CEQA reform,
housing development fees, surplus land, etc.); and,

e Delta Flows (e.g., Voluntary Settlement Agreements) and the Delta Conveyance Project
(DCP).

As policy discussions continue in 2021, the above issues will be the primary areas of
legislative and regulatory focus. Additionally, in 2020, Governor Newsom issued two
climate-related Executive Orders to require: 1. by 2035, that all new cars and passenger
trucks sold in CA are Zero-Emission Vehicles (N-79-20); and, 2. by 2030, the conservation
of 30% of the state’s land and coastal waters (N-82-20).

Page 1 of 4


https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/conservation_portal/california_statutes.html
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201120120AB685
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB200
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/conservation_portal/assistance/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201720180SB998
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/04/4.2.20-EO-N-42-20.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/09/9.23.20-EO-N-79-20-text.pdf
https://www.gov.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/10.07.2020-EO-N-82-20-.pdf

Mesa\Water

Lastly, Mesa Water engaged with various agencies and associations that the district is
affiliated with (i.e., ACC-OC, ACWA, AWWA, CalDesal, CMUA, CSDA, CWSA,
MWDOC/MWD, OCBC, OCWD, OC Tax, SCWC, WateReuse, etc.) to advocate on
legislative/policy issues including, but not necessarily limited to: a potential “Split Roll” ballot
initiative to amend Proposition 13; the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act and LAFCO Protest
Thresholds; and Covid-19 impacts on local government and water utilities.

Listed below, for the Board’s consideration, are the proposed legislative and regulatory
platforms regarding anticipated high-priority public policy issues in 2021 that could have
major consequences for Mesa Water:

e Water Rates — Mesa Water supports local rate-setting control with rate structures,
set by publicly-elected boards and councils, that best serve customers and comply
with the law. Furthermore, Mesa Water supports cost-based water rates that:

o represent the true, full cost of water services, including operational costs and
infrastructure funding to ensure water system sustainability into perpetuity; and,

0 harmonize the concepts of conservation and legality, with rates that provide a strong
price signal for ratepayers to conserve while also complying with legal mandates (i.e.,
Article X of the CA Constitution; SB 606 and AB 1668; and, Propositions 13, 26, and
218).

e Proposition 13 — Mesa Water supports Article XllI A of the California Constitution
(Prop. 13) and the taxpayer protections it provides as passed in 1978; and,
Mesa Water opposes a “Split Roll” that would remove some of the protections of
Prop. 13 from nonresidential properties in order to raise taxes on them.

e Proposition 218 — Mesa Water supports Article Xl C and D of the California
Constitution (Prop. 218) regarding government service assessments, fees, rates, and
taxes, specifically:

o the “2/3 vote” required from the legislature and voters for approval of new levies;

o the “special benefit and proportionality requirements” provision which directly connects
the special benefits received with reasonable proportionate costs, and ensures that
assessments imposed for property-related (water) services must not exceed the
proportional cost of the services attributable to the parcel; and

o transparent rate-setting procedures that protect consumers from potential government
overcharge by providing ample opportunities for consumer participation as well as the
ability for consumers to protest illegal rates.

e Water Rate Assistance Programs — Mesa Water supports localized “lifeline rates” or
LiIWRA) programs that comply with Prop. 218 of the California Constitution and are
funded either voluntarilyor via non-restricted/non-water-rates revenues. Mesa Water
opposes a state tax on local water customer bills.

e Orange County Groundwater Basin — Mesa Water opposes any potential streamlined
process for adjudicating groundwater basins, including the Orange County groundwater
basin which is currently managed by the Orange County Water District (OCWD).

Page 2 of 4



MesaWater

DISTRICT

e Water Bonds Funding (Propositions 1 and 68) — Mesa Water supports funding
from the November 2014 and June 2018 water bonds for OCWND'’s priority projects.

e Water Desalination — Mesa Water supports CalDesal in its desalination advocacy
efforts, as well as the local and regional development of cost-effective and
environmentally-sensitive water desalination projects statewide -- including brackish and
ocean water desalination and the proposed Huntington Beach and Dana Point projects --
to enhance the availability and reliability of local and regional water supply sources, and
improve water supply reliability for Orange County, Southern California, and statewide.

e Water Conservation/Water Use Efficiency — Mesa Water supports accounting for
water resource and supply investments -- such as desalination, potable reuse, and water
recycling -- as part of any potential statewide effort to update urban water conservation
goals. Mesa Water supports compliance flexibility and local control; maximum credit for
drought-resilient supplies; and, regulatory water use and water loss target-setting that is
based on valid data and includes a glide path for enforcement as well as a variance
process for unique situations. Mesa Water also supports the streamlining of water
reporting data as part of the implementation of, and compliance with,

SB 606 and AB 1668.

e Water Recycling — Mesa Water supports OCWD and WateReuse in its efforts to
advance potable reuse legislation and regulations. Mesa Water supports the
“Beneficiaries Pay” principle for the development and implementation of new recycled
water projects including storm water capture.

e Water Quality and Economic Feasibility — Mesa Water supports efforts by the
Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) and other water industry
associations/organizations to protect public health by using the best available scientific
data and cost/benefit analyses to inform the development of reasonable and fiscally-
responsible water quality legislation and regulations -- for current and future constituents
of concern (e.g., PFAS) -- which consider technical and economic feasibility of standards
and treatments to ensure clean, safe drinking water.

e Water Storage and Exchange Programs — Mesa Water supports the “Beneficiaries
Pay” principle for water storage and exchange/transfer programs provided that they
are market-based, ensure full cost recovery at a minimum, and account for water loss.

o Affordable Housing — Mesa Water supports the advocacy efforts of California Special
Districts Association (CSDA) and other industry associations/organizations on policies
related to Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs), CEQA reform/streamlining, development
impact fees (i.e., capacity charges, connection fees, etc.), metering/sub-metering,
surplus land, and other proposed affordable housing solutions provided that they support
water utilities’ ability to provide reliable residential water services that are appropriately
priced and right-sized for public health and safety.

e Local Government — Mesa Water supports the efforts of CSDA and other industry

Page 3 of 4



LA\

Mesa\W

LS ".(.5_2-\\-‘.
@:l‘«»_:l]'

associations/organizations to ensure local control and representation, efficient delivery of
government services, and appropriate reserve funds levels.

e Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) — Mesa Water supports the existing
protest thresholds for LAFCO-initiated reorganizations, per the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg
(CKH) Act, and opposes changes that would make it more difficult for citizens to protest
a LAFCO-initiated reorganization. Additionally, Mesa Water opposes any changes to the
CKH Act that would weaken local control and representation and/or broaden the
mission, powers, and scope of LAFCOs without providing any added public benefit.

e Special Districts Voting Methods — Mesa Water supports exempting special districts
from Cumulative Voting and Ranked Choice Voting methods, and opposes attempts to
make these methods an option or a mandate for special districts elections.

e Delta Solutions — Mesa Water supports the efforts of ACWA, Municipal Water District of
Orange County (MWDOC), Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD),
and Southern California Water Committee (SCWC) to achieve a long-term solution for
the Bay Delta that includes functional, unimpaired flows for optimal statewide water
supply reliability, sustainability and quality, and Delta ecosystem health and restoration
for the public benefit. Mesa Water supports the “Beneficiaries Pay” principle for Delta
Solution funding.

e CA Headwaters and Forest Management — Mesa Water supports the efforts of ACWA
and other water industry coalitions to promote policies that enhance the pace and scale
of headwaters protection, forest management and wildfires prevention -- including
improved planning, coordination and implementation -- and increase financing, research,
and resources to: protect water supply and quality; bring management practices in line
with modern challenges; and, provide multiple benefits to the State’s water users.

¢ Climate Adaptation/Resilience Bond — Mesa Water supports the efforts of ACWA and
other water industry associations/organizations in engaging with the Governor’s
Administration, lawmakers, and regulators on resource funding related to the Governor’s
Executive Orders on climate change and related issues including, but not necessarily
limited to: energy solutions, water resilience, and public safety power shutoffs.

e Essential Public Utilities — Mesa Water supports the concept of carving out Essential
Public Utilities -- such as water and wastewater service providers -- from future
legislation, administrative actions, and regulations that add costs or time delays to a
utility’s work by mandating new, unfunded operational practices.

¢ Federal Drought Legislation — Mesa Water supports the efforts of ACWA and other
water industry associations/organizations in collaborating with U.S. representatives to
develop bicameral, bipartisan federal drought legislation.

e Covid-19 Economic Relief — Mesa Water supports the efforts of ACWA, CSDA, and
other industry associations/organizations to advocate for State and Federal funding to
help local governments overcome administrative, financial, and operational challenges
caused by the global pandemic and related government actions.

Page 4 of 4



[DATE]

Assembly Member Blanca Rubio
California State Assembly

State Capitol, Room 5175

P.O. Box 942849

Sacramento, CA 94249-0048

RE: Assembly Bill 703 (Rubio) — Support [As Introduced]
Dear Assembly Member Rubio:

[Your agency/association name] is pleased to support your Assembly Bill 703, related to
enhancing public access through teleconferencing in a public meeting setting. [If appropriate,
include brief background about your agency].

As part of his response to the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order
N-29-20 in March 2020 to expand public access to meetings of local agencies by suspending
some of the restrictions on teleconferencing. Allowing local agencies to utilize teleconferencing
for meetings of the legislative body has enhanced public access and increased participation by
the public.

When the Governor’s Executive Order expires one day, local agencies will again be required to
comply with antiquated provisions of existing law which make it much more difficult to hold
meetings of the legislative body by teleconference. Current law refers to “teleconference
locations” and requires various actions to be taken at “teleconference locations” by local
governments wishing to teleconference meetings. Current law does not recognize that a
teleconference location is now wherever there is a person with a computer, a tablet, or even a
mobile phone.

AB 703 will eliminate the previously existing concept of “teleconference locations and will revise
notice requirements to allow for greater public participation in teleconference meetings of local
agencies. The bill does not require teleconferencing, rather it modernizes existing law to ensure
greater public participation in meetings of the legislative bodies of local agencies who choose to
utilize teleconferencing.

AB 703 also expresses legislative intent to improve and enhance public access to local agency
meetings, consistent with the digital age, by allowing broader access through teleconferencing
options consistent with the Governors Executive Order.

For these reasons, [Your agency/association name] is pleased to support your Assembly Bill
703 (Rubio). If you have questions about our position or would like to discuss further, you may
contact me at [Your contact information — phone/email].

Sincerely,

cc: [Your Assembly Members]
Kirk Howie, Three Valleys Municipal Water District (khowie@tvmwd.com)
Kristi Foy, Mike Arnold & Associates (kfoy@mijarnold.com)

1021 E. Miramar Avenue e Claremont, California 91711-2052
Telephone (909) 621-5568 e Fax (909) 625-5470 e http://www.threevalleys.com


mailto:khowie@tvmwd.com
mailto:kfoy@mjarnold.com

Mesa Water Board Meeting of March 11, 2021

REPORTS:

10. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER:
o February Key Indicators Report
o Other (no enclosure)

Page 1 of 1



Monthly Key Indicators Report
For The Month of February 2021

Goal #1: Provide a safe, abundant, and reliable water supply
FY 2021 Potable Production (Acre Feet)

Clear Water 8,561 8,266

Amber Water (MWRF) 2,385 2,135

Imported 0 0 0
Basin Management Water 0 0 0
Total Production 10,945 10,401 15,796

YTD actual water production (AF) through February 28, 2021

Water Production by Source - 12 Month Trailing Percent of Acre
Feet Produced
100%

90%

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

March Aprii May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb

@mClear Water @ Amber Water min-Lieu/CPTP @ Imported

Page 1 of 7




Monthly Key Indicators Report
For The Month of February 2021

Goal #1: Provide a safe, abundant, and reliable water supply

FY21 System Water Quality — This data reflects samples taken in January

Distribution System: | Average | ~ Range MCL
Chlorine Residual (mg/L) 158 0.25—-2.65 4
Compliance Current RAA =1.72 RAA
Y e : : s
Temperature (° F) 68 63 -74 None
Reservoir | & II: "Average |  Range ~ MCL
Chlorine Residual (mg/L) 0.72 0.11-1.43 None
Monochloramine (mg/L) 0.61 0.02-1.16 None
Ammonia (mg/L) 0.16 0-0.33 None
Temperature (° F) 68 62 -72 None
Wells (Treated): Average |  Range MCL
Chlorine Residual (mg/L) 2.66 2.05-3.45 None
Monochloramine (mg/L) 2.62 2.24 - 3.41 None
Ammonia (mg/L) 0.60 0.48-0.75 None
Temperature (° F) 69 62 —-77 None
MWRF:  Average | Range ~ MCL
Chilorine Residual (mg/L) 2.68 2.68 None
Monochloramine (mg/L) 2.66 2.66 None
Ammonia (mg/L) 0.54 0.54 None
Temperature (° F) 77 77 None
Color (CU) Compliance ND ND 15
Odor (TON) Compliance ND ND 3

Water Quality Calls/Investigations:

Total Calls

Total Investigations (from calls)

Page 2 of 7




Monthly Key Indicators Report
For The Month of February 2021

Goal #2: Practice perpetual infrastructure renewal and improvement

Revenues of Potable Water

(in thousands)

$3,500 $35,000
$3,000 $30,000
$2,500 - $25,000
$2,000 - $20,000
$1,500 - $15,000
$1,000 - $10,000
$500 . - $5,000
$0 i I = _I ! — ¥ = - L $0

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

=== 2021 - Actual Rev m 2021 - Budget Rev

w====Cumulative 2021 - Actual Rev = Cumulative 2021 - Budget Rev

=== Cumulative 2021 - Actual Cost ——Cumulative 2021 - Budget Cost

Favorable (Unfavorable)
| Actual [ Budget Difference | %
Total YTD Revenue $ 19,992,745 19,026,415 966,330 5.08%

UnFavorable (Favorable)
| Actual | Budget Difference | %

Total YTD Cost $ * 6,694,945 6,427,423 267,522 4.16%

* YTD Cost is trailing YTD Revenue by one month due to the timing of when costs are available.

Page 3of 7




Monthly Key Indicators Report
For The Month of February 2021

Goal #3: Be financially responsible and transparent

$22,500,000
$20,000,000
$17,500,000
$15,000,000
$12,500,000
$10,000,000
$7,500,000
$5,000,000
$2,500,000

$0

Actual vs. Budget Capital Spending

(current month actual figures are estimated)

Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

=@ Cumulative Actual — =@ - Cumulative Budget

Apr

May

Jun

Page 4 of 7




Monthly Key Indicators Report
For The Month of February 2021

Goal #4: Increase public awareness about Mesa Watere and about water

Web Site Information

__Web Site Information | January 2021 | February 2021
Visits to the web site 11096 11,955

Unique visitors 9084 9025

(First time to the site)

Average per day 358 427

Average visit length 42 seconds 34 seconds

Page visited most Press Releases Press Releases
Second most visited page Online Bill Pay Online Bill Pay

Third most visited page

Human Resources

Rates and Fees

Fourth most visited page

Rates and Fees

Start-Stop-Service

Fifth most visited page About/Organization Contact

Most downloaded file 2020 Water Quality Salary Ranges
Report

Second most downloaded file | Standard Standard

Specifications and
Standard Drawings for
the Construction of
Water Facilities

Specifications and
Standard Drawings for
the Construction of
Water Facilities

Most active day of the week Friday Tuesday
Least active day of the week Monday Monday
Total visits since July 1, 2002 1,499,902

Water Vending Machine Information

Vending Machine |  Vend | February | Totals
Location _ Measurement | 2021 Vends | Vends
Mesa Water Office 1 gal 6,129 485,048

Page 5of 7




Monthly Key Indicators Report
For the Month of February 2021

Goal #5: Attract and retain skilled employees

S A = O EYP00 B
_ DEPARTMENT: [ BUDGET | FILLED | VACANT | COMMENTS:
OFFICE OF THE GENERAL MANAGER:
General Manager 1.00 1.00 0.00
Business Administrator 1.00 1.00 0.00
Subtotal 2.00 2.00 0.00
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES:
Administrative Services 5.00 5.00 0.00
Subtotal 5.00 5.00 0.00
CUSTOMER SERVICES:
Conservation 1.00 0.00 1.00 Water Use Efficiency Analyst - vacant; on hold.
Customer Service 4.00 4.00 0.00
Subtotal 5.00 4.00 1.00
ENGINEERING:
Engineering 5.00 5.00 0.00
Subtotal 5.00 5.00 0.00
WATER POLICY:
Legislative & Governmental Affairs 1.50 1.50
Subtotal 1.50 1.50 0.00
FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Financial Reporting/ Purchasing 4.00 4.00 0.00
Accounting 1.00 1.00 0.00
Subtotal 5.00 5.00 0.00
HUMAN RESOURCES:
Human Resources 3.00 3.00 0.00
Subtotal 3.00 3.00 0.00
PUBLIC AFFAIRS:
Outreach, Education & Communications 1.50 1.50 0.00
Subtotal 1.50 1.50 0.00
WATER OPERATIONS:
Supervision/Support 7.00 7.00 0.00
Distribution 1900 2800 1200 Sr. Operator - vacant; recruitment in process.
Field Customer Service 4.00 4.00 0.00
Production 3.00 3.00 0.00
Water Quality 2.00 1.00 1.00 W ater Quality Technician l/Il - vacant;
recruitment in process.
_ _ Subtotal 26.00 24.00 2.00
* TOTAL BUDGETED POSITIONS: '54.00 51.00 3.00

Page 6 of 7




Monthly Key Indicators Report
For The Month of February 2021

Goal #6: Provide outstanding customer service

Customer Calls

General Billing Question 22
Service Requests 1139 190 33
High Bill 1046 124 30
Payments 1158 88 33
Late Fee 116 12 3
Account Maintenance 858 90 25
On-Line Bill Pay 1587 163 45
Water Pressure 29 2 1
No Water 283 25 8
Conservation 117 6 3
Water Waste 51 15 1
Other (District info. other utility info. etc.) 1935 215 55
Rate Increase 68 3 2
Fluoridation 5 1 0
TOTAL CUSTOMER CALLS 9179 1005 262
AVERAGE ANSWER TIME (Seconds) 70 73 70

Online Bill Pay Customers

Page 7 of 7




Mesa Water Board Meeting of March 11, 2021
REPORTS:

11. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS

Page 1 of 1



Mesa Water Board Meeting of March 11, 2021

DIRECTORS' REPORTS (AB 1234) PER CA GOVERNMENT

CODE SECTION 53232.3 (d)

In accordance with CA Government Code 53232.3 (d), the following report identifies the meetings for
which Mesa Water Directors received expense reimbursement.

Jim Atkinson

Meetings Attended

Reimbursement Date:

Description, Date

N/A

Fred R. Bockmiller, P.

E. Meetings Attended

Reimbursement Date:

Description, Date

2/22/21

Meeting w/ General Manager, 1/27

2/22/21

Well Visit, 2/8

2/22/21

Meeting w/ Mesa Water Director, 2/10

Marice H. DePasquale

Meetings Attended

Reimbursement Date:

Description, Date

N/A

Shawn Dewane

Meetings Attended

Reimbursement Date:

Description, Date

N/A

James R. Fisler

Meetings Attended

Reimbursement Date:

Description, Date

N/A

Page 1 of 1



Mesa Water Board Meeting of March 11, 2021

There are no support materials for this item.

Page 1 of 1



Mesa Water Board Meeting of March 11, 2021
CLOSED SESSION:
14. CONFERENCE WITH GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL — EXISTING LITIGATION:

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)
Reporting Issue: Department of Drinking Water

Page 1 of 1



	AGENDA
	CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS
	1. Approve minutes of regular Board meeting of February 11, 2021.
	2. Approve minutes of adjourned regular Board meeting of February 23, 2021.
	3. Approve attendance considerations (additions, changes, deletions).
	4. Board Schedule
	• Conferences, Seminars, and Meetings
	• Board Calendar


	PRESENTATION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
	5. ISDOC EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE VACANCY
	Attachment A: ISDOC Executive Committee Second Vice President Vacancy Correspondence

	6. FISCAL YEAR 2020 AUDIT RESULTS AND COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
	Attachment A: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended 2020
	Attachment B: Internal Control Over Financial Reporting for the Fiscal Year Ended 2020

	7. EMERGENCY WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY TESTING PROGRAM:

	ACTION ITEMS
	8. MESA CONSOLIDATED WATER DISTRICT IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION ANNUAL MEETING
	A. CONFIRM DIRECTORS OF CORPORATION
	B. APPROVE MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF MARCH 12, 2020
	C. APPROVE MINUTES FOR THE MEETING OF MAY 14, 2020
	D. ELECTION OF CORPORATION OFFICERS
	E. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-1 CHANGING THE MCWDIC NAME
	Attachment A: Resolution No. 2021-1, Draft

	F. RESOLUTION NO. 2021-2 ADOPTING AMENDED BYLAWS
	Attachment A: Resolution No. 2021-2, Draft
	Attachment B: Resolution No. 88-1, Redline

	G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	H. NEW BUSINESS

	9. 2021 STATE LEGISLATION PERTAINING TO OPEN MEETING AND WATER ISSUES
	Attachment A: 2021 Legislative Platforms
	Attachment B: Support Letter Template for AB 703


	REPORTS
	10. REPORT OF THE GENERAL MANAGER
	• February Key Indicators Report
	• Other (no enclosure)

	11. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS AND COMMENTS

	INFORMATION ITEMS
	12. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS (AB 1234) PER CA GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 53232.3 (D)
	13. OTHER (NO ENCLOSURE)

	CLOSED SESSION
	14. CONFERENCE WITH GENERAL LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION:Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)Reporting Issue: Department of Drinking Water





